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Tingyi (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and distribution
of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle business in 1992, and
expanded into instant food business and beverage business in 1996.
In March 2012, the Group further expanded its beverage business by
forming a strategic alliance with PepsiCo for the beverage business in
the PRC. The Company exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages,
distributes and sells PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. After years of hard
work and accumulation, “Master Kong” has become one of the best-
known brands among consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management system,
implements entire control over food safety and ensures product quality
and safety. We will constantly strive for product quality and food safety,
as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 348 sales offices and 303
warehouses serving 76,875 wholesalers and 217,087 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2023. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables the
Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2023 was
HK$53.6 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley
Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in the
PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese Instant
Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Financial Summary

BZE12A31BLEFE

For the years ended 31 December

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
e Revenue 80,418,075 78,717,420 74,082,292 67,617,835 61,978,158
B R AT A Profit before taxation 4,779,461 4,148,804 5,808,643 6,531,912 5,411,596
FiiE Taxation (1,262,794) (1,072,970) (1,424,976) (1,958,228) (1,693,374)
REEHH Profit for the year 3,516,667 @ 3,075,834 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222
i tepeaeal Profit attributable to:
RARRE Owners of the Company 3,117,461 = 2,632,312 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981
DR E Non-controlling interests 399,206 443,522 581,185 511,421 387,241
RNE R Profit for the year 3,516,667 @ 3,075,834 4,383,667 4,573,684 3,718,222
[ig 8 Dividends 3,117,461 2,632,312 3,802,482 4,062,263 3,330,981
AR ARES ARE7 ARES ARED
RMB cents @ RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents
BFIEF Earnings per share
BN Basic 55.33 46.73 67.57 72.23 59.25
BE Diluted 55.31 46.71 67.51 72.15 59.20
* MEF2024F AR R EF AL RZ BB -
* Subject to approval by the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2024.
EemEER 03
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W12R31H
As at 31 December

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

ANRBTT  ANREFT ANREEFT AREFT AREFT

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

REUEEHE Investment properties 1,825,170 1,832,200 1,807,100 1,771,700 1,771,500
mE - HBEREE Property, plant and equipment 21,454,802 21,259,417 21,510,028 21,934,571 23,013,991
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,554,237 3,625,714 3,691,741 3,804,456 4,025,124
B naER Interest in an associate 95,378 93,316 94,847 94,802 139,537
E-UNGIL Interest in joint ventures 529,323 614,316 625,163 627,031 889,065
B EE Intangible assets 155,640 162,480 155,970 165,668 183,409
Hi3ERsEE Other non-current assets 5,061,526 6,834,794 6,757,633 4,431,860 2,499,236
FRE(EE)EE Net current (liabilities) assets (8,719,436)  (7,677.469)  (4,158,264) 1,629,302  (2,869,623)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (6,734,396)  (9,929,293)  (8,075,718)  (9,720,007)  (6,606,132)
FEE Net assets 17,222,244 = 16,815475 22,408,500 24,739,383 23,046,107
BT Issued capital 196,681 235,741 235,633 235,422 235,401
s Reserves 13,697,923 = 13,135,785 18,424,343 20,877,302 19,343,173
PEBERES Non-controlling interests 3,327,640 3,443,949 3,748,524 3,626,659 3,467,533
BRERERE Total equity 17,222,244 = 16,815,475 22,408,500 24,739,383 23,046,107

\
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GROUP REVENUE

B2 | Financial Summary

BERLAUSENEDI L
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUE BY SEGMENT
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everage Business
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
HE HE HE HE HE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
EEFT Sales Office 371 365 340 337 348
& & Warehouse 182 236 341 322 303
#Z 847 Wholesale 36,186 47,898 80,726 76,528 76,875
E%ZER Direct Retailer 185,789 210,366 256,567 254,975 217,087
BT A% Employee 58,182 60,654 62,107 64,302 66,807
4 E# Production Line 604 584 570 575 571
4 EEH Production Centre 88 86 78 78 76
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Chairman’s Statement
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Master Kong, as a leading national brand and company in China’s food
and beverage industry, has committed to providing consumers with “Life
+ Delicacy”. The endeavors are there to bring joy to consumers in every
bite they have with healthy and delicious products suitable for different
consumer groups as well as consumption occasions.

In face of market changes in 2023, the Group adhered to long-termism
and pursued quality development. Gradual improvement had been
made in gross margin structure, and active investments had been made
in brand rejuvenation and food safety risk management, bolstering the
stable growth of performance.

Over the year, the Group had kept on with product innovation, branding
and channel development. Investment in basic research had been
intensified, talent echelon development accelerated, system platform
integration strengthened, and digital transformation expedited. Efforts
had been made to continue to promote food safety and sustainable
development, drive business growth, better serve customers and
consumers, create value for shareholders, and establish a comprehensive
food and beverage “National Brand” that is trustworthy for the
government, delightful for partners, and reassuring for consumers.

The market in 2024 is still loaded with opportunities and challenges. The
Board will continue to un-swervingly promote the Group’s high-quality
development in all aspects, upgrade products and services from within
and outside, drive the improvement of product quality for consumers
and reasonable growth of total volume consumptions in the market,
and prompt the management team, on an ongoing basis, to operate in
a healthy manner to serve the wide population of consumers.

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all the shareholders,
members of the Board, management team, employees, partners and
consumers for their support over all these years!

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 26, 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2023F B AEAEBERLIER
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China’s GDP grew 5.2% year-on-year in 2023. The out-of-home
consumptions recovered significantly, with a year-on-year growth of
7.2% in total retail sales of consumer goods, and the CPI remained
flat throughout the year. However, when making shopping decisions,
the focus was, on one hand, placed on pursuit of healthy and high-
value products, and on the other hand, on the cost-effectiveness of the
products. In terms of channels, snack discount stores in the proximity
settings were the main contributors to offline growth, and online sales
from interest-based e-commerce platforms were growing significantly.
These trends had brought opportunities and challenges to the
development of the Group.

For the full-year 2023, the Group's revenue grew 2.16% year-on-year
to RMB80.418 billion. The revenue from instant noodles declined 2.84%
year-on-year, while the revenue from beverages grew 5.39% year-
on-year. For the full year, gross profit margin grew 1.33 percentage
points to 30.42%. The ratio of distribution costs to revenue grew 0.89
percentage points year-on-year to 22.24%. EBITDA grew 13.82% year-
on-year to RMB8.207 billion; driven by an expansion of gross profit
margin, the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company grew
18.43% year-on-year to RMB3.117 billion; basic earnings per share
grew 8.60 cents to RMB55.33 cents.

The table below shows the breakdown of revenues and proportion of
total revenue for each segment during the reporting period:

HZ12A31H81E12(87
Twelve Months Ended December 31

2023 % 20224 2
2023 2022 Change

g fhitk Wiz 1t £ 5at]
Revenue Prop. Revenue Prop. amount Prop.
(AE¥EET) (%) (AREEET) (%) (NREEET) (%)
(in RMB'm) (%) (in RMB'm) (%) (in RMB'm) (%)
FEEER Instant Noodles Business 28,793 35.80 29,634 37.65 -841 -2.84
RRER Beverage Business 50,939 63.34 48,336 61.40 2,603 5.39
2ty Others 686 0.86 747 0.95 -61 -8.19
@ Total 80,418 100.00 78,717 100.00 1,701 216

10 EMEZERERAR
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EEEFWEDHN | Management Discussion and Analysis

During the period, gross profit margin of the Group improved year-on-
year. The following table shows the breakdown of the gross profit and
gross profit margin of each segment during the reporting period:

BZ12A318.L12{8R
Twelve Months Ended December 31
2023% 20025 g
2023 2022 Change
Y| Ep S 7 ek 7 ESES
Gross profit Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
(AR¥EET) (%) (AREEET) (%) (%) (B7%)
(percentage
(in RMB'm) (%) (in RMB'm) (%) (%) point)
HEERY Instant Noodles Business 1,775 27.00 7,097 23.95 9.55 3.05
RRER Beverage Business 16,353 32.10 15,444 31.95 5.88 0.15
Hitr Others 339 49.44 358 47.90 -5.25 1.54
@t Total 24,467 30.42 22,899 29.09 6.85 1.33
FEAER Instant Noodles Business

2023 F HEAMSEREESRERE S
ft- BEEBEZEZOER  MEAH
ORER mEHEEZTEE R - B
MEFGEBDELEENRE  TEGRRE
MEBHFELESR  TERTRARERE -
BEITFRABIPEMREESIERME] -
CCTVE R RERFEAE T EME T -
ZHAEBWRTEMEMARE R H
MINEE2BRE  UARHEFPERREL

M EE GHBERMEERK - 20K
s

2023 2 F A FEMEXINER287.93 18
AR FLZEIE2.84% @ (FEBE B
35.80% ° BN ERMBHER TR REE
EH - FEHEEENERLIIER3.05@R
DEIZE27.00% c R EFERLIRSS
B SHEMEX2023F2FNARF]
% 5 FE 16 38 A1) [A] B 32 55 46.10% % 20.08
BARE -

The instant noodle market faced changes such as shift in consumption
scenarios in 2023. The business continued to consolidate core products,
develop innovative flavors, accomodating the diverse needs of
consumers. The gross profit structure of the business also got improved
step by step, and active investment was made in the rejuvenation of the
brand and the improvement of food safety risk management, making
it a “A Cooperative Partner of China Space” for seven consecutive
years. CCTV even paid an in-depth visit at the instant noodle factory of
Master Kong, for a comprehensive visual, showing the entire production
process of Master Kong's “Space-Quality Chinese Noodles,” as well
as the heritage of Chinese food culture, providing consumers with a
delicious and reassuring promise.

For the full-year 2023, revenue of the instant noodle business was
RMB28.793 billion, with a year-on-year decline of 2.84%, accounting
for 35.80% of the Group’ s total revenue. During the period, due to
the decline in raw material prices and improvement in selling prices, the
gross profit margin of instant noodles grew 3.05 percentage points to
27.00% year-on-year. As a result of gross profit margin expansion, the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in the instant noodle
segment grew 46.10% year-on-year to RMB2.008 billion for the full-
year 2023.

B EER
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EEEFWEDHN | Management Discussion and Analysis

High-priced Noodles

“Roasted Beef Noodles” worked with its brand ambassador, Lay
Zhang and had an immersive tour at the factory production line,
thus enhancing and further consolidating the brand image. With a
deep insight into young consumers’ curiosity and their zeal for brand
collaborations, the new product “Roasted Beef Noodles with Ice Tea
Flavor” was launched, in association with “Tmall Super Brand Day."”
This sparked discussions on the trending topic on the magnitude of
billions of impressions across platforms, garnered millions of reveiw
videos, and the product quickly went viral. Grasping the trend for soup,
"Good Soup Noodles” was launched, and by signing with the brand
ambassador Charlie Zhou, brand awareness was rapidly enhanced.
“Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” once again collaborated with ambassador
Yang Zi to capture consumers’ minds and achieved good sales growth.
“Golden Stock Beef Noodles” worked with the IP “Minions”, to
strengthen interaction and communication with the young population,
highlighting impressive sales performance. The innovative flavor “Radish
and Beef Noodles” was launched, and by combining self-created dual IP
images, the brand trial rate was pushed up. “Master Kong BIG Bucket/
Packet” kept accomodating the needs of consumers for large portions.
“Master Kong Dried Noodles” stayed appealing to consumers with
its innovative water filter design and rich flavor. “Master Kong Mini
Bucket” captured the demand of consumers for the urge of “quick
snacky bite”, continuously enriched flavors, and greatly boosted product
sales.

Premium Noodles/Super-premium Noodles

“Soup Chef"” launched the new Thai flavor, “Tom Yum Goong Noodle”
and kept enriching the brand image of “Master in Every Type of

noou

Soups”. “Dried Noodles Collection” converged the signature techniques
of preparing dried noodles from all over the places for “noodles with
different cooking”, leading the trend to trade up for dried noodles,
collaborated with the IP of “Chinese New Flavors” on Xiaohongshu
(Little Red Book) to enhance brand awareness, and won the 2022-
2023 Instant Food Innovation Grand Award. “Yu-Pin Banquet” satisfied
consumers’ pursuit of high-quality products with truthful and big
chunks of meat. With the influence of the brand spokesperson Zhang
Wanyi, widespread topic dissemination was set in motion and a new
flavor, “Select Hot Beef Noodles”, was launched to shape the image of
a premium instant noodle brand. “Express Chef's Noodles” launched
with a new recipe by upgrading to wide noodles and introducing a new
flavor called “Divine Hot Broth Noodles”, attracting consumers to try for
a fresh taste.

B EER
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EEEFWEDH | Management Discussion and Analysis

Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

The large-portion product of “Master Kong 50% Plus” met consumers’
demand for high cost-effective products, focused on core flavors, and
realized a growth in sales volume. As Snack Noodles, the “Flavored and
Crunchy”, focused on the leisure snack market for students and a wider
population, came with a variety of specifications for the new flavor of
“grilled squid”, where a brand-new promotion campaign was rolled
out in assocation with the well-known IP “Pokémon” to consistently
enhance the brand awareness and brand preference.

Beverage Business

The beverage business was accelerating the strength of scale
advantages, with growth realized in categories of tea, juices, water,
and carbonated soft drinks, and following the trend of sugar-free and
health, launched a suite of products including sugar-free tea, sugar-free
carbonated soft drinks and sugar-free coffee.

For the full-year 2023, revenue from beverage business was RMB50.939
billion, with a year-on-year growth of 5.39%, accounting for 63.34%
of the Group' s total revenue. During the period, the gross profit margin
of beverages grew 0.15 percentage points year-on-year to 32.10%,
due to the decline in raw material prices and change of product-mix.
Because of the year-on-year increase in distribution cost rate, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company in the beverages segment
declined 8.57% year-on-year to RMB1.260 billion for the full-year 2023.

FRAR AR
2023 Annual Report F#§

15



-

EREFWEDHN | Management Discussion and Analysis

BER %

[ EREDEIKALZ JBEF g E AT — 1847
ERERR - BEERPIBRRESTE
PEFER  ZEFERENBMEITER
[REREK | REXDFEAEE Rz
RIEERF - [EEKARIOK/ BEZEI
B RERFEHEBS  SIBTXRER -
[RAZRF| B A ERBEINRRIEEN
[FMESFA I mERERINEE - [45]
BR/MBESRH  BFHREARE
BT al EERFAR | RL@FEF
CREER - [BERSRER B EE
BEANITEBEATFERNRE  BEET
FERAEOKBR - [BBERIEBEBIER
BRHRINEY  BAMBNRE - [4E%
TIRIBAMEBEABERRBE L
8 BEREHEBEENLE RIIBEEHE
BEEN2EL5Y . HORISLSEIL
M e

TR BA B

[BEALIREEATHER  FEY
XFEERTERRBH B KIEE EE
KEM - [AZFEREITTHEHNAMR
[BEERERRS | T RAFEEZ T UFE
BERERNE - RAIXKEREEES
RERBZE BAKEYETEBEX
RITHIP BEEmMBEEE -[BFA
LEREIREBERENSS BBREAR
R RMEFHIPIEERR] HE&
BEFEHEE  BAERKAN - Fm
[T IMAMERRBRRO R - 1RhmR
BB —RKELARXHBEBEER (X
FEIBRIEERARIFEEF LK
TR BARBEENRE-[72 ]2
TSR EmBEAL A LD
[EHE/MHBEER | Em

\

16 EEMEZERERLE

Y4

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

RTD Tea

“Master Kong Ice Tea” teamed up with the brand ambassador, Wang
Yibo, to create a visual blockbuster, while the self-owned catering
IP “Happy Friday” remained active throughout the year, solidifying
the brand'’s fashionable image for young vogue. “Tropical Flavor”
collaborated with Teens in Times to seriously tap into the Generation
Z. "Sugar-free Ice Tea”, with its flavor/packaging fully upgraded and
its presence fit into the healthy consumption trend, was leading the
development of the industry. The “Jasmine Series” successfully took
its stage through its brand story of “Seeking Jasmine by Fragrance”
performed by the virtual idol, Liu Yexi. “Green Tea” packaging/brand
image was restaged, collaborated with the new spokesperson, Wu
Lei, to release the new product “Sugar-Free Jasmine Green Tea”,
intensifying the brand image for health and the vitality of young touch.
“Master Kong Peach Oolong Tea” leveraged the theme of “Too Tasty
to Resist” to communicate with the young demographic and continued
to promote a youthful flavor. “Green Plum Green Tea” leveraged the
blockbuster of “Super Mario” to enhance brand awareness. “Pure
Sugar-free Tea Beverage"” collaborated with Xinhua Bookstore’s Cultural
and Creative Select campaign to hold a crossover marketing event,
achieving hundreds of millions of exposures across the entire network,
attracting millions of consumers to interact, and launched a new flavor
of Alpine Oolong.

Carbonated Soft Drinks

“Pepsi-Cola” closely echoed with the Spring Festival occasion, kept
on with the collaboration with Mirinda and 7UP to jointly launch the
festive packaging of the “Pepsi Auspicious Creatures LTO Can”. “Pepsi’s
Concept Store” staged an all-out upgrade in the metaverse. “Pepsi
Music Academy” continued to reach the campus community from all
angles on the trending list for the topic of the 10th anniversary. The
“Enjoy Food with Pepsi” turned up the communication volume for the
gastronomic pairing occasions and created the IP of “Pepsi WOW" by
collaborating with pairing platforms, developing consumption habits
for the products. “Pepsi No Sugar” focused on the essential sugar-
free scenarios, kept calling for young consumers through marketing
campaign of “Instant Win Prize Under the Lid” and collaberation with
the mobile game IP, “League of legends”, and expanded product
appeal. The new product, “Pepsi ZS Sheng”, enhanced the refreshing
taste of carbonation, seized the lane in a new category and gained
popularity among consumers with a sensation. “Mirinda” was naming
the 4th season of the “Great Escape”, forging synergy between online
and offline offering to enhance interaction with consumers. “7UP"
branding and packaging was restaged in all angles, and launched the
flavor of sugar-free citrus lemon as a trial run to the market.
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Juices

The Chinese juice of “Rock Candy Pear” collaborated with the
Dunhuang Museum IP to promote the education on occasion of
drinking for moistening the throat for a refreshing voice, driven by
Chinese history and culture. “Plum Juice with Vintage Tangerine
Peel” was launched in March, highlighting the benefits of vintage
tangerine peel for the effect of relieving summer heat by quenching
thirst and of pairing with meals by refreshing palate, and achieved
sales growth. Western-style fruit juices, “Fresh Orange”, “Peach”, and
"Crystal Grape” were independently branded with restaged flavors
and packaging, achieving precision marketing for different flavors.
“Honey Pomelo” was upgraded in its power of product, with royal
jelly added. The “Tropicana” launched the new product of “Sunshine
Orange”, adding to a rich lineup of mixed fruit flavors, and offered large
packagings. “Tropicana 100% " highlighted the benefit of “Brazilian
Orange Extract Rich in Vitamin C” for communication. The newly
launched product “Carrot Vegetable Juice” won the top honor of “Three
Stars” Award from ITI (International Taste Institute).

Bottled Water

“Master Kong Bottled Water” joined hands with One Foundation
and and CCTV Network to donate for construction of rural children’s
sports grounds, showcasing a brand image of passion for public good
and responsibility. “Drink Boiled Water” communicated “drinking
boiled water for starting on anything”, by applying to the context of
Generation Z, expanded the drinking occasions of starting to work, the
school starts, starting to have fun, and starting on the game, among
other “Starting+" scenarios, which caused widespread dissemination
among the young population. “Aquafina” signed contract with players
of China Women's National Football Team as brand ambassadors,
collaborated with the variety show IP of “We Are the Champions 2" to
enhance brand awareness and preferences, seized the outdoor growth
momentum, and expanded into home and hotel drinking occasions,
operating on a full-suite of specifications. “Soda Bubble Water”
emphasized the product taste and rejuvenation attribute, and achieved
double-digit sales growth by marketing through social media platforms
with wish-list as consumption occasions to quickly enhance brand
awareness and preference.
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Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics Drinks

“Starbucks Ready-to-Drink Coffee” upgraded the packaging of
Starbucks Select across the whole line and launched the sugar-free
coffee in PET package of “Pike Place” and “Starbucks Refreshing Tea”
series, continuously strengthened the competitiveness of PET product
line. “Bernachon Coffee” light and fresh series suited consumers’ desires
for more authentic coffee taste and low-fat. The functional beverage
"Gatorade” actively collaborated with national sports associations and
covered sports venues, by leveraging the influence of international
and local top athletes to firmly grasp the sports crowd. In the field of
urban sports and daily hydration, efforts were made to actively explore
the market of segmented categories, expand the coverage of brand
audience, and create a comprehensive supplement product matrix.
“Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” focused on operation in core
flavors. “Xiao Lao Duo Duo”, the refreshing lactobacillus beverage,
continued its high-range double-digit growth and percolated into young
population through the cooperation with the IP, DUCKYO.

The Group actively promotes digital transformation of finance. With the
help of newly established financial shared service center, it deepened
the internal control system, established risk prevention and control
mechanism that adapts to the digital environment, and gradually
promoted the integration of operation and finance. It effectively
supported the strategic implementation and sustainable development
of the group; at the same time, it adhered to a prudent cash strategy
with well controlled capital expenditures and effectively promoted asset
activation, which is expected to generate stable net cash inflows.

During the year, the Group generated a net cash inflow of RMB5.495
billion from operating activities and a net cash outflow of RMB3.724
billion from investing activities, including the cash receipts of RMB213
million from asset activation. The net cash outflow from financing
activities was RMB7.319 billion, resulting a net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents of RMB5.15 billion (including long-term time deposits).

18 EMEZERERAR
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The Group continued to maintain a robust financial structure through
effective control on the account receivables, account payables and
inventories, with sufficient cash holdings. As of December 31, 2023,
the Group's bank deposits and cash amounted to RMB14.738 billion,
with a decrease of RMB5.150 billion versus December 31, 2022. As of
December 31, 2023, the Group's interest-bearing borrowings amounted
to RMB13.729 billion, with a decrease of RMB3.890 billion versus
December 31, 2022. The net cash totaled RMB1.010 billion, with a
decrease of RMB1.260 billion versus December 31, 2022. At the end of
the period, the ratio of borrowings denominated in foreign currency to
RMB was 33%:67% (The foreign currency-denominated borrowings are
primarily 5-year unsecured notes issued on September 24, 2020, with
an aggregate principal of US$500 million), versus 31%:69% at the end
of the previous year. The ratio of long-term to short-term borrowings
was 38%:62% versus 48%:52% at the end of the previous year.

The Group's total assets and total liabilities registered RMB53.150
billion and RMB35.927 billion, respectively as of December 31, 2023,
with a decrease of RMB5.300 billion and RMB5.706 billion respectively
versus December 31, 2022; The debt ratio was 67.60%, down by 3.63
percentage points versus December 31, 2022; The gearing ratio grew
from -16.97% as of December 31, 2022 to -7.27% in the current
period.

B th & Financial Ratio

12A31H 12H31H
2023 F 2022 %
December 31 December 31
2023 2022
HPK on [E 4 Turnover of finished goods 19.53 days/H 20.77 days/H
JRE W BR R R 85 R Turnover of account receivables 7.69 days/H 8.93 days/H
et & Current ratio 0.70 Times/fZ 0.76 Times/f&
BELLXR(EBERENEEE) Debt ratio (Total liabilities to Total assets) 67.60% 71.23%

FEABEEARERGFHEEMRSE  Gearing ratio (Net borrowings to
RN BIRR R L &) | shareholders’ equity)’ -7.27% -16.97%

' FEBHEFAEREALXRERYE !
HERBLHEE  AERERRUTEE
AET AR R IR AR (B 2 EARKER

Long-term time deposits were also taken into account for the calculation
of the Group's grearing ratio, as management believed that this basis of
calculation reflected more accurately the Group's capital structure.
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The Group had 66,807 employees, as of December 31, 2023.

Under the guidance of “Serving the success of business”, the Group
stays committed to the sustainable development of organization and
talents through an efficient integrated human resources system. Efforts
were made to facilitate performance growth by establishing a learning
organization.

The Leadership Empowerment Center customized leadership
development courses to support the management of the Group. In
2023, the Group won the Annual Forbes Inspiring Case Award and
8 awards for corporate talent development rated by authoritative
institutions such as CEIBS (China Europe International Business School),
Beisen Cloud Human Resources, OnDemand Consulting and HRflag. In
the Future, the Group will continually improve the talent development
system, and accelerate digital transformation in HR.

Collaborations with universities and colleges were strengthened and
the integration of industry and education was implemented. Enhanced
cooperation was established with 111 universities and colleges
nationwide. In total, 39 teaching and training bases and 9 dedicated
educational cooperation classes were set up across the country. In active
response to national policies, we actively conducted over a hundred
recruitment campaigns, leveraging new media to promote our employer
image as a youthful team and offering students and faculty the
opportunity to get a closer look at our company. This reached millions
of potential candidates and recruited thousands of fresh graduates
throughout the year, while also hosting thousands of college students
for internships.

Partnerships were deepened with selected top universities both
domestically and internationally, aiming to foster Industry-University-
Research Collaboration, facilitate international exchanges, and actively
exert cross-sectoral influences. In the first half of the year, the Group
maintained close collaboration in talent cultivation with various
departments of Peking University and the School of Economics and
Management at Tsinghua University, jointly rolling out the Integrative
Practical Projects (IPP) to explore the Group’s business strategy. In the
second half of the year, the summer internship programs were resumed
with Stanford GMIX and Waseda University. Additionally, social
practice were restarted with Yuanpei College, Peking University and
other leading universities domestically and internationally, as part of a
prospective deployment for attracting future high-end talents.
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In 2024, it is expected that economic development will be stable and
domestic demand will be released under the tone of “Consumption-
Promotion Year”. The Group remains committed to its strategy to
“Consolidate, Reform and Develop” and will keep working to expand
and strengthen its business for the domestic market. The instant noodle
business will continue to meet the diversified demands of consumers
with products that come with multiple price bands, various sizes and
diversified flavors, and keep galvanizing the expansion of the scale
of the industry. The beverage business will continue to focus on core
categories, offer joyful and healthy products to accommodate different
consumption needs in a variety of scenarios, and accelerate the strength
of scale advantages.

The Group will continue to invest in product innovation, brand
building, channel construction, increase investment in basic research,
accelerate the development of talent echelons, strengthen system
platform integration, and accelerate the construction of projects for
digital transformation, food safety, and sustainable development. At
the same time, it will drive business growth, better serve customers and
consumers, create value for shareholders, and establish a comprehensive
food and beverage “National Brand” that is trusted by the government,
delightful for partners, and reassuring for consumers.
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This report aims to present the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong,” “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG"”) in 2023 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as included in this
annual report.

Report Preparation Standards

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Report Scope

Organizational scope of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the
organizational scope of this report covers the main office areas
and regular operating plants of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. in China, including the headquarters of Master Kong, the
Instant Noodles Business, the Master Kong Beverages Business,
the Pepsi Beverages Business and the Bakery Business, covering
the Company’s major ESG management policies and performance,
with no significant changes from the previous year.

Time frame of the report: Unless otherwise stated, the time frame
of the report is 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Reporting Principles

This report focuses on the Company's ESG philosophy and
commitment, and reports on our specific practices and key
achievements in the ESG area. This report adheres to the following
reporting principles:

Materiality: This report has been prepared by identifying key
stakeholders and their ESG issues of concern in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and relevant documents, and
making targeted disclosures in the section headed “Stakeholder
Communication and Key Issues Materiality Assessment” of this
report based on the relative level of importance of their issues of
concern.
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Quantitative: This report uses quantitative information to present
environmental and social Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The
measures, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools,
and sources of conversion factors used for the KPIs in this report
are described where applicable.

Balance: This report provides objective disclosure of both positive
and negative information to ensure that the content presents an
unbiased view of the Company’s ESG performance during the
reporting period.

Consistency: The information disclosed in this report follows
the same statistical methodology as previous years and individual
changes have been explained to ensure consistency.

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
ESG governance and disclosure. The Company has established
the Sustainable Development Committee to assist the Board in
guiding and monitoring the development and implementation
of the Group's environmental, social and governance tasks. The
Sustainable Development Committee is chaired by the Chairman
and CEO of the Company, with members of the Operating
Committee as members.

The Company has been exploring and refining its performance
in the ESG area by the implementation and integration of ESG
management principles and strategies in the Company’s risk
management and daily operation system as well as extensive
and in-depth communication with various stakeholders through
various channels. In 2023, the Company complied with ESG-
related laws and regulations in its operations and integrated ESG
management into its strategic development and daily operations.
The Company has reviewed the results of its materiality
assessment of ESG key issues, and the Board and Sustainability
Development Committee are actively accessing and managing the
related risks, opportunities and situation of each ESG key issues.
The management practices and performance on key ESG issues
are highlighted in this report.
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The Company has set environmental development targets
relating to its business to better review and manage the
Company'’s environmental impact, and the Company’s Board and
Sustainability Development Committee responsible for regularly
reviewing and conducting evaluations on the achievement of
targets.

1.  Master Kong Sustainable Development Concept

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage
Culture” and the vision of “Being a Highly Esteemed Food &
Beverage Company”, Master Kong upholds the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”,
consistently adhering to product quality. It promotes low-
carbon transformation, builds a talented workforce, and
supports community development. It integrates the idea
of "Healthy Management” with its corporate sustainable
development strategy, formulating five satisfaction
strategies: “consumers, society, partners, employees, and
shareholders”, and actively fulfils its social responsibility. We
continue to explore and refine our performance in the areas
of ESG, and closely communicates with our stakeholders,
sharing our corporate values with them to enhance social
well-being and enjoy “LIFE + DELICACY"” together with our
stakeholders.

Master Kong believes that “sustainable development is
good development”. The year 2023 is the first year for fully
implementing the guiding principles from the Party’s 20th
National Congress, and a critical year for carrying forward
the 14th Five-Year Plan. As a national brand enterprise,
Master Kong integrates its corporate actions into the
overall national development strategy. It ensures that the
Company's development resonates with the interests of
consumers, closely follows the development trend of the
industry under the background of the “Carbon Peaking
and Carbon Neutrality” strategy, transforms the national
strategic potential into its own development efficiency.
Master Kong strengthens cooperation and synergy among
internal and external resources, continuously driving the
industry towards green and low-carbon development.
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BIETE R © innovative contributions in the field of corporate sustainable

development.

\

SR mIEHE  BEERAI
WEMSEE
Founding on brand integrity,
seeking product innovation,
meeting the needs of market

MRRRES  ToEDL -
EIETHER
Remembering the food safety vision,
faithful to the original corporate
values, looking forward to the
development of the industry

EINERAS  BETESE Win-Win partnersh®>
ULy = 1F [+ ) N -
FEREEE BELR
Small actions ending up as a great
blessing, spreading love, holding

EXRREE  BERERE
ERET AR
Focusing on environmental
protection management,
advocating green development,
benefiting today and tomorrow

BEUARE  BEFAERE
HAMEEE
Sticking to people-oriented belief,
growing hand in hand with partners,
creating social values together

BREM{H ESG A KR OMETS
Master Kong's Five Core Tasks of ESG
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2.

ESG Governance Structure and Actions

The Sustainable Development Committee of Master Kong
is chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the Company, with
members of the Operating Committee as members, and
comprises four working groups: Beverage Resources, Instant
Noodle Resources, Product Research and Development,
and Communication. The Committee guides work
implementation and performance evaluation on the
basis of a clear corporate ESG strategy and development
direction, regularly deliberates and makes decisions on work
objectives, report disclosure and related material matters, and
reports on work progress to the Board of Directors. Each
working group continues to promote the implementation
of relevant projects in accordance with its annual work
plan and reports regularly to the Sustainable Development
Committee and the Company’s senior management on the
progress of its work.

] Beverage Resources Working Group: Focusing
on water conservation, energy saving and emission
reduction, plastic reduction and packaging
management, the Working Group actively promotes
special projects for beverage PET bottle weight
reduction and light weight bottle caps.

] Instant Noodle Resources Working Group:
Focusing on water conservation, energy saving and
emission reduction management, the Working Group
focuses on promoting special projects such as oil
boiler waste gas recovery, boiler emission reduction
and water recycling to improve the Company's energy
management.

u Product Research and Development Working
Group: Focusing on the development and expansion
of healthy and nutritious products, the Working
Group actively promotes special research projects
on salt reduction, sugar reduction, fat reduction and
nutritional fortification to meet consumers’ needs for
nutrition and health.

26 EHEZERERAT
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n Communication Working Group: Focusing on
enhancing the Company's sustainable development
impact, the Working Group works with various
working groups to introduce external resources
and to organize activities such as healthy diet
promotion and healthy research cooperation from
the perspective of food safety, healthy China and
sustainable development, and continues to promote
the Comprehensive Carbon Inventory Project, actively
promoting domestic and international cross-industry
communication and cooperation.

Master Kong has formulated the Annual Bonus Measures
and Reward and Punishment Management Measures.
The annual performance-based compensation for senior
management is linked to the ESG performance indicators,
including but not limited to legal and compliant operations,
anti-corruption management, production safety (including
but not limited to safety accidents, safety violation penalties,
etc.), energy conservation and environmental protection
(including but not limited to pollutant emissions, energy
consumption management, environmental protection
violation penalties, etc.). The achievement of ESG
performance indicators is directly related to the annual
bonus amount for senior management. Punitive measures
would be taken against management personnel involved
in corruption or non-compliant operations, with a certain
amount of performance-based compensation deducted
from their current year’s remuneration based on the severity
of the situation.

EgmEERr 27
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Sustainable Development Actions and Performance

During the reporting period, we carried out the following
main actions and achieved the corresponding results:

Attendance at a UN high-end conference:

n In June, the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC)
held a closed-door high-level dialogue in Shanghai
with the theme “Climate Action and Financial
Innovation for Sustainable Development Goals.”
Master Kong was the only food and beverage

enterprise representative invited to participate.

[RIFTENEESRAF N IFRHEERR BRI ZEAMI SRR

Closed-Door High-Level Dialogue “Climate Action and Financial Innovation for Sustainable Development Goals.”

9 A - EZADE FE B FE R
cESAMNGE  BH5E
5N B A% R B — —
% %8 H[Forward Faster
Early Mover  5£173% |18
SRR MEEIRE - Wik
AR B B R SR B S Y
PEWER BEBEER
#4845 (United Nations
Global Compact® &
FUNGC) e £ 5 3E -
B £ 18 %27 = (Ms. Sanda
Ojiambo) 7 = 1& % ] %
BRREBLS -
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u In September, Master Kong was invited to attend a
high-level United Nations conference, where it was
announced on-site that the Company became the
only Chinese food and beverage enterprise to receive
the title of “Forward Faster Early Mover - Pioneer,”
and acted as the Chinese enterprise representative to
share the practical experience of enterprise sustainable
development with Ms. Sanda Ojiambo, Assistant
Secretary-General of the United Nations and Executive
Director of the United Nations Global Compact
(UNGQ).
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GEBMERTHENES
United Nations Secretary-General, Anténio Guterres,
Delivering the Speech

[Forward Faster Early Mover * %£17% |TE55 4G &
List of “Forward Faster Early Mover — Pioneer”

108 2nM&xE  BE
18 2 T 57 2 B R &Y
=RAIFAMEREE® -
IF & F 2 B[ Forward
Faster Early Mover® %
TEIER RIS
——REETEERAD
E

In October, Master Kong attended the high-level
closed-door roundtable meeting during Ms. Sanda
Ojiambo’s visit in China, and was officially awarded
the title of “Forward Faster Early Mover — Pioneer”
and also the only enterprise to receive the title at the
meeting.

RE REBRLZIHEESHAMAMERESH
Ms. Sanda Ojiambo’s Attendance to the High-Level Closed-Door Roundtable Meeting

BEHERT :

RN 7 B ARt &
HAEEERETLEE
TS =[BRS
RE - RE[H P AESE
BIFT{REE | 58IA -

Gaining social recognition:

Master Kong attended the Third Carbon Neutrality
Industry Conference in Boao, which jointly hosted by
the China Energy Conservation Association and the
China Quality Certification Center. Master Kong was
honored with the “Innovative Enterprise in Carbon
Neutrality (%= FI<EIL BIFT 1 2)" award.

FRAR AR
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Master Kong was Honored with the “Innovative Enterprise in Carbon Neutrality (f R F14813 A3 2)" Award
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TREHREZEDFELRBELEE
Chief Executive Officer Richard Chen Yinjang attended
the Boao Forum and delivered a speech
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Master Kong stood out from over a hundred
participating enterprises and was awarded the
“Outstanding Environmental Practice Enterprise
Platinum Award (BHIRIREITREAREAS )" at
the “First Greater Bay Area Outstanding Corporate
Social Responsibility (ESG) Enterprise Selection (/&%
FE—EEFHEEMTESC)EETE)" event.

& i E e I ETAT 1

P M EN-—E&XA ) 2Rk R A

~ ¥
1 } .Ir-. | 1 A . 'f

[TTETE

[RERFE—EEFSHLERMEESQ) RETEED
"First Greater Bay Area Outstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility (ESG) Enterprise Selection” Event

Master Kong attended the 4th Forum for Credit
System Construction of Chinese Cities Carbon Road
China ESG Practice and Development Forum, and was
awarded the “Xinhua Credit Golden Orchid Cup (i
FE({Z AL MBI -Leading Case of Carbon Peaking
and Carbon Neutrality for its study titled “Addressing
Climate Change, Pursuing Green Development -
Master Kong's New Path to Low-Carbon Development
(RERIERE L, KRG EER — — BB EREREN
BE1E).”
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“Xinhua Credit Golden Orchid Cup (¥1ZE{2 B¢ BI#)" - Leading Case of Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality

" REEAEENEK = Master Kong's new sustainable model was successfully
W AE[2023 @M T selected for the 2023 Forbes China ESG Innovation
ESG AT AT | - Enterprise Selection.”

= __".'__ 4 A
@ F'orbes .
| - g
‘QC g

& CONFERENCE

v \WARD CEREMONY DINMEFR

¥ DINMER
DINNER \‘&» .

JERM 8 AGE[ 2023 7870 87 h B ESG Al 1 3 51E |

Master Kong was Selected for “2023 Forbes China ESG Innovation Enterprise Selection”

" REMERREEETK = Recognizing consumers’ demands, Master Kong
VAT 8157 A K 8% [HE B E prioritized “innovation” and “low-carbon” in product
mEER EENEF optimization, ranking top three in the “Most Chosen
A PEEEE+KE Brands in China” for 11 consecutive years.

BB B = -

Eaf< FEmnn

:_"' ﬁﬁgﬁﬁnnm

£ (w7 )

FERM SR 1 FF [ P EEBEE EERM A=

Master Kong Ranked Top Three in the “Most Chosen Brands In China” for 11 Consecutive Years

B EER
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Master Kong was invited to attend the 2023 People’s
Daily China Brand Forum, where it shared its
improvement strategy and insights on providing new
value to consumers, and was awarded the 2023 China
Brand Innovation Cases (2023 1 El47 42 Bl Z211).

2023 rp 5 5 peied

HEASREE MHPEIMItE

2023 FH Bl @ m B IR 5
At the 2023 China Brand Forum

" RAVELFEBARBRE
OE R W AR
THEEE HEHRE
SEEERIATEMNF
BErEdeEdnEn
1 BEARBRBEED
20231R3% - (g RORE
(ESG) FEZEH -

P 2 B 015

PR ETEETSERIBERS
At the China Corporate Social Responsibility Forum

B 3 somsmsman
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Master Kong attended the China Corporate Social
Responsibility Forum hosted by the Economic and
Social Department of People’s Daily, with the theme
of "Practicing Social Responsibility, Promoting High-
Quality Brand Development (74L& & 1T, H#E) T IE
SHEE%E)". Master Kong was awarded the 2023
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Annual
Case by People’s Daily.

TR R RN R

BMERITREBREERAERELES

Executive Vice President of CEO Office of Master Kong, Frank

WANG, Delivering the Speech at the Forum
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Master Kong was Awarded the
2023 Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Annual Case

= i
ARV EESCR AR )R E
ESGI Ut} SEMERERR]
Master Kong won Harvard Business
Review’s Ram Charan Management
Practice Award"” for Corporate ESG

Master Kong won Harvard Business
Review’s “Ram Charan Management
Practice Award” for corporate ESG
for its innovative ESG practices that
combine environmental protection,
carbon reduction, and online
business scenarios.

Master Kong initiated the
“Reimagine with Bottles and Live
with all Life Forms (E =B %S
E YA
the Global Development Initiative for

campaign, leveraging

Sustainable Development Goals (GDI
for SDG) project —"Alleviate Marine
Plastic Pollution and Help Low-
Carbon Economic Transformation.”
It also implemented the first
commercialized rPET project under
GDI for SDG - the innovative
“Turning Beverage Bottles into
Luggage” model - won the
19th China Global Awards for
Excellence in Public Relations
Social Responsibility Gold Award,
the "2023 Golden Flag Award
Environmental Protection Grand
Award (2023 HEERFRER TS
A#£)", and the “2023 ROI Business
Creative Marketing Silver Awards

(023 R EMFEIBmMEAEIRE)".
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“Low-Carbon Friendly Action” Poster

[2023 @R EFFEAIE mIRHEIRE
2023 ROI Business Creative Marketing
Silver Awards (2023 & 1% E 8B R hE4A
R 4%)"

RERJIABELELEETRD R [2023 & HEBRFERERDIHAE]
China Global Awards for Excellence in 2023 Golden Flag Award Environmental Protection Grand

Public Relations Social Responsibility Gold Award (2023 % JESIRTRELE 235 K 48)"

\ Award
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n Master Kong acquired the “Value Cooperation Partner
({BEAIEER" award through its open and inclusive
cooperative attitude as well as its robust and strong
operational capabilities.

[MBEGIERMH | AREREL T ERMEMBREBEAE
“Value Cooperation Partner (B{E& 1ER )" Award and Kuowei LIU,
the Chief Financial Officer of Master Kong, Head of the Awarded Department

NEMEELTEENRRREERM
Ak

FERED B E A B E FRE -
MAZEREERFEMEES
SEER WGBS EE
FEHEMOBEMENR - Sk
TERELEEBERNFR -
NEMEMNZMEELE K-
20234 - HMEFFERT R
ESGRIRERBH N A AL
RRFEETNEZMY -

4,

Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues
Materiality Assessment

Through continuous communication with various
stakeholders through different channels according to
relevant systems and processes, Master Kong actively
understands the expectations and requirements of our
stakeholders and strives to meet their needs in a practical
manner while developing our business. In 2023, we
reviewed the importance of each key ESG issue to our
business development and to our stakeholders.

EfEER 35
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BRRERBREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

KHE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

HIER
Suppliers

B REEKE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

BREEHA#E
Universities
and Research
Institutions

A28 16 BA 75 55 AR

Descriptions of Stakeholders

HRAMEETAERE  BFRENBEAIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HLERADEZ T E RS EE [ ) 5 F RIS HOERADF 2
BHIAE

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company on a regular basis

EERERMEET S REERORE  HHE
Gl

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distribute various branded products of
Master Kong

R E S EHEEEYE  BHRBALAMS
M - AfEREs

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally supply production materials, accessories
and office supplies to Master Kong

A BFRPI R R - B BR R BEE
ZEEHE

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

BEREN S AR A EREN SRS - BRA - B
N A R EA R E N S

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

BEMMAMAR  HEAR - EIFENERE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

BERAN SR A ERRNASE -
1#

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B - FRAEHR

M a5 AERE T KO BT SR Ol R

BEEEE
Communication Channels
and Responses

REAE® DEFHR  EELE  BES
General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BIES  BRg BIHI - EIFM.
PERBTIYME

Staff activities, staff representative
congress, staff training, staff manuals,
corporate publications, etc.

EmRE - TERAF  BRAERAEEH
5%

Product exhibitions, industry surveys,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

ARABREGE  BRESERXH  JRED

# o
Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and

visits, etc.

ERERF - XWX - BERBT - FEEE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

ELEGH  XEEE  FEeERESHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HERES ETEREED RmEd - i
BEEXRE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

EREEE B T#EE g - B2
mEMMAERE S

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

1B
Xt

Stakeholder Expectations and Responses
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Level of Importance of key ESG Issues
- REOEMERERR %= IV. FROM PEACE OF MIND TO NUTRITION AND HEALTH,

(BB RIFEE] ENJOY “LIFE + DELICACY”

1. RRR2ERHER 1. Food Safety Control and Construction
ANEFARRREREEATE The Company deeply recognizes that “food safety is
EEZAR] [ERERT R the foundation of corporate sustainability” and “food
EHEEHRENEEER - safety” is the foundation to build customers’ brand trust.
BPE(PEAREIMER SR In compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
TREYEREER - LUSBE Republic of China and other laws and regulations, we
ARl FERERREZEAR place consumers at the center of our operations, adhere
[ERRMEEE » AN E to a “zero tolerance” approach towards food safety risks,
TERER BXeN Em and are committed to enhancing our risk management by
HIIEEBEZ A AEIEEACER improving the ethics and professionalism of our staff and
fEEKE  BOHEEEED strengthening our product process management, striving
B[R - At BPIE T s to promote the construction of a “healthy China”. In this
FEANEE S FEESCERM connection, we have been making continuous efforts in the
BRLTEE T EKFE : following areas to continuously improve Master Kong's food

safety management.

1) MABREHRBRA - E 1) Increase investment in the area of food safety.
Bl (& 4 8 & AS5E T A Master Kong has invested RMB500 million in the
BB 2 ST Al 37 A B B establishment of the Innovation R&D Centre, which
RmTa2fEd ol has been accredited by China National Accreditation
ZARLDESEFRAR Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), with over

BT
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1,500 food safety risk monitoring indicators and over
3.5 million quality tests per year. The Company’s
food safety and quality control team has nearly 2,000
staff, who strictly monitor the process of the industry
chain through the whole-process inspection including
external inspection of raw material suppliers, food
safety assessment inspection, inspection of incoming
raw materials, production process inspection,
inspection of finished products, and market sampling
of products. In 2023, the Company focused on
increasing product quality stability in the factory and
strengthening the construction of raw material risk
research (grease), microbial control, adulteration
and rapid inspection technology research, digital
intelligence system, etc., while using high-quality
academic resources at home and abroad to promote
high-end research and development of food safety
technology and the transformation of research and
development results, in order to gradually improve the
food safety level of the industry.

Improve the internal food safety management
system. The Company actively introduces external
consultant resources to improve the authority
of laboratory data of Food Safety Research and
Management Center, strengthens the basic skills
trainings of front-line monitoring personnel and
increases the monitoring frequency of product quality
indicators, and promotes the review of Master Kong's
own standard “K-GMP" (Good Manufacturing
Practices) to strengthen the construction of food
safety and quality management system. The Company
establishes and gradually optimizes the food safety
management structure, and closely cooperates
with the inspection and application research group,
the prevention management group, the access
management group, the food/beverage audit group
and the system integration group to realize the whole-
chain management and whole-process supervision of
the food safety system.
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Product traceability and recall management.
Master Kong formulates the Management Measures
for Retrospective Withdrawal of Products for each
business, tracing various factors in the production
process, promptly recovering products with quality
defects and analyzing the causes, and working out
improvement countermeasures to improve product
quality. Each business treats the withdrawn products
as scrapped products according to the Company'’s
regulations and reports to the local market supervision
and management department. The Company
also cooperates with suppliers and customers to
strengthen the construction of product retrospective
withdrawal management system under the guidance
of professional organizations. Each factory of Master
Kong carries out at least one retrospective recall drill
every year and evaluates the results of the drill. For
the Instant Noodles Business, 14 factories launch
the MRP traceability system to achieve information
digitalization of the traceability system. Master Kong
Beverages Business and Pepsi Beverages Business
carry out “from raw materials to finished products”
and “from finished products to raw materials” drills,
and one simulated traceability drill respectively to
achieve the full coverage of product traceability
and recall across the entire production chain. The
Bakery Business develops the Product Recall Control
Procedures and Product Traceability Operation
Methods based on its own product features to achieve
the traceability of food safety information in forward
and reverse directions, the controllable processes and
the accountability. In 2023, there were no product
recalls for safety and health reasons in products sold
or shipped.
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Promote the construction of the digitalization
system of food safety. Master Kong penetrates
digital technology into the factory operation and
establishes the information management system.
In order to secure the effective implementation
of protection for food safety, Master Kong has
successively planned and launched digital information
systems such as Laboratory Information Management
System (LIMS), Product Lifecycle Management (PLM)
and Business Intelligence (BI), and monitored the
entire factory area and production process. In addition,
Master Kong collaborates with external professional
organizations to jointly develop the “Detecting Oil in
Oil Tanks by Using Near-Infrared Analysis Technology”,
further promotes digital construction, in order to
ensure the oil quality control in the production
process.

External cooperation to improve social food
safety governance. Master Kong cooperates with
external professional institutions and universities
on food safety, product application development,
process optimization and food safety risk research,
helping to improve the level of social food safety
governance. The Company was approved to set
up Shanghai Instant Food Engineering Technology
Research Center to undertake food safety testing,
research and development, scientific trainings and
provide authoritative and impartial third-party services
to the society. Relying on this platform, Master Kong
makes use of quality academic resources at home
and abroad to promote the high-end R&D and the
results transformation of food safety technology, and
actively provides useful references for the formulation
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and amendment of national food safety standards.
We continue to collaborate with external professional
sensory evaluation companies and laboratories
to establish Master Kong's key odor profiles for
tea beverages and water, and to provide sensory
evaluations and physicochemical proficiency testing
services for carbonated and non-carbonated products
at Pepsi Beverages Business' factories. We also
cooperate with external professional organizations
on microbiology projects, including microbial strain
identification for spoilage products, microbial
identification in natural mineral water plants, microbial
proficiency testing, and professional skills trainings for
microbial analysis personnel, to continuously improve
our team’s microbiological testing and analytical
capabilities.

Emphasis on food safety talents training.
Master Kong selects outstanding graduates from key
universities across the country with a major in Food
Science and Safety and focuses on increasing the
proportion for complex industry talents. The Company
engages quality control managers from factories
across the country and provides those outstanding
graduates with special trainings in areas such as food
safety standards and regulations, analysis and testing,
risk monitoring and assessment auditing, and guides
staff in the supply chain departments and quality
control departments of each business to implement
the “food safety first” concept in their work, so as to
achieve the goal of overall food safety management.
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Enhance the food safety awareness of all staff.
Master Kong focuses on driving upstream and
downstream partners and consumers to enhance
food safety awareness in a lateral way. We have held
the food safety publicity month theme campaign for
10 consecutive years. During the year, based on the
theme of “securing the bottom line of food safety and
maintaining accountability”, we held various activities
including product traceability drills and food safety
quality activities. We work with suppliers to carry
out the full food safety management, continue to
strengthen food safety risk investigation, and go out
into communities and schools to provide food safety
science popularization for consumers, and continue to
build “transparent” factories to achieve visible food
safety quality. During the year, the Instant Noodles
Business led 43 suppliers to carry out traceability
drills and 50 food safety quality activities, and eight
factories of the Pepsi Beverages Business held more
than 130 internal and external food safety theme
activities.

Food safety system certification. In 2023, all
normal operation factories' of the Instant Noodles
Business were certified under the FSSC 22000 (Food
Safety Certification System) and ISO 22000 (Food
Safety Management System), and maintained good
operation of the food safety management system.
The Instant Noodles Business continued to improve
its “AIB+" internal audit terms according to the
American Institute of Baking (AIB) audit standard,
based on which 11 factories were audited, which
further reduced the food safety risks in the production
of instant noodles. In addition, Jiangmen plant of the
Instant Noodles Business was certified under the food
safety system of the Hazard Analysis Critical Control
Point (HACCP). All factories of Master Kong Beverages
Business and Pepsi Beverages Business in normal
operation were certified under ISO 22000, FSSC
22000 and HACCP, among which 59 plants of Master
Kong Beverages Business and 32 Aquafina plants
were annually certified by the National Sanitation

Normal operation factories are factories that operated for over 6 months
without production halted or shuttered businesses
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Foundation (NSF) and reviewed by The International
Bottled Water Association (IBWA). All plants of the
Master Kong Beverages Business and Pepsi Beverages
Business participated in and successfully passed the
AIB annual food safety audit. In May 2023, Chongging
Pepsi was awarded the 2022 Global Beverage Quality
and Food Safety Excellence Award (Bronze Award)
(2022 FEEHHEHEENRMX 2 EHE (71]))
by PepsiCo International. The plants of the Bakery
Business obtained I1SO 9001 (Quality Management
System) and I1SO 22000 certifications, and maintained
a normal operation of the system in 2023 and passed
the 2023 annual system supervision and audit.

ERAFEEERERMEENRRLT S P R(HHE)
The Global Beverage Quality and Food Safety Excellence Award (Bronze Award)
(EHHHEENARMEL 2 F#E (§742)) Granted to Chongqing Pepsi
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Publicity and Implementation through Food Safety
and Quality Assurance Trainings

In order to improve the food safety awareness of all staff
and strengthen fostering quality and food safety culture,
we carry out the food safety and quality assurance trainings
for all quality assurance staff at least once a year, covering
food safety laws and regulations, quality management skills,
food inspection skills, supplier quality audit, product process
and quality control, new product process management,
food retroactive recall and emergency management, etc.,
and conduct food safety knowledge competitions, job skills
competitions, quality improvement proposals and other
activities.

Master Kong carries out product safety and quality
assurance trainings for all suppliers every year, including
supplier conferences, food safety publicity month activities,
online video trainings, email advocacy, etc. During the
year, each business carried out special quality trainings for
subdivision suppliers, including:

° For the Instant Noodles Business, special
quality management trainings were carried out for
dehydrated vegetable suppliers and a total of 16
upstream suppliers, covering the planting in the
agricultural product base, raw material harvesting,
transportation protection, key control points for
strange matter control during processing, and the
improvement of management awareness of plant
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staff, etc. A total of 126 food Safety Month activities
were conducted for 44 suppliers of dehydrated
meat, dehydrated vegetables, flavor packs and fresh
vegetables, with approximately 4,600 participants,
covering food traceability drills, skill competitions,
food safety knowledge competitions, food safety
hidden dangers investigation, etc. The Quality
Management Requirements for Food Satety of Master
Kong’s Suppliers was formulated and issued, and
30 supplier meetings were held to gather national
suppliers to participate in the advocacy of food safety
quality management requirements, food protection
awareness trainings and AIB inspection experience
exchange, etc. Special assistances were provided for
selecting 14 suppliers with relatively weak food safety
quality management through historical audits and
unannounced inspection results, and audit personnel
from China Quality Certification Center (CQC)
were invited to conduct on-site guidance trainings,
checking food safety management, GMP, pest
control, production and CCP point control, inspection
management, and warehouse management, etc.,
and providing guidance and improvement for weak
aspects, in order to improve the food safety quality
management of suppliers.

For the Master Kong Beverages Business and Pepsi
Beverages Business, beverage ingredient suppliers were
provided with training on food safety to publicize the
Company'’s supplier core requirements such as quality of
the products, food safety, good manufacturing practices
and management audit. We provided trainings on AIB
inspections for agricultural product suppliers. Raw sugar
storage management trainings were held for white
granulated sugar suppliers to help them improve the raw
sugar storage environment and standardize personnel
operations.
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For the Bakery Business, the Company provides the on-
site traceability counseling for suppliers in terms of the on-
site management and raw material management every year.
It conducts unannounced inspections for key suppliers every
quarter to identify their daily management and communicate
with and provide trainings for suppliers on weak aspects in
daily management. The Company identifies raw materials
with high food safety risk every year, sends related raw
materials for food safety indicators inspection every quarter,
and provides counseling for and communication with
suppliers with high raw material risk to improve their quality
awareness.

Health and Nutrition Product Development and
Expansion

China highly values the health of the people and prioritizes
it in its development strategy and sets the visionary goal of
building “Healthy China” by 2035. As a leading company
in China’s food and beverage industry, Master Kong is
committed to meeting the needs of Chinese consumers
for healthy diet. Through its own R&D technology
breakthroughs and innovations, Master Kong constantly
increases the added value of health products, achieving the
leapfrog and upgrade of its own products from convenience
to delicacy followed by health.

Master Kong Central Research Institute focuses on the
research and development and innovation of food safety
and quality, health and nutrition and process optimization,
etc., and constantly increases the R&D investment in health
and nutrition products. Master Kong has set up the “Instant
Noodles R&D Center”, “Beverage R&D Center” and “Basic
Research Department”, cooperated with Zhejiang University,
Nankai University and Jiangnan University, etc., and
conducted in-depth research and development of sugar-
free, low-fat, nutritional and health products. For example,
we have cooperated with Nankai University on projects
such as studying how healthy the low-sugar oolong is as
well as developing healthy noodles with slow digesting and
low Gl. In addition, we attach importance to the training
of health and nutrition R&D talents, and actively reserve
talents. During the reporting period, 15 R&D personnels in
total worked on health and nutrients, and the R&D team of
Master Kong will be expanded in the future.
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We actively respond to various national nutrition and
health policies, including the National Nutrition Plan (2017-
2030), and incorporate nutrition and health into various
R&D activities such as product design, product innovation
and technical cooperation. In terms of the R&D of instant
noodles, Master Kong supports the “Three Reductions and
Three Kinds of Health (=& =##)" campaign. During the
year, in addition to no preservatives, it promoted oil and salt
reduction of products through technological innovation and
developed the “Express Chef’s Noodle (ZRZEFEEE)" series
of new nutrition and health products, which use innovative
low-fat fried-free technique to make the fat content per
100g of dry instant noodles lower than 1g, meeting the
requirements of the national standard for low-fat dry
instant noodles. In addition, the product largely increases
content of protein with more green vegetables and dietary
fiber retained. The total amount of dietary fiber contained
in a bucket of “Express Chef’s Noodle”, accounts for
approximately 40% of the daily reference intake of dietary
fiber of Chinese residents.

In terms of beverage R&D, the Company focuses on the
development of sugar-free, low-fat products. During the
year, the Company launched sugar-free/low-sugar products
such as “Pure Sugar-free - Alpine Oolong Tea”, “Jasmine
Green Tea”, “Da Hong Pao Black Tea”, and other low-fat
and zero-fat drinks such as “Xiao Lao Duo Duo Probiotics
Drink (Kyoho Grape flavor)(/NE& % % EIE&E &))" . Compared
with traditional drinks, we reduce the use of sugar and
fat to provide consumers with healthier products. At the
same time, we also increase investment in the research
and development of products that supplement essential
nutrients, and successfully launch a kind of beverage rich in
vitamin C —"Citrus C Storm (tH#&C/& %%)". During the year,
the sugar-free tea series “Pure Sugar-free Tea Beverage”
was awarded the Shanghai Nutrition Innovation Award
(E/8mEBAIFE), and “Jasmine Tea” was granted the
highest award of Superior Taste Award (Three Stars Award)
(BIRER R Rm = 2 57)
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The Highest Award of Superior Taste Award (Three Stars Award)
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Products of Smaller Packs to Meet the Needs of Consumers
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REVEEERAEEA A E Master Kong has been widely recognized in product R&D
EEIFERZRA 202343 and innovation. In March 2023, Master Kong was granted
A REESENEEENE the iSEE Global Food Innovation Award for its expertise in
¥l 0 EBISEERRR M A noodle making. In September, at the “23rd China Instant
ME-oH ElHPERME Food Conference” hosted by Chinese Institute of Food
BRITEEIHNIE_+=F Science and Technology, Master Kong Instant noodles
FEAERmMmAT L ER “Express Chef’'s Noodles” series and “Dried Noodles
HEM REMERYES Collection” won the Outstanding Instant Food Innovation
2022-2023F EHRE A ERM Grand Award and the Instant Food Innovation Award
TEEFEFEREY - (524 respectively in the year of 2022-2023 within the instant food
&R EE2022-2023F industry in China, and “Dried Noodles Collection - Fried
FRESERMITEREDME Noodles with Black Pepper and Beef Fillet” won the most
g% [efiE R4 DM & popular Instant Food Award in the tasting and selection
BREHCTERONZIE process at the conference.

MHERMEE -

-

FREM (S 15 ISEE 2 IR R an &Il 37 BB € #2857 3+ B RRAM(® Food Service FE AP MR B ASI2
The iSEE Global Food Innovation Award Granted to Master Kong and Ms. Qian Yarong,
the General Manager of Food Service Business of Master Kong
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[REMEE RPN E250 € K5 EF 2022-2023 F RS ERMITE(ES)BIFERER
" Express Chef's Noodles” Series and” Dried Noodles Collection” won the (Outstanding) Instant Food
Innovation Award in the Year of 2022-2023 within the Instant Food Industry in China
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Spread Health Concept

Master Kong is committed to promoting Chinese Food &
Beverage Culture and providing consumers with high-quality
and diversified food and beverage products to enjoy a
healthy lifestyle and lead a better life. We fully support and
actively respond to the national nutrition and health policy,
and continue to conduct relevant research together with
various institutions to meet the needs of different groups
of people for nutrition and health, actively advocate the
diet concept of reasonable diet and balanced eating and
moving, guide consumers to make suitable food choices,
and promote a healthy lifestyle for the general consumer
population together with the government and industry
partners.

Master Kong attaches great importance to the science
popularization work on food safety for young children, and
works with partners to launch the “Food Safety Science
Popularization into Campus” campaign and the “2023
Master Kong Care for the Next Generation Food Safety
Guarding Action (2023F FEEMEBE T —RRLZT#ET
&))" . Master Kong stimulates children’s interest in immersive
learning of “food safety” through the scenario-based
innovation and interaction from farmlands to factories,
and from supermarkets to kitchens and the outdoors. This
campaign also provides children with a series of online and
offline popular science courses to encourage them to put
the theoretical knowledge into practice, further enhancing
their awareness of food safety.
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On 26 October 2023, Master Kong sponsored the Theme
Day of the 2023 Food Safety Publicity Week in Minhang
District held by the Food and Drug Safety Committee Office,
Minhang District, Shanghai (F/8mETRERER L
2HBEPWAE) and the Shanghai Spiritual Civilization
Establishment Committee Office (E/@T1E# X AHERZ 8
FP/AE). On the same day, the “Shanghai Food and Drug
Science Popularization Station (/& & & &R R & uh)”
was officially awarded at Master Kong headquarters.

| ]
T lq,lr-:.;*ru_}“

FEAM S AR B0 L8 R fn e mBHE uh JIE SR RE

" Shanghai Food and Drug Science Popularization Station” Awarded Officially at Master Kong Headquarters
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o

During the year, as “a partner of China’s aerospace
industry”, Master Kong continued to focus on the theme
of “Aerospace Quality - Creating the Future (FiX f'& - Al
ZA2K)", to improve the product quality empowered by the
space spirit and promote the product innovation driven by
aerospace quality.
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Service to Consumers

Master Kong strictly complies with the requirements of the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests, the Personal Information
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
laws and regulations, and attaches great importance to the
needs of our customers and consumers while establishing
and maintaining smooth and diversified communication
channels to understand their expectations and aspirations.
The Company has set up a customer service team to facilitate
the collection and feedback of suggestions, enquiries and
demands from consumers. The customer service team has
established standardized operating processes such as the
Customer Service Management Procedure, cooperated with
the responsible departments to resolve customer problems,
responded to customer within the stipulated timeframe, to
continuously track and follow up until the case is closed,
and then visit customers to understand their satisfaction and
ensure that the issues they raised are properly resolved. In
2023, we added e-commerce customer complaint channels
to the existing channels such as 400 hotline, corporate
website and Sina Weibo, to collect customer feedback.
At the same time, we hired a professional organization to
conduct customer research on the customer service team’s
service capability, effective communication, cooperation
fluency, inter-departmental cooperation, etc., summarize and
collate customers’ comments and suggestions, and assist in
the deployment of follow-up work, to enhancing customer
satisfaction. During the year, Master Kong received 13,859
customer complaints, with a satisfactory resolution rate of
95%.
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We are also concerned about the protection of information
in the process of communicating with our customers and
consumers, and protect the privacy of our customers in
all aspects. We implement systematical and processed
management of the information, set an access limit to
client’s information and strictly adhere to the principle
of confidentiality of customer information. We will sign
confidentiality agreements with staff and third-party
companies involved in user information and oversee
the implantation of such agreements, to ensure the
information security of the Company and users. In terms
of capturing and recording customer information, each
business formulates the Customer Complaint Information
Management Operational Approach, records only the
basic information about the customer and cleans up the
important and sensitive information on a regular basis. In
terms of information access, we endeavour to ensure data
security in our internal systems and implement account login
permission management to restrict the access scenarios and
conditions of use of consumer information by our internal
staff to ensure information security of our customers and
consumers.

Responsible Marketing

Master Kong actively practices responsible marketing
and strictly abides by laws and regulations such as the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other national standards such as the GB 7718-2011
General standard for the labeling of prepackaged foods,
establishes a Product Promotion and Marketing Manual to
strictly control the auditing of advertisements and labels,
and to standardize the promotional and marketing work
of its products. At the same time, we establish transparent
communication channels with consumers and are committed
to building a corporate image of responsible marketing and
enhancing brand value.
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The Company focuses on the management of publicity.
We require our partners and other advertising publishers
and operators to perform in good faith and compete fairly
to avoid exaggerated, false or misleading publicity. To
ensure that the promotional content is true and compliant,
the Company requires all external promotional materials
and label designs shall be reviewed and approved by
various departments such as legal affairs, research and
development and quality assurance before release. Master
Kong's marketing policy stipulates that it shall not carry out
advertising activities in primary and secondary schools and
kindergartens, and shall not use the teaching materials and
teaching aids for primary and secondary school students
and young children, school uniforms, school buses and
other channels to publish or disguise advertisements. In the
area of brand promotion, product marketing and content
publicity, Master Kong stipulates that it is prohibited to
involve competitors’ brands in promotional content, to
disparage the goods or services of other producers and
operators, or to make one-sided publicity or comparisons of
goods.

We organize responsible marketing related training for all
marketing employees, and regularly organize special training
on marketing strategies and other activities to enhance
employees’ awareness of compliance. During this year, the
legal department, brand department, marketing department
and other departments of Master Kong jointly carried out
online and offline training for all marketing employees of
each business on the Appearance Design Infringement
and Unfair Competition, the Internet KOL Advertisement
Regulations Compliance Interpretation and other advertising
and marketing related courses. The training content
mainly covers the key points of appearance patents, the
selection and review of KOL (Key Opinion Leader) subjects,
and the legal compliance of KOL-created content, which
improves employees’ knowledge and practice of responsible
marketing.
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In terms of responsible marketing audit, we regularly
conduct audit self-inspection on marketing work every year,
and identify risk points to continuously improve the risk
control and supervision mechanism. Responsible marketing
audits content include, but are not limited to, marketing
system management, creative media agency management,
monitoring agency management, spokesperson
management, IP cooperation program management, social
media management, whether the advertisement content
involves negative publicity and improper publicity, and
whether the packaging of the placed products has been
audited and reviewed. In addition, Pepsi Beverages Business
carries out a third-party marketing audit once a year, which
covers all the media projects placed in the previous year, and
the review content includes the authenticity and quality of
the implementation and interaction data of Internet KOLs,
advertisements, IP cooperation and other projects.

Intellectual Property Management

Master Kong deeply understands the importance of
protecting intellectual property rights. We comply with the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Copyright
Law of the People’s Republic of China, actively implement
its intellectual property management measures and
comprehensively carry out rights defense actions to promote
fair competition. In 2023, we continuously paid attention to
the trends of intellectual property rights in the industry and
attached importance to the accumulation and application
of intellectual property rights, so as to better develop the
Company's intellectual property strategy. We collaborated
with a number of professional bodies to continuously protect
all aspects of intellectual property, including patents and
trademarks, and applied for registration and protection of our
core trademarks in many countries and regions around the
world. We register with the relevant authorities in a timely
manner and retrieve intellectual property information before
all kinds of new products go on the market and conduct
relevant analysis, to ensure the packaging appearance patent
applications are made before the new products go on the
market and improve the intellectual property monitoring line.
We respect and protect the intellectual property rights of
others while protecting our own intellectual property rights
by severely cracking down on infringement. We also regularly
publicize and train employees on intellectual property
rights and enhance their professionalism and awareness of
intellectual property protection to safeguard the Company’s
brand reputation.
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Supplier ESG Management

Master Kong values the sustainability development of
suppliers and deeply understands the leading and driving
role of our own behavior on our suppliers. We have
established and continuously optimized our supplier
management system that monitors various aspects of the
suppliers including their access qualification, production and
operation and social responsibility, which is continuously
refining our supplier management capabilities, and we
are committed to working together with corporates from
upstream and downstream of the value chain to bring high
quality products to our consumers.

In terms of supplier recruitment, Master Kong has
formulated supplier development and management methods
that cover all of the suppliers according to the types of
suppliers, and clarified and refined the supplier introduction
process and requirements. We have established supplier
basic information files and evaluated their qualifications
in accordance with the Supplier Evaluation - Information
Evaluation Form. At the same time, we will conduct on-site
audits of suppliers to examine and evaluate their factory
environment, plant and facilities, production and quality
management, waste discharge, and environmental and
occupational health and safety management levels. To
assess the level of food safety management of suppliers, we
conduct sampling inspections during the on-site inspection
phase, using both external inspections by third-party
testing organizations and Master Kong's own inspections
to conduct rigorous screening. Only those who pass all
the above assessments will be qualified as Master Kong's
suppliers.

In terms of day-to-day supplier management, Master Kong
has been improving the Supplier Appraisal Operations
Approaches, which strengthens supplier supervision and
conducts assessment to each supplier’'s supply quality,
delivery, service and cooperation. In 2023, we updated
assessment scoring criteria based on review items such
as supplier labor policy evaluations, and formulated the
Supplier Assessment Grade Rewards and Punishments,
to conduct grading assessments of our suppliers and
develop coaching strategies, as well as implement reward
and punishment measures based on monthly and annual
appraisal results.
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In terms of supplier environmental and social risk
management policies and practices, we formulate the Master
Kong's Basic Agreement with Supplier on Environmental
and Social Compliance (hereinafter referred to as the
Agreement) and the Master Kong’s Classified Management
Recommendations for Supplier on Environmental and Social,
and continue to promote our supplier partners’ awareness
and understanding of the impacts on environment and
society. The acceptance and signing of the Agreement
by suppliers are prerequisites for establishing a supply
partnership with Master Kong. We require our suppliers
to meet relevant environmental and social laws and
regulations where they operate. At the same time, the
Agreement commits to the “nine mandatory requirements”
for environmental and social compliance, which includes
minimum age of employment, forced and bonded labour,
business ethics, serious environmental pollution, serious
health or safety hazards, working hours, wages, employee
injury insurance and food safety. In order to enhance the
level of business ethics of our suppliers and to create a
transparent and clean partnership, we have effectively
conveyed the Company'’s requirements on business ethics to
our suppliers by signing the Anti-Commercial Bribery Pledge
with our suppliers. During the reporting period, we had
signed the Master Kong’s Basic Agreement with Supplier
on Environmental and Social Compliance with all of the
suppliers to manage their environmental and social risks as
well as conduct continuous supervision on their performance
of the Agreement.
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Master Kong applied digitalization to improve corporate
comprehensive competence. We applied digital methods
to establish an intelligent supplier management system,
which covered parts including upstream and downstream
procurement, transportation and production. Through
the integration of the Supplier Relationship Management
(SRM) system, we realize the unified management of
the supplier data by supplier data sharing center to
simplify data management. The system can also realize
digital management covering the entire bidding process,
including issuing biddings, introducing suppliers, signing
and approving the reserve price, purchasing bidding, and
approving the winning bid, so as to achieve paperless
operation, reduce supplier management cost, strengthen
the entire process of suppliers’ coordination and integration,
and enhance the transparency and agility of the value
chain. We carry out SRM system training for suppliers and
related personnel of Master Kong to enhance capability of
trainees to operate the system and continuously improve the
utilization efficiency of the system. In addition, we continue
to promote the implementation of Material Requirement
Planning (MRP), which automatically calculates the raw
material requirements, reduces the labor cost of manually
calculating the raw material requirement planning and
improves the accuracy. We purchase according to the plan
and arrange the production line operation reasonably, so
as to realize stable production, avoid the production line
overload or idleness, increase the flexibility of production
scheduling, improve production efficiency and service
quality.

Number of suppliers by region

HEBRHE
Number of
Supplier location suppliers
Mainland China 867
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 3
Foreign regions 1
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Anti-corruption and Ethics Management

Master Kong understands that integrity and legal compliance
are the key to long-term business success, and endeavors
to create a workplace environment with integrity, honesty
and transparency. The Company strictly complies with the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations, and has
formulated anti-corruption-related management systems
such as the Management Measures on Employees’ Integrity
and Self-discipline Behavior, and the Management Measures
on Contract Inspection and Review, and continuously
improves the anti-corruption management system, avoiding
any direct or indirect illegal commercial acts including
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
etc.

Master Kong prohibits directors and all employees from
engaging in or profiting from any illegal or unethical
economic behaviors and advocates all of our employees
to abide by professional ethics and moral principles. We
demand our employees and suppliers to sign the Anti-
Commercial Bribery Pledge, which clearly states that
they will not offer or accept bribes and maintain a good
working environment. The Company constantly enhance its
employees’ ability to deal with the relevant issues, improve
our employees’ awareness of anti-corruption, and continue
to build and promote a culture of corporate integrity.
We published articles and shared anti-fraud cases on the
enterprise WeChat platform and online learning platform,
educated all employees about the integrity culture and
related norms of the Master Kong Group, opened a fraud
reporting channel, and sent the Audit Fraud Investigation
Report to the senior management and directors, constantly
strengthening the directors’ and employees’ awareness of
integrity and compliance. In 2023, we incorporated the
Measures for the Management Measures on Employees’
Integrity and Self-discipline Behavior into the quarterly
internal control system training for new employees of the
Company, propagated the culture of integrity and self-
discipline and the code of conduct in the form of on-site
lectures, and cooperated with the internal culture-building
secretariat and the audit office in releasing integrity training
videos on corporate WeChat to all employees. We also
provide ESG related training on anti-corruption and business
ethics issues to our directors online.
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In response to commercial bribery, fraud and other illegal
acts, Master Kong has established a special reporting
channel to encourage internal and external personnel to
monitor each other, and participate in the construction
of the Company’s business ethics and compliance culture
to resist malpractices. We have published the Acceptance
Principles of Whistleblowing and Reward Regulations
and the whistleblower hotline and e-mail address on the
Company’s official website to encourage employees,
suppliers and other parties to participate in real-name
whistleblowing. In response to external extortion, fraud
and other incidents, the Company has formulated a special
emergency plan and handling mechanism to improve its
ability to deal with related problems.

The Audit Department conducts company-wide audits of
major risk management and the effectiveness of the internal
control system every year and makes recommendations
for improvement to avoid the occurrence of irregularities
and illegal acts such as employees taking advantage of
loopholes in the system to commit fraud. The personnel of
the Audit Department signed a commitment letter of Code
of Professional Ethics and Disciplinary Guidelines for Audlit
Office Personnel every year, promising to strictly follow
the principle of confidentiality in the performance of their
duties.

The Company set up a Corporate Security Team under
the Audit Department, which is fully responsible for the
analysis, investigation and handling of whistleblowing
cases. We have formulated the Whistleblowing Operation
Procedures to regulate the process of handling reports, the
principles of reward and the relevant requirements for the
protection of whistleblowers, strictly keep whistleblowers’
information confidential, and strictly prohibit any form of
retaliation against whistleblowers. If there is any leakage
of the whistleblowers’ information, it will be dealt with
in accordance with the Management Measures of Staff
Rewards and Punishments after verification. In 2023, there
is no leaking the information of whistle-blowers.
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In 2023, the Corporate Security Team completed the
special investigation of 35 fraud reporting cases, and also
conducted special audit operations across the Group in
the segments of internal control and risk management,
legal compliance management, capital, insurance and
investment and financing management, tax and accounting
management, seal contract and archive management,
procurement management, etc., reviewing the effectiveness
of the control systems for business ethics and professional
ethics involved in the relevant projects, and comprehensively
strengthen the Company’s anti-corruption and anti-fraud
management. In 2023, no concluded cases regarding
corrupt litigation brought against the Company or its
employees were noted.

Brand Breakthrough

Reorganizing the national single product to create word-of-
mouth products

Master Kong's star product, Braised Beef Noodles, adheres
to the brand image of the Chinese nation with its classic
rich flavor and fiery Chinese red on the packaging. In 2023,
Master Kong launched “Iced Tea Flavored Braised Beef
Noodles”, which triggered a large number of young users
to participate in the topic #This Noodle, It's Just That Taste#,
showing the young attitude of Master Kong's innovative and
imaginative youthful attitude to the contemporary young
people.
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“|ced Tea Flavored Braised Beef Noodles”
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Understanding fans’ interests thoroughly, staying close to
hot topics and stimulating spontaneous communication

With a deep insight into fans’ interests and behaviors,
Master Kong held a series of brand marketing activities
such as “Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress”
Andy Yang ($5£2), “Good Soup Noodles” x “National
Singer” Zhou Shen (JA%), “Royal Feast” x “New Popular
TV Series Star” Zhang Wanyi (3582 Z) and “Golden Stock
Beef” x "Minions”, which stimulates social interaction in
the circle and attracts a large number of fans to participate,
promoting brand goodwill and preference of Master Kong.

BMBESTANAEXBREE IHE

“Tomato Egg Beef Noodles” x “National Actress” Andy Yang (5£%)

62 BEHEZERERAT
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“Good Soup Noodles” x “National Singer” Zhou Shen (J&%)

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Master Kong pays attention to the development of the
sports industry all year round. In 2023, Master Kong
Beverages Business focused on the field of youth football
and conducted the “Let Water Raise You Into the Light
(Z0HE EAREIEK)” brand public welfare program. We
associated with CCTV website to sponsor and title the
youth football dream documentary Shining You to help the
development of youth football. The public welfare program
has been supported by various medias and many football
celebrities since its launch.

As a leading company in China’s food and beverage industry,
Master Kong actively takes responsibility for environmental
protection, identifies and complies with the requirements of
national environmental-protection-related laws and regulations,
establishes management policies and systems in the areas of
environmental target setting, energy and water conservation,
emission and carbon reduction, plastic reduction and packaging
management, digital production, climate change response and
sustainable raw material procurement, implements various project
practices to reduce its negative impact on the environment, and
continuously contributes to the realization of “Keep Our Nature
Green”.

1. Setting Environmental Management Targets?

Guided by the Company’s sustainable development
philosophy, we have set our environmental development
targets based on the actual situation of our production and
operation, combined with analysis of past environmental
data and planning for future corporate development,
including:

Energy and water consumption:

e Using 2017 as the base year, the combined
energy consumption per million of revenue (MWh/
RMBmillion) will decrease by 12% in 2025.

2 The environmental key performance indicators, including greenhouse gas
emissions, were formally disclosed by Master Kong in 2017, so 2017 was
chosen as the base year for setting environmental management targets.
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Target progress in 2023: The combined energy
consumption per million of revenue (MWh/
RMB'million) decreased by 16.4% compared with
2017. Since the target has already been met, we
updated our target and aimed to maintain the
combined energy consumption per million of revenue
at below 63.18 MWh/RMB'million until 2025. We
will set a more aggressive target in the future when
appropriate.

Using 2017 as the base year, water abstraction per
million of revenue (tons/RMB'million) will decrease by
20% in 2025.

Target progress in 2023: Water abstraction per million
of revenue (tons/RMB'million) decreased by 17.1%
compared to 2017.

Waste:

The recycling rate (actual sales volume/theoretical
production) of the main production-based raw
material waste is not less than 97%.

Target progress in 2023: The target has been achieved.
In 2024, the Company will still set this as the target
and conduct waste management accordingly.
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Emission:

e Using 2017 as the base year, greenhouse gas (Scope
1 and Scope 2) emissions per million of revenue (tons/
RMB'million) will decrease by 18% in 2025.

Target progress in 2023: Greenhouse gas (Scope 1
and Scope 2) emissions per million of revenue (tons/
RMB'million) decreased by 21.1% compared with
2017. Since the target has already been met, we
updated our target and aimed to maintain greenhouse
gas (Scope 1 and Scope 2) emissions per million of
revenue at below 27.36 tons/RMB’million until 2025.
We will set a more aggressive target in the future
when appropriate.

e  Emission concentrations of major air pollutants
(nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, soot and dust) from
all plants meet or exceed national standards.

Target progress in 2023: The target has been achieved.
In 2024, the Company will still set this as the target
and conduct air pollutant management accordingly.

° Wastewater (COD) discharge concentrations meet or
exceed national standards.

Target progress in 2023: The target has been achieved.
In 2024, the Company will still set this as the target
and conduct wastewater management accordingly.

Master Kong will maintain continuous monitoring of the
progress of achieving the above-mentioned environmental
targets, and regularly review and report on the achievement
of the environmental targets.
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Energy and Water Conservation Management

The Sustainable Development Committee of Master Kong
is chaired by the Chairman and CEO of the Company, and
supervises the Company’s energy and water resources
strategy and performance. The beverage resources
and instant noodle resource working group under the
Sustainable Development Committee are headed by senior
managers of various businesses, respectively, and focus
not only on energy-saving and water-saving management,
energy-using strategies and performance of businesses,
but also on promoting projects such as recycling of energy
and water resources, so as to improve the management of
the Company’s energy efficiency and water consumption.
According to the planning arrangements made by the
Sustainable Development Committee and its working groups
at the beginning of the year, the Supply Chain Centre of
each business implemented energy and water conservation
projects and set up full-time management personnel at their
production bases.

Master Kong has formulated the Energy Management
Code, the Energy Unit Consumption Assessment and
Evaluation Method, the Energy Management Team
System and the Energy Management Performance Penalty
System as the guidance for energy saving work, clarifying
the responsibilities of relevant units. Meanwhile, each
business continuously optimizes its production processes,
promotes key energy-saving projects, and reduces energy
consumption. Performance management indicators for
energy consumption management have been set up in
each business factories to better assess the implementation
of energy conservation, and the effect of energy saving
and consumption reduction has been incorporated into
the performance appraisal indicators of relevant posts and
combined with incentives to enhance the importance of
energy saving work by staff in relevant posts. A special
team has been set up in each factory to conduct energy
management health check, track daily production energy
consumption and investigate the causes of any abnormalities
in the indicators, and make improvements accordingly. We
review and analyze the production energy consumption
indicators against the corresponding period and budget
indicators every month, so as to optimize and adjust them in
time. We organize relevant training and share energy saving
experiences to achieve continuous improvement of the
Company's energy saving management level.
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In 2023, 18 plants of Master Kong's Beverage Business and
14 plants of Pepsi’'s Beverage Business were honoured as
“Excellent Energy-saving Enterprise” by the China Beverage

Industry Association for their respective outstanding energy

saving management achievements.

In terms of water conservation management, the Company
has formulated a Water Conservation Management System
to guide the development of water conservation work and
requires production staff to operate in strict compliance with
the system. We put water saving and consumption reduction

into the performance evaluation index of key supervisors

of factory directors in order to implement effective water
saving. Master Kong's factories regularly carried out a
“water balance tests” to understand the current situation
of water consumption in the water supply network and
each unit, and based on the measured water quantity data,
we judge the reasonable level of water consumption and
take corresponding measures. For production processes
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BEERRTEA
Smart energy platform

9,000 ™ tons ’

The Instant Noodle Business Hangzhou Factory has
built a smart energy platform to accurately record
and display output, energy consumption and
carbon emissions, and finely manage energy use
through data feedback. The follow-up scheme,
which will be promoted in factories across the
country, is expected to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions by 9,000 tons per year.

R KB
BIKEER W EZEE

v

and equipment with high water consumption, we have
strengthened detailed management and control, and
actively promoted key water-saving projects such as the
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Heat exchange from tap
water with low temperature
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The Master Kong Beverages Business Shenyang
Factory uses low-temperature tap water to cool
the return water of ice water by 3-4 degrees.
Currently, 542,000 kWh of electricity is saved
annually from the first phase. The second phase
is expected to save 549,000 kWh per year, for
a total of 1.091 million kWh, equivalent to a
reduction of approximately 990 tons of CO, per
year.
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The Pepsi Beverages Business Zhengzhou Factory
recycles heat energy from the high energy
consumption machines and improves the heat
exchange efficiency of equipment by installing
plate heat exchanger and saving approximately
72,000 m? of natural gas annually.
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utilization of reclaimed water after sewage treatment,
elimination and replacement of high water-consuming
equipment, and promoted them in plants nationwide. We
set up special personnel at the plant to conduct inspections
of internal water supply facilities to detect and resolve water
problems in a timely manner to ensure normal water use. At
the same time, we actively promote awareness and ways to
conserve water resources, continue to carry out exchanges
and experience sharing among factories across the country,
and strive to integrate the concept of “Cherishing,
Conserving and Protecting Water” into all aspects of our
daily production work, so as to promote a comprehensive
improvement of internal management level. In 2023, Master
Kong has recycled different kinds of alternative water of
1,220,781.29 tons, of which recycled water is 419,600.49
tons with reusing rate of 2.65%.

In 2023, the 19 plants of the Master Kong Beverages
Business and 14 plants of the Pepsi Beverages Business were
once again awarded the title of “Excellent Water-saving
Enterprise” by the China Beverage Industry Association for
their excellent management practices.
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RkKETHER
Reclaimed water reuse
project

200,000 i tons

The plants of the Instant Noodles Business
collects the workshop sewage and sends it to the
sewage station for biochemical treatment, and
then uses the deeply purified reclaimed water
for landscaping irrigation, waste gas treatment
and cooling, filter screen washing of desliming
machine, etc., reducing tap water consumption by
approximately 200,000 tons annually.
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Concentrate water recycling
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The Master Kong Beverages Business Langfang
Factory recycles the concentrated water
discharged from the three sets of RO units in its
purified water station and the treated product
water is sent to the ultrafiltration water tank
for subsequent processes, saving approximately
24,250 tons of tap water consumption annually.
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The Pepsi Beverages Business Zhengzhou Factory
recycles the washing water of empty bottles
and tanks, which is used for cooling tower
replenishment, chain lubrication water and
workshop cleaning, reducing not only tap water
consumption, but also sewage discharge, saving
approximately 12,900 tons of water annually.
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Emission and Carbon Reduction Management

For the management of exhaust gas, greenhouse gas,
wastewater and waste emissions, we comply with the
relevant laws and regulations of the country and the place
of operation, including the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environmental Protection, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Air
Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, etc. We have
formulated the internal management system for exhaust
gas, greenhouse gas, wastewater and waste emissions of
Master Kong as the basis for management and control. We
clearly defined the management responsibilities of relevant
positions, continuously used advanced management tools,
optimized production processes, introduced advanced
environmental protection facilities and technologies, and
carried out various specialized environmental protection
projects to mitigate the impact of production and operation
on the environment. We commission qualified third-
party units to conduct regular environmental monitoring
to ensure that all pollutants are discharged in accordance
with standards. For hazardous waste generated, we have
commissioned qualified professional units to conduct
disposal in compliance. For non-hazardous waste, we strived
to reduce waste generation at the source and promote the
recycling and utilization of resources. At the same time,
we upgrade the skills of relevant personnel and implement
maintenance work for treatment equipment to achieve
stable operation of the wastewater and waste gas treatment
systems.

Bt

Improved exhaust gas
treatment performance
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The Instant Noodles Business upgraded the waste
gas treatment system and added a film type odor
gas capture purifier to meet the requirement
of no odor emission, making odor and smog
concentration at the plant boundary better than
the national standard.
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Biogas recycling™
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The Master Kong Beverages Business’ Jinan plant
recycles a large amount of biogas generated by
anaerobic tanks during sewage treatment process
and uses it as fuel. The steam generated during
the treatment process is incorporated into the
steam pipe network, reducing biogas emissions by
approximately 400,000 m? annually.
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Organic waste gas treatment
system
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Pepsi’s plant in Zhengzhou has installed high-
efficiency organic waste gas treatment systems for
the blowing and preform processing processes,
respectively, reducing total non-methane
hydrocarbons emissions by approximately 2.42
tons annually.
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Master Kong encourages upstream suppliers to use green
energy, and improves the energy consumption efficiency of
cold drink machinery and equipment such as refrigerators
and fountains, thereby reducing the carbon emissions
generated in the downstream product retail chain. During
the year, we carried out greenhouse gas emission reduction
actions in the upstream and downstream of the value chain:

e  For raw material suppliers, the aluminum can supplier
for Pepsi Beverage Business completed the installation
of photovoltaic power generation project that
generated 52,454kWh of annual cumulative electricity,
reducing carbon emissions by approximately 29.91
tons.

° For production equipment suppliers, Pepsi Beverage
Business will gradually replace traditional fountains
with environmentally friendly refrigerated fountains,
and promote equipment manufacturers to initiate
programs to develop and upgrade to more energy-
saving and carbon-reducing models that are 30-50%
more energy efficient than previous models, with
plans to have them on the market in 2025.

®  For downstream distribution channels, the proportion
of AIOT smart refrigerators in Master Kong's Beverage
Business has increased to 80%. Smart refrigerators
can reduce energy consumption and energy-related
carbon emissions by more than 40% during use
compared to traditional refrigerators. Meanwhile, the
energy consumption level of smart refrigerators has
been continuously upgraded. All of the new series
AIOT smart refrigerators have been upgraded to Level
1 energy consumption during the year, which reduces
power consumption by 38% compared to existing
smart refrigerators.
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Plastic Reduction and Packaging Management

Master Kong actively responds to the national plastic
reduction policy and requirement, supports corresponding
environmental protection policies, and refines packaging
management at all stages of the product production cycle,
reducing the use of plastics and packaging materials while
securing the satisfaction for product safety and quality
requirements, promoting the realisation of lightweight,
recyclable, degradable and renewable packaging material,
in order to reduce negative impact on the environment and
implement the concept of sustainable development.

At the product production stage, we have developed
internal management systems such as the Raw Material
Overconsumption Standard, actively conducted relevant
research and exploration from various components of
product packaging, continuously implementing a series of
improvement programs to reduce plastic usage and weight,
utilizing more environmentally friendly packaging materials,
and reducing the use of packaging materials and generation
of waste from the source.

In the product transportation stage, we analysed the
product cargo transfer process and changed some products
from bagging to tanker transport to reduce the unnecessary
use of packaging in the transportation process.

In terms of waste recycling and disposal, we have developed
systems such as the Factory Waste Management Measures
as a basis for management, sorting, organizing and storing
waste packaging on different materials and types, and
handing over waste packaging to qualified waste disposal
units for recycling, secondary processing and harmless
treatment.
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In addition to regular actions such as switching
conventional raw material packaging bags to tank trucks for
transportation, carton recycling, and switching raw material
packaging to tonnage bags, foci of our work on plastic

EEBHTIERIE reduction and packaging management during the year
includes:
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buckets and reducing
plastic use

e Reducing the use of
packaging materials by
using overheated caps
instead of buckle caps
for "Sudatong”
products saved 14.3
tons of plastic per year

® Reducing the porosity of
storage and transporta-
tion cartons and
reducing the area of
corrugated paper will
save an estimated 1,393
tons of paper per year
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MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS
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water products

Reducing PET particles use
by approximately 252
tons in 2023 through
bottle cap weight
reduction efforts for
several products

Saving approximately 300
tons of HDPE particles by
the addition of a new
sterile injection bottle cap
with a reduced weight of
0.25g per cap through
the design optimization of
the cap type

Reducing estimated VOCs
emissions by approxi-
mately 2,000 tons
through replacement of
ink types used for label
printing from
solvent-based inks using
esters, alcohols, etc. as
solvents to water-based
inks using water, ethanol,
etc. as solvents
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efforts for 380 ml boiled FA 4981

Reducing plastic use by
approximately 16 tons in
2023, with some plants
reducing the weight of
500 ml PET bottles from
22gto 21g, successfully
tested in September 2023
Reducing plastic use by
approximately 8 tons in
2023, with some plants
reducing the weight of
900 ml PET bottles from
35g to 339
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We are working with partners on packaging material
recycling and PET recycling research. In 2023, the Master
Kong Beverages Business processed about 1,200 tons of
PET waste, which was turned into non-food grade PET
bottles, fibers, and rPET employee uniforms, and planned
to complete the recovery, processing and recycling
of approximately 1,500 tons of PET waste in 2024. In
September, Master Kong explored another effective way
to recycle rPET waste through an innovative attempt to
construct a plastic basketball court using 1,750 500ml empty
iced tea beverage bottles through a collaboration with a
professional carbon reduction solution organization. Pepsi
Beverage Business handed over waste PET bottles to units
with plastic recycling qualifications for recycling into recycled
polyester chips, workwear and other environmentally
friendly recycled goods, resulting in a total reduction of 56
tons of waste plastic and the production of 3,566 workwear
for employees.

BERM B KA ZE (PET IR IR BK 5
Master Kong Iced Black Tea rPET Environmentally Friendly Basketball Court
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Workwear made of rPET material by Master Kong

We have formulated plans and goals for plastic reduction
and packaging management during the year:

Fork plastic reduction:

During the year, we have adopted structural optimization
technological innovations in the folding forks of certain
products, taking the lead in the industry to achieve a 7%
plastic reduction in folding forks, resulting in an annual
plastic reduction of 100 tons, and achieving the industry’s
lowest plastic consumption for a single folding fork. In
the future, we plan to transform all fork molds, with an
estimated annual plastic reduction of 1,000 tons, and
gradually transition to “recyclable and biodegradable”
materials.

Light weight bottle caps:

In 2024, we plan to reduce the weight of bottle caps from
2.0g to 1.85g, covering products under the “Drink Natural”
brand.

Packaging cartons weight reduction:

In 2024, we plan to reduce paper consumption by
approximately 10g per box through the design of corner-
cut cartons, covering products under the “Tropicana” and
“Gatorade” brands.

rPP and rPETG label switching:

We expect to complete the verification and mass production
of rPP and rPETG for labeling in 2024.
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Digital Production Management

We are committed to integrating digitalization into
corporate operations, continuously optimizing our digital
and intelligent supply chain system, applying scientific tools
and management approaches, and progressively advancing
the digital transformation of production management. This
allows us to enhance corporate performance, promote
efficient collaboration from upstream to downstream, and
achieve harmonious win-win outcomes.

Master Kong has completed equipment renovation and
digitalisation of daily business processes in its factories,
realising real-time monitoring, management, and
maintenance of equipment status, as well as real-time
data collection and automatic analysis of energy usage. In
2023, we put more intelligent equipment into operation
during production process, which reduced manpower and
realised the product traceability in the deployment process,
improving the accuracy and visualisation of the production
process. In the raw material procurement process, we
integrated supplier information and unified supplier data
management through the SRM (Supplier Relationship
Management) system, reducing the costs associated with
supplier data management across our business units. In
the product quality management process, we implemented
electronic inspection forms for some products and planned
to update inspection equipment to achieve automatic data
collection. Currently, the establishment of digital factory
empowers Master Kong to collect all quality-related data,
conduct real-time monitoring on the entire production
process from material input to shipment, build a quality
database, and realise the full life-cycle traceability of
product quality. This year, Master Kong's Beverage Business
organised the “Sharing Green Operation Results & Media
Interview in Factory” event themed “Green Entering Reality,
Witnessing Carbon Reduction Ecology”, showcasing the
Company'’s green intelligent factory and green operational
achievements to the public.
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“Sharing Green Operation Results & Media Interview in Factory” event hosted by Master Kong's Beverage Business and

LIN Yuwen, the Vice President of the Organiser, Master Kong Beverage Business Supply Chain Center
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Master Kong upgraded its intelligent Transportation
Management System (TMS) by integrating it with systems
like BeiDou and Shifutong and collaborated with third-party
logistics providers to introduce intelligent scheduling systems
and new energy trucks. This established an information-
based, automated, and intelligent logistics control system
with multiple functions, enabling intelligent route planning
for urban distribution and green, sustainable logistics
delivery. It effectively improved management levels in terms
of logistics transportation costs, efficiency, expenses, and
service, promoting the development of green transportation.
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The optimisation measures and work results in low-carbon
logistics transportation from various business units during
the year are as follows:

Instant Noodle Business:

e Through the TMS system, Big-Data analysis and
intelligent scheduling system upgrades were
conducted, optimising delivery routes totaling 4.74
million kilometers, which led to increased full-load rate
rates and reduced diesel consumption for vehicles;

e Implemented the electronic receipts project,
eliminating the use of paper. It is expected to
reduce paper consumption annually by 9.1 million
pieces, resulting in a reduction of 44 tons of carbon
emissions;

e Purchased sharing foldable crates for sauce package
transfers between three factories, reducing the
generation of waste packages during transportation;

e Gradually replaced diesel vehicles used for urban
distribution with new energy electric vehicles, reducing
energy consumption and carbon emissions from
logistics transportation. This year, a total of 46 diesel
vehicles were replaced.

Master Kong Beverages Business:

*  (Collaborated with external professional organisations
to promote the TMS project and establish a digital
and intelligent logistics management platform, which
enables unified scheduling and management of
factories, carriers, and transportation drivers, reducing
over 30% of manpower and resource waste in loading
and unloading and over 50% of vehicles queuing
congestion, and over 80% of transportation anomalies
can be prevented and managed in advance or in real-
time. This initiative improves logistics transportation
efficiency by over 70%, saving on transportation
vehicles and fuel consumption, resulting in an
estimated annual reduction of carbon emissions of
approximately 19,000 to 20,000 tons.
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Pepsi Beverages Business:

e  Optimised delivery routes by increasing direct delivery
routes from factories to customers, reducing secondary
distribution;

e  Gradually replaced traditional fuel vehicles used
for transportation within the city and employee
commuting buses with new energy vehicles.

Bakery Business:

e  Optimised delivery routes by increasing direct
delivery routes from factories to distributors, which
is estimated to save approximately 6,600 kilometers
of delivery distance and approximately 1,650 liters of
diesel fuel annually.

We apply image recognition technology in our warehouse
system, using cameras to recognize the EAN (European
Article Number) codes and spray codes of product boxes,
and matching them with production order numbers to
achieve automatic warehousing, which effectively improves
the accuracy of warehousing. Connection between TMS
with the image recognition system arranges loading and
unloading work reasonably, which allows distributors to
query the logistics nodes of their orders in real-time, while
ensuring service quality and greatly enhancing the user
experience. In 2023, we introduced the QR code Traceability
System (QRTS), which is based on the barcode on the
outer package of raw materials. This system successfully
utilises the technology of industrial Internet of Things to
interconnect equipment, monitor the production process in
real-time, and asses the accuracy of operations, achieving
the purpose of preventing errors in processes, recording of
operations, and tracing of raw materials, thereby further
improving production efficiency.
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Responding to Climate Change

Climate change is a common challenge facing the world,
and it is imperative to take action to address it. Master
Kong, starting from itself, puts into practice the concept
of “lucid waters and lush mountains are invaluable
assets”, adheres to the basic national policy of conserving
resources and protecting the environment, identifies and
evaluates the risks and opportunities brought by climate
change, formulates related policies, establishes risk
response mechanisms, and seizes opportunities to promote
sustainable corporate development. We endeavour to
achieve resource recycling, explore potential energy-saving
and carbon-reducing opportunities in each link, and drive
upstream and downstream partners in the value chain to
actively respond to climate change.

Master Kong identified and analysed the physical risks
brought by climate changes, including the impact of extreme
weather such as floods, droughts, typhoons, heavy rains and
snowstorms on material procurement, production, storage
and transportation, and personnel safety, and establish risk
response measures.
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e The adverse weather conditions
may lead to delayed or
interrupted supply of raw
materials, affecting production
schedules;

e The reduction in agricultural
production may result in higher
prices of raw materials, which in
turn results in rising production
Ccosts.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Table 1. Identification and response measures for physical
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e We maintain long-term
partnerships with a number
of qualified suppliers for the
same raw materials at the same
time to ensure a wide range of
suppliers’ raw material supply,
thereby mitigating the risk of
interruptions in raw material
supply;

e  We conduct price analysis of
raw materials to identify the
types of raw materials that are
significantly affected by weather
and keep an eye on weather
factors that may have an impact
on their prices;

e We lock in prices in advance
when entering into contracts
with suppliers to control
production costs.
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Production Cold weather causes frost In response to unexpected

damage to products and raw
materials in factories, increasing
operation costs;

Drought climate reduces
groundwater, affecting the
supply of groundwater to natural
water factories. Heavy rains and
flooding cause groundwater
pollution and turbidity, ultimately
affecting production water
supply;

Typhoons frequently attack
factories in coastal areas, such
as roof damage in factories,
water leakage in workshops
and warehouses of finished
products and raw material and
factory area flooding, resulting
in direct losses of factory assets
and materials, as well as indirect
losses such as production
stoppages;

Extreme weather causes energy
interruptions, affecting factory
production schedules and
delivery timelines.

energy interruptions in special
situations, we maintain regular
communication with our
suppliers, develop monthly and
weekly energy consumption
plans, and arrange production
reasonably, while carrying out
daily maintenance according to
plan;

Based on weather conditions, we
require factories to make early
preparations for raw material
stocking to meet production
demands;

In conjunction with early
warning information issued
by meteorological authorities,
we conduct comprehensive
inspections of the factory in
advance and rectify any potential
hazards.
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Cold weather causes frost
damage to products and
raw materials during the
transportation process,
increasing the investment in
quality assurance;

Severe weather such as heavy
rains and flooding, heavy fog,
heavy snow, etc., seriously affects
the transportation of products
and raw materials, causing
stockouts and interruption.

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Measures to risks
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We keep an eye on the weather
and stock up in advance, pay
attention to the emergency
situation of energy supply,
drainage and hydropower from
high-voltage power houses, and
develop response measures. If
any abnormality is found, timely
report it to the higher-level
government units for handling;
Strictly follow the Company’s
Product Quality Manual to
improve product protection, thus
ensuring product quality.
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Personnel safety e  Extreme weather and climate e  Perform comprehensive analysis
disasters pose a threat to of the likelihood of various
personnel safety. natural disasters based on the

geographical and environmental
characteristics, and formulate
the Special Emergency Plan for
Natural Disasters to identify the
types and degree of danger
posed by natural disasters that
threaten the normal production
and operation of the business;

e  Conduct training and regular
drills for employees in accordance
with the requirements of the
emergency plan, so that in the
event of a major natural disaster,
we can promptly carry out rescue
operations according to the
predetermined plan, effectively
control the disaster in a short
time, and ensure the safety
of employees and company

property.
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We assess the transition risks and opportunities brought
about by climate change. In terms of transition risks,
since China proposed the Carbon Peaking and Carbon
Neutrality target in 2020, Master Kong has been complying
with and actively responding to the national policies and
requirements for reducing carbon emissions, as well as
carrying out research and judgement on the future policy
trends, and making long-term planning for its own low-
carbon development path, so as to better adapt to the
low-carbon trend. In terms of transition opportunities, we
have actively optimised the design of our existing products,
launched “carbon neutrality” and “label-free” products, and
implemented several rPET projects, incorporating sustainable
development into the entire life cycle of our products, in
response to the growing trend of consumers choosing green
and environmentally-friendly products in the low-carbon
economic development era. In the future, we will continue
to establish and improve climate change-related policies,
explore opportunities for green and environmental attribute
products, and contribute to the low-carbon development of
the industry.

In 2023, the Company continued to carry out carbon
inventory work, covering the upstream and downstream
of value chain, calculating Scope 1 and Scope 2 carbon
emissions data, and estimating the main Scope 3 carbon
footprint in upstream and downstream of the value chain. In
this inventory, we reviewed the carbon reduction results in
the past years, prompting all businesses of the Company to
further understand their own emissions to carry out targeted
carbon reduction work and promote healthy competition
in ESG internally. At the same time, during the carbon
inventory process, the Company promoted the concept of
carbon emissions and carbon reduction to all relevant units
to enhance their awareness of carbon reduction. Based
on the carbon emission data from the past three years,
the Company is discussing and planning a carbon-neutral
path for the short, medium, and long term, which will be
disclosed to the public in due course.
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In 2023, as a forward-thinking enterprise in the field of
low-carbon development, Master Kong attended the Third
Carbon Neutrality Industry Conference in Boao jointly
organized by the China Energy Conservation Association
and the China Quality Certification Center. Additionally,
Master Kong was successfully selected as a “2023 China
Industrial Carbon Peak Pioneer Enterprise (202391 & T
EWoEE (4818 | £%)”. In the future, Master Kong
is committed to continuing to collaborate with partners
from all sectors to discuss and share new ideas for carbon
reduction and green development, sharing experiences and
achievements in green management, and contributing to
the formulation of policies and industry development for
low-carbon development.

2023 E T EAEEEA T EdEH (63F)
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Listed as a “2023 China Industrial Carbon Peak Pioneer Enterprise
(2023 E T ¥HElg [48HE | ©%)"and Received its Certificate
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Sustainable Sourcing of Raw Materials

When selecting suppliers, we pay attention to the
environmental benefits of their products and services. With
the same condition, we will give priority to environmental-
friendly products, and encourage suppliers to strengthen
traceability and certification of raw materials. We hope
to reduce the negative impact on natural resources, the
environment, and society brought by raw materials. Master
Kong will follow the material source of suppliers and relevant
certifications, so all of Master Kong's paper suppliers for
paper boxed and cartons hold Forest Stewardship Council
(FSC) certification, and 100% of palm oil suppliers in the
Instant Noodles Business have obtained Roundtable on
Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO) certification. For the white sugar
suppliers of Master Kong's Beverage Business and Pepsi
Beverage Business, 30% of the total supply comes from
suppliers that have obtained the Bonsucro certification.

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

In 2023, Master Kong’s environmental Key Performance
Indicators are listed below. Unless otherwise stated, the
statistics scope of environmental data " covers the Master
Kong building in Shanghai and all domestic factories directly
managed @ by each business, while overseas offices are
not included in the scope of statistics for the time being
due to their small scale, and will be disclosed in due course
according to the actual situation.
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TOTAL GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS® (SCOPE 1 & SCOPE 2)“ (10,000 TONNES)

HEREREHNE(BN)
SCOPE 1 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (10,000 TONNES)

HEREREHKEY(BH)
SCOPE 2 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS® (10,000 TONNES)

BETARBKRSAEREBHNE (M/ 5ETARBKS)
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES
(TONNES/RMB'MILLION OF SALES)

A EERBIAEC OkEE)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ENERGY CONSUMPTION® (MWH)

BETARBRGSGALRERE KRR/ ABTARBEKES)
COMPREHENSIVE ENERGY CONSUMPTION PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES
(MWH/RMB'MILLION OF SALES)

BACOOKEE)
ELECTRICITY® (MWH)

BETARBKRSENHRECKRE/ AR TARRB )
ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES
(MWH/RMB'MILLION OF SALES)

FUB RS H (K ELE )

PETROL AND DIESEL (MWH)
RARMBER (KEE)

NATURAL GAS AND COAL (MWH)
B AmR (KEE)

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM GAS (MWH)

SMEEITORELE)
PURCHASED STEAM (MWH)

FRK#BED (ILTTK)
TOTAL WATER USE 7 (M?)

220.0

14.80

205.20

27.36

5,080,937.08

63.18

1,725,518.73

21.46

9,712.02

742,404.78

653.19

2,602,648.36

54,050,692.07
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WATER CONSUMPTION PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES (M3*RMB'MILLION OF SALES) 672.12

Em

BEMEHERBE® ()
TOTAL PRODUCT PACKAGING MATERIALS USED © (TONNES)

1,277,652.86

BETARBRGSERBORMHERE® (/88T ARE K
PRODUCT PACKAGING MATERIAL USED PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES® 15.89

(TONNES/RMB’ MILLION OF SALES)

L2 FE A 2 (Chemical Oxygen Demand * COD)HBEpARE © (I8)
TOTAL CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND (COD) EMISSIONS® (TONNES) 144.30

BEEEMRE(E)

TOTAL HAZARDOUS WASTE (TONNES) 697.01
BETARBERGAERZMIRE(E/ BETARERE)

HAZARDOUS WASTE EMISSIONS PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES 0.01

(TONNES/RMB'MILLION OF SALES)

mEERYEE (W)

TOTAL NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE (TONNES) 185,985.40
BETARBRGSEEEZVENE (M/ 8 8TARBEKS)

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE EMISSIONS PER RMB'MILLION OF SALES 2.31

)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong's business, the main gas
emissions in 2023 are greenhouse gases, mainly from the use
of electricity and fuels converted from fossil fuels. Compared
with 2022, Master Kong has further reduced the use of fossil
fuels such as natural gas and coal, along with continued
reductions in Sulphur dioxide (SO,) and oxynitride (NO )
emissions, the impact of which is minimal and therefore not
disclosed as a major gas emission in the current year.

The domestic plants under the direct management of each
of Master Kong's businesses include all plants of the Instant
Noodles Business, Master Kong Beverage Business and Bakery
Business located inside the country, as well as all domestic
plants of the Pepsi Business except for the plants in Shanghai,
Wuhan, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjin, Jinan, Guilin,
Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi'an, Kunming and Shenzhen.
Among which, Pepsi’s business is managed directly by Pepsi
International except for 4 factories in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Nanjing and Hangzhou. Pepsi's plants in Shenyang, Tianjin,
Jinan, Guilin, Fuzhou, Zhanjiang, Changsha, Xi‘an, Kunming
and Shenzhen are not included in the scope of statistics as
they are no longer in operation.
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The scope of greenhouse gas accounting for Master Kong
mainly covers carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide.
The greenhouse gas emission data is presented in terms
of carbon dioxide equivalent and calculated in accordance
with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
2006 Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas List (Revised in
2019).

Scope 1: covers greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company’s operations. In 2023, the Company’s usage
of diesel-powered backup generators was lower compared
with previous years, which led to a lower Scope 1 greenhouse
gas emissions. Scope 2: greenhouse gas emissions from
“indirect energy” resulting from the Company’s internal
consumption (purchased or acquired) of electricity and
purchased steam.

The comprehensive energy consumption is calculated
through direct and indirect energy consumption, based
on the conversion factors of the National Standard of the
People’s Republic of China General Rules for Calculating
Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020).

Electricity is including purchased electricity and self-generated
renewable energy generation.

Water consumption is for production and employee office
use within the scope of the statistics. We have no problem in
finding the applicable water sources.

The amount of product packaging materials used is the total
amount of major packaging materials used for all items of
products in each of Master Kong's businesses.

The total COD emissions are the sum of the COD produced
by all the plants within the statistical scope and the final
emissions after treatment by municipal sewage treatment
plants.
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Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create an
Excellent Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of the Rights and
Interests of Women, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Minors, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Persons
with Disabilities, the Regulations on the Employment of
Persons with Disabilities, the Regulations on the Prohibition
of Child Labour and relevant laws and regulations, and
has accordingly formulated the Measures for Recruitment
of Staff, the Management Measures for Labour Contract,
the Procedures for Appointment of Staff, the Management
Measures of Staff Promotion, the Management Measures
of Staff Resignation, Probationary Appraisal Measures for
Colleagues, the Management Measures of Staff Rewards
and Punishments, as well as other systems and measures.
Each business has also formulated and constantly optimized
applicable systems and measures according to its situation
to regulate the signing and termination of labour contracts,
so as to ensure that all employment work is regulated and
based on rules and regulations, and to effectively protect
the legitimate rights and interests of employees.
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Master Kong vigorously makes contributions to the digital
transformation project of Human Resources which is
currently being implemented within all Businesses. We keep
optimizing and simplifying the processes toward Human
Resources and remuneration to achieve a one-stop online
operation. We continuously identify the problems that exist
in the digital management of Human Resources, decide the
future optimum modification plan, discuss the promotion
regularly and prepare for the digital transformation of
Human Resources in the future.

Equal Employment

The Company insists on the principle of equal employment,
eliminating all forms of employment discrimination, and
establishing a recruitment, development and promotion
system that is non-discriminatory in terms of ethnicity,
race, gender and religion, and actively takes on social
responsibility. We continuously recruit a certain percentage
of disabled employees, providing fair employment
opportunities and salary and benefits guarantees. 304
disabled employees were employed this year. We oppose
all forms of forced labour and child labour and explicitly
prohibit such situations in relevant human resources policies.
We strictly examine originals and photocopies of identity
cards when recruiting. If forced labour or child labour is
found, we will strictly follow the requirements of the local
labour bureau to handle it while immediately stopping their
work. Each business also regularly verifies the working hours
of employees through internal system. The Company’s
internal control and auditing departments conduct reviews
on recruitment and employment from time to time to avoid
forced labour.
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Vacation

Master Kong explicitly indicates the working hours
and holidays of its employees in the labour contract in
accordance with the requirements of the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Employees are entitled to
annual leave with pay, personal leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, bereavement leave, maternity leave, paternity leave,
breastfeeding leave, parental leave and home leave. The
Company actively implements relevant government policies
and encourages employees to arrange their vacation plans
based on their needs, while amending its internal rules and
regulations in accordance with new local regulations to
effectively protect the rights and interests of employees to
rest.

Remuneration and Benefits

Master Kong has established well-rounded salaries
and benefits management measures, including the
Administrative Measures on Remuneration ( {GrEME IRt
7% ) and the Measures on Performance-Based Bonuses and
Penalties ( {#E30E8583%) ) for employees, such as salary,
performance and year-end bonus, and pays “five insurances
and one fund” in full for employees in accordance with the
requirements of the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Regulations on the Administration
of Housing Provident Fund and other national laws and
regulations. Employees will be remunerated competitively,
while adjusting the insurance and provident fund
contribution ratios, wage standards in a timely manner every
year in accordance with policy requirements, with an aim to
improve the salary package. Depending on their situation,
each business has developed salary management methods
which specified performance bonuses, year-end bonuses,
and employee welfare management methods while adopting
different levels of incentives such as monthly, quarterly and
annual awards so as to stimulate employee enthusiasm. At
the same time, we provide additional subsidies for staff such
as high temperature/high cold, heating, and rental subsidy.
We also provide soft benefits such as travel, corporate
cultural activities, birthday gifts, and health check-ups for
our employees.
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Promote Staff Healthy Growth and Development,
Create a Smart Workplace

Master Kong attaches great importance to talent
development and training, and established measures such as
the Measures on Standard Operation Teaching and Training
( SHABINRZEAEENEE) ), the Administrative Measures
on Internal Trainers ( { RELEBENEIEZ#EEL) ) and the
Administrative Measures on Functional Training System ( {&
THEELTHIRE R B IEHA) ) to perfect training management
system of talent cultivation in every respect. The Company
actively builds a talent development system to gradually
construct and manage digital platform systems such as
talent identification, talent pool and talent development. To
better shape an excellent talent characterized by assiduous,
honesty and competency and help the team cohere, the
Leadership Empowerment Center (LEC) established by
the Company will customize multi-functional courses
for employees from different levels. Each business also
formulates administrative provisions of corresponding
training depending on their actual situation.

The Company conducts quarterly Strategic Talent Review
(STR) meetings to promote the development of key talent
in critical positions, improve talent development platforms
at all levels, and implement development and cultivation
plans for individuals and teams in the reserve pool for
entry-level, middle and high-level management. We
provide training opportunities for employees in various
categories, such as general corporate culture training,
professional knowledge and skills enhancement training
and management skills enhancement training, depending
on their job level, career development stage and functional
position. The Company maintains a long-term collaboration
with external professional training institutions. We work
together to create enhancement training programmes that
are tailored to the actual needs of Master Kong, bringing
forward-looking and scientific knowledge and skills to our
employees. We conduct post-training tracking to evaluate
the effectiveness of our training programs and form a
closed-loop management system for training. We adopt
case-based teaching for training and offer a variety of
training courses and programs. During this year, the total
training time reached 7.544 million hours and the per capita
training time was 122.7 hours.
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The Company actively expands online
training forms, introduces live broadcasting
of courses and continuously updates
mobile learning resources. Employees
can reinforce their capacities in all areas
through the corporate WeChat classroom
and the official website learning platform
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each Business, to improve the efficiency
of inter-departmental cooperation, daily
communication and expression skills of
employees, providing employees with
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ESG

annual list of “Inspiring Cases” relating to
ESG.

Master Kong continues cultivating and cooperating with talents

and gains the recognition of authority:

Leveraging committed to the construction of talent reserve
and the improvement of personnel ability and quality
for years, Master Kong has been invited to the Future
Management Talent Conference (RZREE A A K E) and
won the “Award of Excellence in Future Management Talent
Cultivation (RIRER AL HF A £i#i#€) “and the “Award of
digitalization Learning Project (fxEHF(L 2B E B 48)"
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The Award of Future Management Talent The Award of Digitalization Learning Project
o B JE BHR Flagf® ¥t &Y *  be invited to the 2023 ONEFLAG AWARDS ceremony
2023 [R5 52 R A WS held by HRFlag and won the “Best HR Program of 2023
B 1E12023 RIEANERE ONEFLAG AWARDS”

I H

ONEFLAB AWARDS “**

AT

HR Flag [ #1888 | 2023 SEA N B REIE B REREU T ERMBAERR ZIE
" Best HR Program of 2023 ONEFLAG AWARDS" of HRFlag and Walt WU, the Chief Human Resources Officer of
Master Kong, Head of the Awarded Department
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Safeguard Employee Health and Safety to Create a
Secure Workplace

Master Kong strictly complies with national laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Work Safety, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
and the Fire Services Law of the People’s Republic of China,
thus issues a series of internal administration measures and
emergency plans which are applied to all employees, part-
time employees and contractors of the Company, such
as the Plant Environment Health and Safety Management
Procedures, the Plant Environment Health and Safety
Policy and Principles, the Hazard Identification and Risk
Assessment Criteria and the Method Standards and Work-
Related Injuries Handling Procedures, to form an institutional
guarantee for the implementation of safety production and
prevention of occupational diseases.

Sound management system

Safety production is always the top priority of the Company.
The Sustainable Development Committee is the highest
execution and responsibility authority concerning EHS
(Environment, Health and Safety, EHS) management,
and regularly listens to the work reports of each Business
relating to EHS. All Businesses have set up health and
safety management systems and the EHS team has also
laid in each factory. The team consisting of the safety
manager and safety personnel takes charge of security
policy implementation, EHS compliance operation in the
factory, daily safety training, potential risks identification
and treatment and others, and strictly assigns responsibilities
of safety production. At the same time, we have appointed
EHS dedicated staff to formulate the EHS annual plan,
target, and improvement plan, and guide and oversee the
implementation of all security projects.
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In 2023, a total of 38 factories of the Company obtained
ISO 45001 occupational health and safety management
system certification. All Businesses have strictly complied
with the requirement of the occupational health and safety
management system and classify the mid- and long-term
target and the core initiative of safety production to further
reduce related risks.

Health and safety goals

Master Kong has set health and safety goals covering all
employees and all contractors. The company reviews the
achievement of the goals every year and updates the goals
for the next year. In 2023, each Business sets and achieves
the overall goal of no occupational disease cases and no
work-related fatalities. The instant noodles business targeted
making the lost time injury rate (LTIR) decrease by 5% as
compared to 2022 while the actual lost time injury rate has
decreased by 8% during this year, and 12 factories have
reached zero accidents. Both the Master Kong beverage
business and the pepsi beverage business aimed at bringing
down their LTIR by 10% as compared to 2021, while the
actual lost time injury rate decreased by 20% and 15%
during the year, respectively. The Bakery Business brought
out a Responsibility System for Safe Production ( {&ZZ*E
EEEH]) ), which required all members to sign the Safe
Production Letter of Commitment ( (ZE4£EETZE) )
and they can start working only after receiving three-level
training education. To ensure the safety production of
contractors, the Bakery Business has entered into the Safety
Agreement ( (&%) ) with all contractors with no
serious accidents and no occupational disease cases during
the year. In 2024, businesses will continue to work towards
the overall goal of zero occupational disease incidence and
zero work-related deaths. Meanwhile, the Instant Noodles
Business, Master Kong's Beverage business and Pepsi
Beverage business have respectively set annual targets of
5%, 10% and 5% LTIR declines compared to 2023.
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Safequard Employee Safety

Master Kong highly values the health and safety of
employees and continues to increase investment in it.
The Company provides employees in front-line jobs with
occupational disease risks or high safety risks with a full
range of protective gear, such as eye protection, chemical
protective gloves, ear plugs and safety uniforms, to effectively
reduce the health impact on employees due to workplaces
and environments. To ensure safe production and operation,
the employees of special jobs require relevant licenses. In
addition, we organize annual health checks for our staff and
actively organize fire safety drills to enhance their awareness
of fire safety and their ability to protect themselves. All new
employees are required to receive safety training before they
are allowed to work in production operations. Meanwhile,
Master Kong strictly implements the safety responsibility
system and establishes complete operating specifications
and emergency handling mechanisms to ensure the proper
handling of sudden safety incidents.

The Company attaches great importance to promoting and
training employees in health and safety, enhancing their
awareness of safety precautions. The Company regularly
conducts safety promotion to ensure a safe working
environment and conditions, strengthen monitoring
of occupational hazard factors and effectively prevent
occupational diseases. The three-level training education
(factory level, workshop level, team level) has been carried
out to improve employees’ safety awareness and self-
protection ability. All production bases conscientiously
implement the relevant requirements and deployment of
the EHS of the Company. We continuously and thoroughly
carry out EHS management activities and strictly conduct
annual EHS audits. We set up EHS specialists to continuously
carry out safety education, and regularly organize EHS
skills training and competitions to continuously raise the
awareness of our staff on production safety.
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Build a Corporate Culture and Create a Better
Workplace

A good corporate culture is the strength and foundation
for the healthy development of an enterprise. Under the
background of macroeconomics with “seeking progress
while maintaining stability, promoting stability through
making progress as well as establishing the new before
abolishing the old”, the Company will keep a close watch
on corporate culture and values to match the times. The
Company has established a culture-building committee that
promotes team collaboration and is headed by Chairman
Wei Hong-Ming and Chairman Wei Hong-Cheng, and has
nine core senior managers as members. In 2023, Master
Kong issued a new vision of “KSF WAY" which systemically
induces and elaborates Master Kong's mission, vision,
business philosophy, people and core values, places the
orientation and cohesion function of culture and accelerates
the corporate management and transformation upgrading.

Corporate culture is the foundation and core of the
employer and an attractive employer will in turn further
strengthen and promote it, so that corporate culture can
gain wider agreement and support. In 2023, Master Kong
obtained recognition in respect of diversity, fairness and
inclusion, among 506 domestic and overseas enterprises,
and won the “2023 DEI Top 50 Employers (China) (2023DElI
B=E5058 (FPEHER))" and the “Best Employer Branding
Practice Award (FfEREmIEE )" granted by Employer
Branding Institute, a trusted authority in global employer
branding research. Master Kong won the “Most Promising
Employer Award (EZEEE NEF )" through the
comprehensive assessment by Zhaopin.com, Institute of
Social Science Survey, Peking University, National School of
Development of Peking University, HR Association and other
professional institutions.
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According to KSF WAY and employee needs, the Company
has optimized the learning system of corporate culture
for all employees. In 2023, five courses relating to culture
construction were newly added and incorporated with the
Leadership Empowerment Department in the “Symbiotic”
model, ingraining corporate culture into M-series
management training courses to provide values training for
managers and show our leading ability of corporate culture.
93 culture construction trainings for junior employees
were held to set a firm foundation for their culture. Master
Kong places considerable value on its cultural cultivation
of newcomers, helping them learn about the history and
culture of the Company. While playing an instrumental
role in culture studying, the training ability improvement
also attracts our attention. During the year, the Group
recognized 196 cultural construction lecturers at all levels
through Train the Trainer (TTT) training, in order to foster
and expand the number of internal high-qualified lecturers
and build internal capacity for sharing and knowledge
creation and accumulation to boost the sustainable
development of the Company.

FEEME M1-M2 B AR SRR TTT GGREDIZ A A &
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Photo of Master Kong's Cultural Construction Course (TTT) of Grade M1-M2 (Lecturer Training)



IR (g REJAIRS | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2023 RAlBEIEER/RIFT] - 1558
EXLEES S - BT — R
XREE BEXESRXELER 5
A EBUEEKSF WAY f1# - 225
2E9IG[ EAME 2 BEREBI RG] 6
B - %35134,592 BB T2 BHER
BfE 28 148 EAEPK: 7-8 3 1
ZENM7EBMAIT LGB HET
BRE BEFEIEREERTES
R RBATEEXERARE
10-12 A - 8 F 8 R {H BT
XALEEHITARFE] 2 LR
=R BETR2,502 F (L ETT A S
7o Bl LT o AR RASH
BIFEMFER FEIEIXIFR
MIP - BIFT LI - REI
[KSF WAY b 2B E | - BHRN
L EECEXLEES  BEX
BEMENER  AX LHEEEE
HEZAEE -

L L]

In 2023, the Company focused on “Accountability/
Innovation” and strengthened corporate culture influence,
thus holding a series of cultural activities with broad
audience and high acceptance. Of which, 9 worldwide
“KSF WAY Startup Meeting (FEET{E 2 EBRIBIAE)" were
convened in May to apply KSF WAY principles; 34,592
employees were attracted to participate in “My KSF
WAY (F &I ERIE Z3)" online knowledge PK in June;
the designated persons from 117 offices throughout the
country participated in the finals in Shanghai headquarter
in July and August. It improved the recognition of corporate
culture, also building a platform for excellent employees;
the "7th Master Kong Practice Cultural Exemplary Behavior
Awards (B RAMERT XL ST AFHR)" was held
from October to December with great enthusiasm from all
employees and recorded a historical high of 2,502 culture
model cases. In the meantime, the Company first launched
a cartoon IP Kang Xiao Wen (EZ/|NXX) appealing to young
employees, so as to innovate new growth drivers of cultural
marketing; the original animation KSF WAY Cultural Series
Animation (KSF WAY (b Z5I|E)E) was published to widely
spread its values; a Wechat mini program was built to create
more possibilities for the continuous culture dissemination.

MEAal
LE715E

THE WAY OF ACCOUNTABILITY THE WAY GO TOGETHER = Ex

EENBEERET SRS AES

2023 FEREAMERT XL REBIT REEB]R

Poster Called for 2023 Master Kong Practice Cultural Exemplary Behavior
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In 2023, the Company carried out different characteristic activities:
the Victory Assembly ( CREERE) ) of the instant noodles business,
during which the elite team has reached consensus, built up confidence,
specified strategy and forged ahead; the Be Ordinary ( {3ELZE&) )
of the Master Kong beverage business has shown the model behaviour
of “Performance”; the Best Sales Pioneer ( (BT $H%c85% ) ), based on
the best sales in peak season, internally published by the pepsi beverage
business for four consecutive years, impelling benchmark culture
development of such business. The Company will join hands together
to build Master Kong's Joyful Platform (FEENBL:=F 4) into a multi-
scenario, warm and highly interactive corporate culture community, and
will develop more activities in the future to stimulate the employees.

Culture nurtures the soul, stability paths the way. In the future, the
Company will uphold the faith that “Culture cultivation serves the front
and powers the business”, vigorously driving the deep integration of
culture and practice. In the hope that each Master Kong people will
firmly comprehend the cultural connotation of the Company and walk
the walk. Corporate culture always reminds us to stay true, paints
a brighter future for business and writes a brilliant new chapter of
development, helping Master Kong to another peak and enduring
longer than others.
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BREERE Employment Category Indicators
BE
Indicators

BTHAHM

Total number of employees

RUBBPETAH

Number of employees by gender

BEREINETAH

Number of employees by age

REBERESNET A
Number of employees by type of employment

RBEEHIWET AR

Number of employees by region

Male

X

Female

FERI0F(TEIUT

Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)

Fi30m2505%(5)
Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

FES0m(TE) AL

Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)

PRET
Full-time employee

FBET

Part-time employee

EimEET
Employee in North China

Rit@ET

Employee in Northeast China

[iiple:i) =l

Employee in Northwest China

ERWEET

Employee in East China

FhEET
Employee in Central China

ERm@ET
Employee in South China

EmEET

Employee in Southwest China

Bl M= 8 T
Employee in foreign regions

2E

Data

66,807

44,100

22,707

20,424

45,366

1,017

66,807

14,196

6,731

7,164

14,420

5,978

11,000

7,273

45
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B B
Indicators Data
BETHRAR® 21.1%
Total employees turnover rate @
BURBINWETRALR ES 23.5%
Employee turnover rate by gender Male
& 16.3%
Female
BREREINWETIRALLE FE305R(TE)AT 35.2%
Employee turnover rate by age Under the age of 30 (not inclusive)
Fh 3025057 (F) 14.1%

Aged 30 to 50 (both inclusive)

FHS50m(TE)NALE 44.6%
Above the age of 50 (not inclusive)

BRihEEPWEIRALE FEHb i = 23.2%

Employee turnover rate by region North China

Rt @ 18.0%
Northeast China

rizple: el 26.4%
Northwest China

FER MG 17.7%
East China

I [E 23.1%
Central China

Esceal ) ) 21.0%
South China

(ilap:i1 19.3%
Southwest China

B oMb [ 11.1%
Foreign regions

(1) EBIBABMEHERRMEEZE (1) The total number of employees is the total number of
REEMBATNDEE T AL - employees of Master Kong and its subsidiaries.

() BIRAXR-ERFEHRFAIES (2)  Employee turnover rate = number of employees who
fZ(ZEBBER - RIK BER - T left their jobs (including voluntary departure, retirement,
BOMBIAB/ERFEETIHAA dismissal and death) in the reporting year/total number

\ X 100% ° of employees in the reporting year x 100%.

104 EaEZRERAE
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REEZ2EER Health and Safety Indicators
2023 2022 % 20214
BE Indicators 2023 2022 2021
AITHAZH® Number of work-related deaths © 0 0 0
IT#tbER® Work-related death rate @ 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%
3 ITHESFIABE=FEZE24E (3)  Work-related death statistics are for the past three years for
ESHUEKRNBITHIENR © employees who died as a result of safety incidents.
(4) BEITHEER-"EAITHMAR/EF (4)  Work-related death rate = number of work-related deaths/total
HRETHEAE X100% © number of employees at the end of the year x 100%.
REERITEBEKRBEANIEBR This year, the number of working days lost due to work-related
#8,603K ° injuries is 8,603 days.
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BIEES Training Indicators
}Eg—ﬁ (5)(6) gk#g
Indicators ®and® Data
BETHREINZIED L 5 99.9%
Percentage of employees trained by gender Male
o8 99.6%
Female
BEETBREAINIIEI L SREEERIBESL 100.0%

Percentage of employees trained
by employee level

BRI B 5 A Z AR ()
Number of hours of training
per capita by gender (hours)

RETERE SN ALDZ IR (NE)
Hours of training per person
by employee category (hours)

(5) TREIERBSMZIES =% (5)
HRIZHIE T AR/ EHERIETHLA
X 100% °

(6) METHEBIZNWALZIEFR = (6)
KRB T2y BRI T
AR

\
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Percentage of senior management trained

PREEEXIBESL 100.0%
Percentage of middle management trained

HBTXIADL 99.8%
Percentage of other employees trained

£ 119.1
Male
Z 129.7
Female
BREERESI NS 121.6

Number of hours of training
for senior management

RAREEER I 138.5
Number of hours of training
for middle management

Hih 8 TR/ 122.3
Number of hours of training
for other employees

Percentage trained by employee category = number of employees
trained in a category/total number of employees in a category x
100%.

Hours of training per person by employee category = Total hours of
training for a category of employees/Total number of employees in
a category.
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Community investment in 2023:

NEREED

= 11,0958
Approx RMB 110.95 million
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Key Performance Indicators

2023 FBETEEERFHRR :
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2023:

#10,498 /B
Approx 10,498 hours

Master Kong bears a stronger sense of social responsibility to be

constantly aware of the community needs, give back to society
and integrate community investment and public welfare practices
with its own business in order to fulfil its corporate citizenship
obligations. In 2023, Master Kong continued to leverage its
industry advantages, actively participate in community investment
and various public welfare activities, conduct food safety and
water education public welfare activities, support the development
of sports, focus on social care, assist in rural revitalization, deepen
school-enterprise cooperation, and create sustainable value by
serving the society in a tangible way, all while sharing “LIFE +
DELICACY" with partners from all walks of life.

1. Food Safety Science Popularization

Raising public scientific literacy and popularizing food safety
knowledge are effective ways to counteract food safety
rumours. Over the years, Master Kong has been actively
responding to the national food safety strategy, pooling
the efforts of all parties, and continuously exploring ways
to educate the public about food safety, and is committed
to passing on food safety knowledge and concepts to
the society through food safety science popularization to
promote social governance of food safety.

B EER
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At the Food Safety Science Popularization
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In 2023, Master Kong joined efforts for initiating “Food
Safety Guarding Action” in school with the Chinese Institute
of Food Science and Technology, in order to help the youth
establish healthy diet habits and food safety awareness
through offline popularization science exhibition, food safety
online class and lecture. We have provided excellent food
safety courses for 492 primary schools in Shenzhen, Fuzhou,
Wuhan, Shijiazhuang, Guangdong, Fujian, Hubei and Hebei
with over 580,000 students. By virtue of this, it was the only
food and beverage enterprise chosen in the “2023 Peking
University Inno Comment Case Database (20234F 4t A&l
AT R BIE)".

T S _;f;u CIFST ¥ et
4,

[RETETHIEERE
Food Safety Guarding Action in School

In November 2023, Master Kong held a demonstration lesson
in Shijiazhuang Qiaoxi Foreign Language Primary School (5
REMBAINEE N E), to interpret the common things
and misunderstanding of food safety to students for their
comprehensive realizing of food safety knowledge in daily
life. Beyond the classroom, Master Kong combines science
popularization with practice through various activities such as
funny games, VR video and interactive Q&A in five scenes of
farmland, factory, supermarket, kitchen and outdoors, helping

raise awareness of food safety among the young.

\
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Since being a partner of China’s space industry in 2017, Master
Kong successively holds aerospace science popularization
activities all around the nation in schools and builds a knowledge
system, education system and application system integrated by
“Aerospace” and “Food Safety”. This can accumulate the space
knowledge and improve food safety cultivation of the whole
people, especially young people. In April 2023, China Media
Group Mobile united Master Kong to launch the “Rocket Launch
Activity”, inviting lots of e-friends to watch the rocket launch at
China’s Wenchang Space Launch site.
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o
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i

[E8R5 - BANESTER RS
The “Rocket Launch Activity”

2. Education on Water

The “Education on Water” project is an industrial public
welfare activity initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association and the packed water enterprises, aiming to
cultivate good drinking and water-using habits among
primary school students and making them be the active
practitioners and disseminators of “knowing, loving and
saving water”. 2023 is the ninth year that Master Kong has
been giving an active repose to and working on “Education
on Water” project. The related activities has successfully
promoted to more than 30 schools across the country, and
nearly 10,000 students who directly benefited from water
education public welfare science popularization projects
have participated.

B EER
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In 2023, the "Education on Water” project has expanded
more online we-medias and social platforms to popularize
knowledge of water resources and water environment to
young people in flourishing forms with “popularization in
school and after-class rejuvenation”. More attention has
been bringing to the “Education on Water” project by using
all-rounded media channels, to improve public awareness of
water conservation and environmental protection.
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[K#E EREES

"Education on Water” activity in School

Sports Charity Events

China attaches great importance to the crucial role of sports
activities in improving the health and happy life of the
Chinese people. In 2021, the 74th Five Year Plan of Work
Plan on Sports Development ( { [+ ] 8BFHEMR
2) ) was officially issued by the General Administration of
Sport of China, which specified deployment for the starting
period that moves along with laying a solid foundation of
a country strong on sports and placing efforts on sports
modernization. As a national brand enterprise, Master Kong
is committed to helping build China into a country strong
on sports and a healthy China, providing logistical support
for the development of national sports.
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Master Kong has been the “Marathon Nutrition and
Diet Partner” for six consecutive years. From top-level
championships to mass sport events, we always advocate
the diet concepts with science and provide more than
1,000,000 runners pre-race and post-race energy supply
services, including Master Kong Boiled Water (EEAT{% 08 7
7K), Gatorade, Instant Noodles and other products. With
the brand idea of “More Fun with Instant Noodles (5% &
BFun)”, we supported marathon events in Jiangsu, Hunan,
Henan, Xinjiang, Ningxia and other places. It creates and
delivers a diet culture “Dynamic Balance of Food and Sport”
to the runners, arouses the enthusiasm of all people for
running and transmits the concept of a healthy marathon.

2023F  MPEZRF T ZHH
NaRITEE PEHRES -
WHEBEE EHREEE - FA
B EDEEHELRE
B BNEEEFEHEER -
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BEESNERREEM BN
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LT ASRNINERS
At the Marathon in Changshu, Jiangsu

In 2023, we also supported public welfare cycling events,
badminton events, tennis events, basketball events and others
in many places. These events can promote sports for all and
boost the balanced development of sports. In the future, Master
Kong will continue to support the development of sports events
in China, helps athletes realize their dreams on the field, and
continues to promote national sports in a sustainable, healthy and
orderly manner.
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Badminton events in Honggiao town, Shanghai
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[ZREMN]BITERERRIEES
Bicycle League Naming “Colorful Guizhou”
in Fuquan Railway Station

Focus on Social Care

Master Kong widely utilizes its own resources and influence
to actively participate in social and community construction
to improve people’s well-being. In 2023, Master Kong
continued to focus on social needs and concerns, provided
assistance to underprivileged areas, and continued to
conduct outreach activities to nursing homes, kindergartens,
schools, hospitals, police stations, troops and remote areas
across the country. We invested resources in disaster relief
and public welfare education, provided care for outdoor
workers such as sanitation workers, delivery workers and
traffic police, as well as autistic children and children with
disabilities, so as to build a warmer city and a more positive
society.



BIE -

e RkER

#H= | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REBIEREFRIELE &
BEFNEBER  BEYR
—ERABTENESIRIER
EIEZ 20234 H&#E 5
HEE - BRIRSS—E
ﬁﬂﬂigx /\/j:/ N ;/Jm CHERE
RRELELE - BMEBN
HMSIBETHAAEFHEEH
oA EBE—YAURNE
BHEZHEZWE - BREKA
BB E B A RUE B IR 7
BEEXIHMEHRE - THE
REMER - BRMEEE &K
BKERETEMERRESR
XKERRFT RS2HEMEE
B MR - X
AR RERAENRERM
& - FAERREB UL TIR
FE BB SEHFSEE K
BKMESHEZT L R ETY
BRERER - EHKEED

BEEEN  BRARX LR RM
HEABRXRERKAKERTD

ﬁ'%tﬁmﬁ%%ﬁ°

FEEIERAE 22 HTIER

Master Kong's Donation of “Mutual Construction by Police and People to Ensure a Safe Travel”

As an outstanding national enterprise, Master Kong has
established an increasingly improved emergency and
disaster relief plan after years of practice. In 2023, Gansu,
Qinghai, Chongging, Heilongjiang and many coastal areas
were affected by floods, high temperatures, earthquakes,
typhoons and other disasters. Under the guidance of
government departments, we made use of our own sales
network to quickly coordinate all available strengths and
send out batches of emergency supplies to provide energy
boost and logistical support for the affected people and the
struggling rescue teams. In the earthquake zone of Linxia,
Gansu Province, we delivered emergency supplies such as
instant noodles and drinking water to the homes of the
affected residents, as well as to the relevant units and social
welfare institutions involved in the rescue. In the typhoon-
affected and rainstorm-prone Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region,
Master Kong quickly launched a flood support program,
sending more than 110,000 items of instant noodles,
drinking water, cakes and other much-needed supplies to
disaster areas. In the flood-ravaged Wanzhou, Chongging,
we sent water and other urgently needed supplies to the
affected people and rescue workers, offering the warmest
care.
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Master Kong Supporting Mentougou District, Beijing
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In previous disaster relief efforts, Master Kong summarized
its experience of water and electricity supply interruptions
caused by disasters and independently developed and
modified a self-provided “emergency rescue vehicle”
with “water and electricity” to overcome the restrictions
on water and electricity consumption caused by the
environment. In 2023, we added a function of public
welfare causes publicity to the “emergency rescue vehicle ”
During the critical firefighting period of the New Year's Day
and the Spring Festival, we cooperate with the professional
firefighting institutions, use the “emergency rescue vehicle”
as the carrier to publicize fire knowledge, reach out to the
university campus, carry out fire drill public welfare activities,
to help college students learn the self-rescue skills in case of
fire accidents.

= ey

"EJ:E" ﬂﬁﬂﬂ gmm.ﬁ

o &5
=

R E S BB B ERE DR ERARED
Master Kong “Emergency Rescue Vehicle into the Campus” Public Welfare Activity for Fire Publicity
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Master Kong continues to pay attention to the social needs
during the middle school entrance examination and college
entrance examination, and provide help to the students to
the best of its ability. In June, we carried out the “Drinking
Boiled Water to Kick-Start the Exam (B3 5t 28R K)"
public welfare activity to escort the college entrance
examination, set up assistance stations at the school gates,
prepared cooling tools and examination stationery for
the candidates, to support the students in achieving their
dreams of taking the college entrance examination. Master
Kong actively works hand in hand with all parties involved
in public welfare causes. During the 2023 Children’s Day,
Master Kong and the One Foundation jointly launched the
“Supporting You All the Way (202 HREIK)” public
welfare program, planning to support stadium construction
in 12 rural schools in 6 provinces across the country, keeping
children’s dream lights on and giving them wings to their
sports dreams, walking out of the rural schools and reaching
out to the wider world.
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[HAZEREBEFKIEMTEZERREDY
"Drinking Boiled Water to Kick-Start the Exam” Public Welfare Activity to Escort
the Middle School Entrance Examination and the College Entrance Examination
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Master Kong's “Joint Efforts in Empowering Rural Areas” Industry-assisted Agriculture Program
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Rural Revitalisation

As a leading enterprise in the deep processing of the food
industry, Master Kong actively responds to the national call
to accelerate the construction of an agricultural power and
comprehensively promote rural revitalization, and walks
into the countryside to jointly develop rural advantageous
industries according to local conditions and fosters and
develops new industries and new forms of business in
rural areas. Master Kong, starting from its own, practices
the objective of “Sustainable Operation, Contribution
to Society” to empower rural farmers to promote rural
modernization.

In the China’s largest mustard production base located in
Huarong County, Hunan Province, Master Kong and China
Foundation for Rural Development jointly launched the
“Joint Efforts in Empowering Rural Areas (4848848, /RE &
T)" industry-assisted agriculture program. We went deep
into rural households, and established a “village collective
+ cooperative + farmer” model to promote rural industry
development and rural comprehensive management,
which effectively increased the added value of agricultural
materials such as mustard, and benefited more than
130,000 vegetable growers in Hunan Province. The program
was awarded the “ESG Practice Pioneer Award of the Year”
in the 2023 CAIING NEW-MEDIA New Awards selection
and was selected into “2023 Rural Revitalization Innovation
Cases” by People.cn, and obtained the “Partner of Shanpin
Commune of China Foundation for Rural Development for
the Year (PEIBNERESGEM AL FRESIERMH)".
In the future, Master Kong will continue to exert its own
resource advantages and forge ahead with responsibilities in
promoting China’s agriculture modernization.
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School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong develops school-enterprise cooperation, insists
on the concept of “deep ploughing in China, facing the
world” to develop talents, establishes and deepens school
enterprise cooperation with 70 universities and 40 vocational
schools nationwide. We are committed to the goal of
“Healthy China, Strengthening Education” and developing
talent training, providing the society with composite talents
with both professional and practical abilities.

In the face of a challenging economic environment and
job market, Master Kong responded to the national call
for policies and provided thousands of job opportunities
for graduates throughout the year. We collaborated
with domestic universities to conduct research on food
safety, production processes and technology, application
development, and supported the commercialization of
core technologies and innovative achievements. In terms of
vocational education, we earnestly implemented the spirit
of school-enterprise cooperation, continued to improve the
education system, promoted the “Ordered Class of Master
Kong"” training model, explored new ideas and methods for
student training and employment from both the perspective
of the school and the enterprise, and created a new
educational model of in-depth cooperation between schools
and enterprises. In terms of recruitment, Master Kong
carried out online and offline recruitment activities such
as Open Day and live broadcast to provide opportunities
for students to have access to enterprises through various
channels and foster win-win situation of “cultivation and
employment”.
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In 2023, Master Kong continued to explore ways of
cooperation with top domestic and international universities,
establishing collaborative projects in various areas such
as internships, talent exchange, enterprise case studies
and scholarship programs to promote communication
and learning and expand the Company's influence, and
making forward planning to attract high-end talents. We
launched the second phase of “Integrated Practical Projects
(IPP)" in collaboration with the School of Economics and
Management at Tsinghua University, adhered to the concept
of “teaching and learning, cooperation and co-creation (#{
EFRE, W{EHAN", and jointly studied the topic of enterprise
management, continued to carry out the “DTC Trend on
China’s Fast Consumable Product” activity to jointly create
industry analysis and business recommendations, allowing
students to flexibly apply economic management knowledge
into the real enterprise operation and further improving
their enterprise comprehensive ability. We joined hands
with the education base for ideological and political practice
courses at Yuanpei Collage of Peking University to further
deepen cooperation and made joint efforts to promote
the integration of “general education” into society. In the
future, we will continue to build a bridge of communication
between China and foreign countries, establish a platform
for industry-university-research exchanges and cooperation,
providing strong support for industry development and
talent cultivation.
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Serial No. Awards

1 L4 JER A B Forward Faster Early Mover @ %0175 85k
“Forward Faster Early Mover - Pioneer” awarded by the United Nations

2 ANEE = BIRPINBERS2023 PR T s R ElE ]
Listed as a “2023 China Industrial Carbon Peak Pioneer Enterprise”at the 3rd Boao Carbon Neutrality
Conference

3 R HEETm 2023 U  EHERE R

“Harvard Business Review - 2023 Ram Charan Management Practice Award”

4 ANE[2023 @ METH B ESG AIFT 3 AT |
Selected into the “2023 Forbes China ESG Innovation Enterprise Selection”

5 REE=[ERRTNEERS P MERBIF X IR
“Innovative Enterprise in Carbon Neutrality” Award at the 3rd Boao Carbon Neutrality Conference

6 ZIEHRflag [ 1R 542 | 2023 RIEANEREIREB B
“Best HR Program of 2023 ONEFLAG AWARDS" of HRFlag

7 RETHREAERREBEAT ARG RAREBEATBEEMEIN ZERFHEEHA R HEHFHLES
HEE

“Award of Excellence in Future Management Talent Cultivation (R2REIE A A E S#4)" and the “Award
of digitalization Learning Project (FEEFLEEIH B #) “granted by China-eu Business Future Talent
Management Conference (PRI AR REE AT AE)

8 KEBREEANRT2023FEHTHEZESHMEES SHER4E]
“Excellent Innovation Award (.2 &I28)" awarded by MYbank of Ant Group at the 2023 Digital Supply
Chain Financial Brand Summit

9 REHRIRTTIBEAIERH

“Value Cooperation Partner” Award granted by China Merchants Bank

10 AEARBM2023FBACETSEFREREMNIRR - 8 KRR (ESG) FERY
Selected as the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Annual Case by People’s Daily at the China
Corporate Social Responsibility Forum

11 NE[ 1R T 2023 FE ESG I RRE =]
Selected as 2023 Forbes’ Annual List of “Inspiring Cases” relating to ESG

12 LESAERMIISEE 2R MAIFE]
The "iSEE Global Food Innovation Award” awarded by Foodaily
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ERE[2022FHBEBEE T REEmMIEE JfI=
Ranking among the top three in the “2022 Most Chosen Brands in CRP”

KEXNERE -EEATGRMEESG CEMERLRRBITEEASE]
“Qutstanding Environmental Practice Enterprise Platinum Award” awarded at the First Greater Bay Area
Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility (ESG) Enterprise Selection

NE[FEEREBN IBEERRTMEER
Selected as “Xinhua Credit Golden Orchid Cup”-Leading Case of Carbon Peaking and Carbon Neutrality

2023 0B RFRERDISAE]
“2023 Golden Flag Award Environmental Protection Grand Award”

KEETNEPERAAXBRTERERIRECELSE TR E]
The “19th China Global Awards for Excellence in Public Relations Social Responsibility Gold Award

[RANES & RMAYINE | KEE -+ EFRAFERAAE &X BN ERME]
“Dried Noodles Collection - Fried Noodles with Black Pepper and Beef Fillet” awarded the “Most Popular
Instant Food Award” at the 23rd China Instant Food Conference

EFAFEREN02Q2FEZRAMEENR ML 2 M E(IRE)
Chongging Pepsi awarded the “2022 Global Beverage Quality and Food Safety Excellence Award (Bronze
Award) ”

[EZFAE XTI |EREI2022-2023 FEH B A MR BITEEFAIFER 2

"Dried Noodles Collection” awarded the “Instant Food Innovation Award in the Year of 2022-2023" in China

[HERE R 1 KE[2022-2023 FEHESEARMITEBESBIFEMR |2
"Express Chef's Noodles Series” awarded the "“Qutstanding Instant Food Innovation Grand Award in the Year
of 2022-2023" in China

(N FEESGE B L1848 |
“ESG Practice Pioneer Award of the Year” awarded by the CALING NEW-MEDIA

[EZEERE HAsYHAe [HRMWIKBRRARE AR KE2023 2R B F IR mEARE

“Living in Harmony with All Things on a Bottle-Free World (=R E HEEYIHLAE)" World Earth Day
carbon reduction cause marketing program awarded the “2023 ROI Business Creative Marketing Silver
Award”

(AmE  PEEEERESE MK PECEHEEES LEaERE]
" Aerospace Quality, Chinese Noodles” program awarded the “Social Innovation Contribution Award” in Yicai:
The Corporate Social Responsibility Ranking in China

[(FiRanE - B 1R B KER B BB T 2023 FEEELE]
"Aerospace Quality, Chinese Noodles” program awarded the “2023 Responsible Enterprise” by China
Newsweek

[RLZRIEEREITHE REBRETI MXESG ki)
“Food Safety Science Popularization into Campus” campaign awarded the “Enterprise ESG Pioneer” by
Bloomberg Businessweek
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[MRk&BREZRIEHERE |TH B LB KA FTml 2023 FEEZEMITRG ]

“Aerospace & Food Safety Science Popularization” in schools (i A&E LRI # K &) have been chosen as
“2023 Industrial Research Case (2023 FEEZEMITEA)" in the Peking University Inno Comment Case
Database

ERIE2023 9 EE[ AB L e 1]
“2023 Golden Flag Award Content Marketing Gold Award”

EfEHh RS EEEERD
“Media-Enterprise Cooperation Case” selected at the China International Advertising Festival

[FEEVE BN IREAS BE RETFEBNERESGEMAMFESERH]
“Master Kong Rural Revitalization Program” awarded the “Partner of Shanpin Commune of China Foundation
for Rural Development for the Year”

[REDVE BN REE I THAREARSE  AREBIEN2023 B R EAIZT A
“Master Kong Rural Revitalization Program” selected into “2023 Rural Revitalization Innovation Cases” by
People Best Selection (AR &) of People.cn

(AN E RN IREAE B RENKFEESGERTEE]
“Master Kong Rural Revitalization Program” awarded the “ESG Practice Pioneer Award of the Year” by the
CAIING NEW-MEDIA

[REAVEZEBREFAE | KEHPRBNERESSER AL FRAIERE IBR
“Master Kong Old Altar Pickled Beef Noodles” awarded the “Partner of Shanpin Commune of China
Foundation for Rural Development for the Year”
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The Company has always been maintaining and improving the
governance standard of the Company, so as to enhance the Group's
accountability and transparency and increase long-term return for
shareholders. We have, throughout the year ended 31 December
2023, complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code which became effective in the year (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the deviation from code provision B.2.2. The reason for this deviation is
explained below.

According to code provision B.2.2, each director (including those
with a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. According to the Company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association, the chairman of the Board is
not subject to retirement by rotation. He is not included in the number
of directors who are required to retire each year. The Board believes
that the continuity of the leadership of the chairman of the Board is
critical to the stability of the Group’s development and the planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and business
plans. Accordingly, the Board considers that although the provisions
of the above rules deviate from Code Provision B.2.2, it is in the best
interests of the Company.
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We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

e Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

e  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
e Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees.

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for the overall strategy
and direction for the Group, while the management is delegated to
manage the daily businesses of the Group. To ensure the Board of
Directors is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner,
the management’s principle functions include (i) implementing the
Company’s corporation strategy and business schemes; (ii) providing
monthly management accounts and updates to the Board of Directors
for the management report, providing detailed data of the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, so as to ensure that the directors have full and timely access
to all relevant information and may take independent professional
advice if necessary; (iii) daily management of the Group.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 153 to 158 of
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors and at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, independent non-executive directors of the
Company did not entered into service contracts with the Company.
According to the articles 99 of association of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple
of 3, the number nearest to one-third shall retire from office by rotation
at each Annual General Meeting, and the retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election. Therefore, for the year ended 31 December
2023, the actual length of services of each independent non-executive
director of the Company is no more than three years.

As each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relative
relationships among the members of the Board, except as disclosed in
the “Directors’ profiles” on pages 153 to 158.
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The Board's mechanism of obtaining independent advice

There are three independent non-executive directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company, who have many years of experience in the
fields of financial market operation, corporate finance and financial
planning, and corporate audit, respectively. The Company’s independent
non-executive Directors are in a position to provide independent,
appropriate advice to the Board of Directors, to ensure that the Board of
Directors may obtain the independent views it needs when performing
its duties and making material resolutions. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company’s independent non-executive Directors
routinely attend Board meetings and actively engage in the Board's
decision-making process, providing independent views and advice while
performing their own duties at the Board of Directors. In addition, all
Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice regarding
their duties at the Company’s expenses. Based on the above, the Board
of Directors has reviewed its mechanism of obtaining independent
advice and considered that it has been fully implemented and continues
to be effective.

During the year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group is
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group is Mr.
Chen Yinjang.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. As of 31 December
2023 and till the release date of this report, the proportion of female
members on the Board of Directors is approximately 11%, and the
Company has satisfied the requirements of gender diversity of the Board
of Directors members. The Board hopes that the proportion of female
members will remain at least at the current level and will continue to
seek opportunities to increase the proportion of female members in the
future if suitable candidates are available.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has been delegated
with the responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on
an annual basis. During the year, the Remuneration and Nomination

BiZRERE - Committee reviewed the below measurable objectives and the progress
in achieving these objectives:
A EEE ERBENER

Measurable Objectives

The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BE— ExgxLA R TRERNNES e HZE2023%F12A31H ARAEEE
HE-—ZLUES  BIREEK
Objective 1 There shall be at least one Director of a e As of 31 December 2023, there is one
different gender on the Board of Directors female Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company in total, and the objective
has been achieved
S S HEZAT(BEREER - ot - KBRES o 2023FEEE/K UHBEDNEET
DNEBRRESETENBRZ)PERZRER It BEABUKEBZERES
EENBREARMNENESTENZ TILRE
h—EAEEEE
Objective 2 Considering candidates for appointment as ®  The objective has been achieved in 2023,
Directors from a wide pool of talents taking and will continue to identify diverse,
into account the background, skills, experience appropriate candidates to propose
and perspectives that would complement the directors for appointment
existing Board, and adding Board diversity as
one of the priority considerations
BE= BFEAZESSHEREERE  URESEEZ o 2023FECDEK AZBERKEESS
TALIER ZlbeErh BRRMEERESFgNA
DALYt
Objective 3 Assessing the composition, the structure and ¢ The objective has been achieved in

diversity of the Board of Directors on an annual
basis

2023, and the assessment process
includes the evaluation of Board diversity
and considering the composition and
performance of the Board of Directors
objectively

\
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Developing a pipeline of potential successors
to the Board of Directors to achieve gender
diversity
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EREENEE
The Progress of Achieving the Targets

2023 FEEENX - KW EREE - #
AARMSEEmREERZ Tl 8
FETRREEENERE HESE
MRZTbnE  EERSENEER
BAC WBIIRHERRERN B8
EEHSRER RIE Mt E LA -
RRB TG HE B RIS S AR B TR
BUEMZ T RAKEEBE LM
BEANEBREBESESEMTA - AREINE
TRSLERRMMEARBERRE &
EERERE  RELNZTENEE T
1 o

The objective has been achieved in 2023,
and the Company has taken steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to the Board
of Directors and management levels.
With regards to gender diversity on the
Board of Directors, in selecting suitable
candidates for directorships and proposing
recommendations for selection, the
Board of Directors takes the opportunity
to increase the proportion of female
members as time goes by. The Company
will continue to promote gender diversity
when recruiting staff at middle to senior
level, so as to reserve a number of female
senior management staff and potential
director successors for the future.
The Company aims to keep a proper
balance of gender diversity by referring
to the expectations of shareholders and
international and local best practices.
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The Group’s male and female staff account for approximately 66% and
34% of the total number of staff, respectively. In the past year, the
proportion of female staff in the Group was substantially the same as
that in the previous year.

The Board of Directors conducts an annual review on the gender
diversity policy of all employees. During the year, the Board of Directors

DERIERIENEE has reviewed the programme below and the progress in achieving these
objectives:

=T & EREENEE

Programme The Progress of Achieving the Targets

BiZ RARSEIREGTFEReERERZTL - I o  2023FEEENK - ARRERABRHES

ERMEEETERE MERZ T LT MK

R

Objective

opportunities and gender diversity, monitoring
and measuring its performance in equal

The Company encourages and advocates equal  ®

TLABEHIE
o BHEEE AT HE

Z LR
The objective has been achieved in 2023,
providing diversity and inclusion training

EEMEAAEN

for senior management staff

opportunities and gender diversity

EEer NBREREANETEEEARZ
ee - ERBITEEAMEREA] - WAEE
TEEREMT

(a) HIERBHALBLEE
B

AR M

(b)) BIALEREELR
Bl EE R R

REEANE®
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e Continuing to reinforce the diversity
and inclusion of talent recruitment,
management and promotion

The Board applies good corporate governance principles and is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its
written terms of reference as set out below:

(@)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the year under review, the Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance practices and ensured compliance with the CG
Code (especially the principles of good corporate governance) and the
requirements disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting. Board
meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to each
Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial year ended
31 December 2023 six Board meetings were held. The attendance of
individual director to the Board meetings in year 2023 is summarised
below:

R /BT
EEEERBRE
Number of
Board Meetings

Attended/Held
Executive Directors
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 6/6
Mr. Junichiro Ida 6/6
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 6/6
Mr. Koji Shinohara 6/6
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 6/6
Ms. Tseng Chien 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 6/6
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 4/6
Mr. Hiromu Fukada (resigned on 17 April 2024) 6/6

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 177 to 184.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where
appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice on their responsibilities, expenses
paid by the company. To ensure that the directors have deepened their
understanding of the Group, senior management of the Company has
conducted a continuing professional development plan for the directors
during the year.
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Summary for 2023 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China's various regional channels operating
conditions; and

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

In accordance with Code Provision C.1.4, all Directors are required to
provide their respective training records to the Company. A summary of
the training received by each Director during the period from 1 January
2023 to 31 December 2023 is set out below:

SMESHEE
EXBREE  BEAE
EHRAREMBEREE
ERNEFBRIERME

Participate in the
Directors’ continuing
professional development
programme and read
materials on the latest
developments in relation
to the Listing Rules

and other applicable

=== Directors regulatory regulations
HITEE Executive Directors

BREEE . Wei Hong-Ming v
FHE—REE . Junichiro Ida v
BMARREE . Wei Hong-Chen v
REREE . Koji Shinohara v
miEBELE . Yuko Takahashi v
Ea+ . Tseng Chien v
HUIFHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors

RIEHEE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun v
TREXE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock v
AR EA (2024 4 A 17 BEHE) Mr. Hiromu Fukada (resigned on 17 April 2024) v

2024 F4 1780 - MEHRDEEEEZHF
BARNTVEILIERITES - R2024F 4 8
178 WMEHRBEAEETRELMHRAE
309D EFATHEERER - WHERHRE
EBEMBITAZEENET -

On 17 April 2024, Mr. Masaya Tochio was appointed as the
Independent Non-executive Director. On 17 April 2024, Mr. Masaya
Tochio has obtained the legal advices as stated in Rule 3.09D
of the Listing Rules and has confirmed that he understood his
obligations as a director of a listed issuer.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in September
1999 . For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock,
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock acts
as Chairman of the Audit Committee. On 17 April 2024, Mr. Hiromu
Fukada resigns as an Independent Non-executive Director and member
of the Audit Committee due to the reason that he needs to devote
more time to his other endeavours. Mr. Masaya Tochio is appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems and
their effectiveness, as well as maintaining good corporate governance
standards and practices. It also acts as an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
group audit. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and will meet regularly with management, internal
auditors and external auditors, as well as review their reports. During
this financial year, the work conducted by the Audit Committee include:
review of financial statements, annual and interim report and result
announcements of the Group, regular meeting with management,
internal auditors and external auditors, as well as review of their reports.
Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the financial
year ended 31 December 2023. Details of the attendance of the audit
committee meetings are as follows:

HE /BITERIRE
RE Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
TREEE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 2/2
RIERRE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 212
R4 (2024 5 Mr. Hiromu Fukada

4 717 BEHE)

ERZEORIARAZERIERAEE
2023 F[E 234 -
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(resigned on 17 April 2024) 2/2

The latest meeting of the Audit Committee was held to review the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee comprises four directors, namely,
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and executive Director, Mr. Wei Hong
Ming. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee. On
17 April 2024, Mr. Hiromu Fukada resigns as an Independent Non-
executive Director and member of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee due to the reason that he needs to devote more time to his
other endeavours. Mr. Masaya Tochio is appointed as the Independent
Non-executive Director and member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee of the Company.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2023. Details of the
attendance of the remuneration and nomination committee meeting
are as follows:

HE /I BITERRE
RE Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
RIEBEE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 171
TREEE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11
RS A (2024 5 Mr. Hiromu Fukada
4F17 HEHT) (resigned on 17 April 2024) 171
BRAEE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11
HFHNRIEREEE The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was set up to review

BRI EHERZEFTE
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E=giRLER  IBMREERENRZE
EENBREFTAAFRABRAENRA -
EFRREREFNEE  FHMERZES
1L BIREENER  MBRERKE
MEMPAREFET RSB RBREE
VREEFEKREZTL(BREERNZ T
) RAMBFEEAR HFMRRERZE
EHERNTIERE  REFEZ2RE
MERENX  FHERTESNRE  F&

the structure, size and diversity of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members, assess the independence
of the independent non-executive directors, advise the Board on the
remuneration of individual executive directors and senior management,
and consider and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, including the terms of salary
and bonus schemes and other long-term incentive schemes. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. With regard to the policy on the
nomination of Directors, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
will take into account the experience, knowledge and professionalism
of the nominees in order to enable them to bring efficiency and
effectiveness to the Board and to promoting diversity in board
membership (including gender diversity). During this financial year,
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the Remuneration and Nomination Committee implemented works
including: review the structure, size and composition of the Board;
assess the performance of the Executive Directors; review diversity
status of existing members of the Board and give advice; evaluate the
biography of the Director candidates and advise the Board in respect of
the re-appointment of the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the
remuneration of senior management.

AATHEMBRENT : The Company'’s remuneration policies are as follows:

() BEEEENNEMRERSERE (@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
SATATFREEEHE 543 be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
TR requirements;

() FiTEENFHKEERURZE (b)  The remuneration of directors should be set at a lever sufficient
MR EESITARLETN NS to attract and retain them to manage the Company’s operations
FEZHME  TRBATYER without excessive payment, while taking into account the
TREFMERENEL: & Company's requirements for the time required to perform their

duties; and

() BETE2EHTHEAGH - (¢ A director must not be involved in the making of his personal

remuneration.

AEFEEENSEESEHE 2023412 A Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the

31 BEENMEEHESH NGB REN:E Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 10 to

10 ° the consolidated financial statements.

AE IF2023F 12 A31HEE L1014 The emoluments paid to the ten senior management individuals during

SlEEE AT ZMESAERIMT ¢ the year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows:

BEAH

ERESMSA5 Emoluments band Number of individuals

2,715,837 AR % 3,168,475 AR RMB2,715,837 to RMB3, 168,475

(3,000,001 %= 3,500,000 % 7T) (HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000) 2

4,526,394 AR¥ZE 4,979,032 AR RMB4,526,394 to RMB4,979,032

(5,000,001 L= 5,500,000 % 7T) (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 3
5,431,672 AR =5,884,311 ARM RMB5,431,672 to RMB5,884,311
(6,000,001 & 7L%E 6,500,000/87T) (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1
6,336,951 AR¥ % 6,789,589 AR RMB6,336,951 to RMB6,789,589
(7,000,001 %= 7,500,000 % 7T) (HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000) 1
6,789,590 AR¥ZE 7,242,229 AR M RMB6,789,590 to RMB7,242,229
(7,500,001 & 7L% 8,000,000/8 7T ) (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000) 1
7,242,230 AR¥%E 7,694,868 AR RMB7,242,230 to RMB7,694,868
(8,000,001 L= 8,500,000 % 7T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
12,673,901 AR¥ 13,126,540 ARHE RMB12,673,901 to RMB13,126,540
(14,000,001 T ZE 14,500,000 7 7T) (HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000) 1
10
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The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.

i.e. control environment, risk assessment,

The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.

Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2023, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection system
has been established to achieve full coverage of external and internal
inspection on each aspect thought the management circle. Meanwhile,
more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries where
management regulations have been formulated with a priority to
processes of higher risk. In addition, the Group has been promoting the
monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations anti-fraud and the
construction of internal control culture.

The Board conducts review for the Group’s risk management and
internal control system at least once annually. The Board recognizes
it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group's business objectives and the Board can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. For the financial year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems. All the important controls have been reviewed,
including financial control, operational control and compliance control.
According to the internal audit of the internal inspection department,
we have not identified any material deficiency in risk management and
internal control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe
that the Group’s risk management and internal control system are
effective.
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The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.

In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group continued to focus on management of five major risks in
three categories, namely environment, social and governance in 2023
with specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1. ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTION RISKS
1.1.1 Definitions:

e Improper management of raw materials and
energy consumption in the production and
processing process leads to the risk of resource
waste and excessive emissions.

e Improper disposal of hazardous wastes in the
waste disposal process leads to environmental
pollution risks.
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1.1.2 Coping strategies:

Adhering to the guidance of the sustainable
development concept of “Keep Our Nature Green”,
the Group focused on resource conservation and
accurately accounts for energy consumption and
resource input in the production design process. For
recyclable resources, resource wastage is reduced and
input of redundant materials are managed from the
source through efficient reuse in the production loop.

The Group promoted environmentally-friendly
packaging through innovative products, and reduced
the consumption of plastic packaging and the
circulation of plastic products in society through
effective management.

Combined with the actual situation during the daily
production process, the Group fully supervised and
counseled the production process to ensure that the
efficient production process was put into operation
effectively. The yield rate was improved in the
production process and wasted material and spoilage
was reduced.

The Group ensured that hardware and software
personnel were in place during the waste disposal
process, optimized the waste management process
and closely monitored the discharge treatment
process to ensure that it met or exceeded the national
standards.
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2.1

FOOD SAFETY RISKS:

2.1.1 Definitions:

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.

At present, the dissemination of media information is

not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights

violations, and if the food information acquisition,

transmission or communication is not timely, or the

clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it may

cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and eventually

affect brand reputation

2.1.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection.
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Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

2.2 CORRUPTION RISKS

2.2.1 Definitions:

Personal behavior norms or professional ethics may
deviate and administrative behavior is out of control
because of selfish desires, self-interest and other
ideological and moral errors, or family affection and
other circumstances, or to instruct others to violate
professional ethics, resulting in unjust and unfair
results of work behavior, damage to the interests of
work targets or improper gains, which constitutes
serious consequences such as “abuse of power for
personal gain”.

There is a lack of effective supervision and internal
control mechanism for mutual interaction and
balances in all aspects of business process, resulting in
the risk that managers are prone to fraud.

It may cause incorrectly performing administrative
duties or inaction by on-the-job personnel, constituting
serious consequences such as dereliction of duty,
malpractice and “abuse of power for personal gain”
due to the particularity of post responsibilities and
the practical risks in terms of ideology and morality,
external environment and institutional mechanisms.
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2.2.2 Coping strategies:

The Group has established and continuously
improved its anti-corruption mechanisms, focusing on
prevention, implementing punishment and prevention
in parallel and clarifying the key links and key areas
of anti-fraud to standardize the whistleblowing,
investigation, handling, reporting and remedial
procedures for fraud cases.

The Group has promulgated at least 20 management
policies and systems related to anti-corruption and
anti-bribery, covering the directors and all employees
of the Group, as well as cooperative suppliers,
customers and distributors, in order to continuously
strengthen its construction of anti-fraud system.
The Group has clarified the professional integrity of
employees, strictly prohibited job fraud, implemented
fraud reporting and supervision and review, and
stipulated corresponding punishment measures.

The Group continuously promoted integrity culture
building and conducted anti-fraud publicity for
employees to reinforce the awareness of business
conduct, and create a healthy culture and clean
atmosphere through various training forms such
as new employee training, corporate micro-signal
publicity and online learning platform, ensuring that
all directors and employees were covered by anti-
corruption and anti-fraud business ethics training.

The Group took advantage of informatization
measures to strengthen the internal control system
measures to business systems, enhanced the coverage
of business control, so as to identify and collect fraud
clues in a timely manner, and set up preventive,
identifiable and corrective internal control measures in
business systems and applications. The Group regularly
reviewed and supervised the business conduct and
professional integrity of business departments.
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INFORMATION RISK

3.1.1 Definitions:

Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

The regulations related to information security are
becoming more strict, while employee awareness of
information protection is weak, there is the risk of
information leakage.
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3.1.2 Coping strategies:

Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company according to adopted
ISO27001 information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through

enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational strategy,

staff awareness, user access, information assets safety,

emergency management, system operation, outsourcing

management and legal compliance management.

Achieve self-improvement of information security

management system through online and offline publicization

and implementation, theorical penetration by departmental

safety liaison officer, periodic tour inspection and audit

under the guidance of external certification institutions and

ongoing follow-up on corrections.
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Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to further expand

the coverage and management dept of the information

security management system and continuously and

effectively reduce the risk in leakage of information relating

to its core strategy, technology, operation, financial reports

and human resource, etc.

Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

3.2 SUPPLY CHAIN RISK

3.2.1 Definition

In the context of a fluctuating raw material price,
enterprises may be unable to avoid risk of fluctuations
in market prices as they fail to make reasonable
procurement prediction due to inaccurate judgement
on market trend or failure to adopting diversified
procurement strategy and tools.

Due to much reliance on a single supplier, enterprises
may be unable to develop or switch a new supplier in
a timely manner in case of supplier exit or occurrence
of quality problem, thereby impacting the operation of
the enterprise.

There are still room for improvement in the EHS
management in production process: the tightening
standard in emission cut and energy conservation,
enhancing staff awareness on health and certain
safety control and monitoring still to be improved,
which may pose challenges on the Company.
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strategy with two procurement approaches which
are centralized procurement by the headquarter and
separate procurement by local operations. Through
centralized procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of local
procurement, the Group could fully utilize the
advantage of local resources, which could be an
effective complement to centralized procurement.

Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the alternate
supplier of key materials. Based on the important
levels of raw materials, the top-level material shall
have at least one principal supplier as well as three to
four (and more) alternate suppliers to ensure prompt
availability of the material at any time of emergency.
In the context of uncertainties such as the global
pandemic, etc., the Group has formulated risk control
plan for imported materials and supplies to ensure a
safe supply.

Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward
the certification of I1SO45001/14001 dual systems.
Main while, improve the relevant warrants obtaining
efficiency through internal management and optimize
the design side to effectively manage risk and conduct
daily safety inspection to reinforce the effective
implementation at the execution side.
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To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through evaluation and
support from external professional independent consultant, as well
as the understanding and internalization of their results, adhering to
the operating idea and corporate culture spirit of the Group, the 2024
guidance of optimization of risk management and internal control
system is specified and formulated.

Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identifies, assesses and monitors group-level significant risks
on a regular basis. In addition, based on the data of risk assessment,
to assist the management in formulating risk coping strategies
and increasing the risk management standards. Daily supervision is
conducted over the implementation of risk coping plan with a view to
reduce the remaining risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management of the IT
system to enhance corporate governance of the Group

The Group designs and sets up IT authorization management policies
according to the control requirements of different businesses. The
approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures operational safety,
the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and the efficiency and
compliance of business operations, thus meeting corporate governance
and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.
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The Company’s internal audit department is an independent unit
directly under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the
Group's internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as
reporting them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular
basis or when necessary, within the authorization given by the Board.
The internal audit functions conduct independent, objective and risk-
oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks in relation to
its operation and execution of its significant strategies as well as its
related monitoring systems. The scope of audit mainly covers major risk
management systems such as information, food safety, supply chain,
finance, operation, and compliance with laws and regulations, mainly
focusing on the five substantial elements of internal control, such as
control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and monitoring, so as to assess their effectiveness. The
anti-fraud investigation functions, through whistle-blowing investigation,
anti-fraud audit and special investigation, facilitate the management
to enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture and system,
so as to improve the overall governance environment of the Company
and enforcement of corporate culture. Results and recommendations
on risk management and internal control inadequacy from each audit,
whistle-blowing and special investigation project will be put into
detailed discussion with the management, and the management will
formulate improvement plans while internal audit department will
track the executions to improve the risk management and internal
control inadequacy within reasonable time, in order to continuously
enhance the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control, thereby helping the Company accomplish business
goals, reducing operation risks, as well as protecting the interests of
Shareholders.

In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.
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The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The Company strives
to promote and maintain a liberal and probity operation environment
and corporate culture, and to formulate integrity policy, whistleblowing
and protection policies. The Company has set up a reporting mailbox
and hotline, the internal audit department receives whistle-blown
information and conducts investigation and has announced the above
reporting channels in multiple places including the Company's website,
so that employees and business partners can report in confidence.

2024 will continue to be a high-quality development stage for the
Group in promoting self-assessment of internal control to continuous
enhancement. Over the past six years, the Group has established a
normalized and stable self-assessment system on internal control.
In the future, the Group will further foster the risk owners’ sense of
ownership in respect of risk management and internal control, thus
providing reasonable assurance for the Group’s accomplishing of its
operation goals. All these are established based on tools such as time
series analysis, trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis,
regression analysis and compliance analysis. Through the automated
analysis and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the
goal of positioning and management from the source of risk. Through
the steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively ensure
the Company’s corporate reputation and brand image maintenance,
value creation and risk management mechanism are in line with the
expectations of stakeholders.

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e  The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e  The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website; and
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e  The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB8.551 million and RMB0.927 million
respectively and no significant non-audit services were involved during
the period.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 37 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company convened
and held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out
below:

HE /81T

BRI

Number of

Meetings

Attended/Held

BREBFARE

Annual General

Directors Meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 171
Mr. Junichiro Ida 0/1
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 11
Mr. Koji Shinohara 0/1
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1
Ms. Tseng Chien 0/1

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun i7Al
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 171
Mr. Hiromu Fukada (resigned on 17 April 2024) 01

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.
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The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Company is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ interests
and believes that effective communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the business performance and strategies of the
Group. To achieve this, the Company has established the shareholders
communication policy (the “Shareholders Communication Policy”)
setting out various formal channels of communication with shareholders
and other stakeholders, which include publication of the Company’s
financial reports, circulars and notices of annual general meetings and
other extraordinary general meetings that may be convened, and other
information in accordance with the regulatory requirements published
by the Company on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website
of the Company under the relevant laws, regulations and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, providing corporate communication to shareholders,
encouraging shareholders to participate in general meetings, for
ensuring fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting
of the Company’s performance and activities. Shareholders who
have any questions (including any questions about the shareholders’
communication policy), comments and suggestions relating to the
Company may send their questions, comments and suggestions by post
to the Company’s operating locations in Hong Kong (Suite 5607, 56th
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) or email to
ir@tingyi.com. The Company reviews the Shareholders” Communication
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has reviewed the
Shareholders’ Communications Policy and confirmed that it has included
channels for shareholders to express their views on various matters
affecting the Issuer and that the Company has taken appropriate and
sufficient steps to seek and understand the views of shareholders and
stakeholders and is satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ Communications Policy.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2023,
the Company approved and adopted the special resolution for the
amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company (the “New Articles of Association”) to substitute and
exclude of the original Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company. The major areas of the amendments include:

(1) to include certain defined terms to align with the applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules, including
“business days”, “Companies Ordinance”, “Company’s Website”,
“electronic”, "electronic means”, "“Electronic Transactions Act”
and “published on the Exchange’s website” and to update the
relevant provisions of the New Articles of Association in this
regard;

(2) to replace certain defined terms and to align with the relevant
provisions in the New Articles of Association;

(3) to include the giving of notices and communications with
shareholders can be by way of electronic means;

(4) to provide that any director may be removed by an ordinary
resolution of shareholders;

(5)  to provide that each shareholder is entitled to speak at any general
meeting;

(6) to provide that shareholders may, at any general meeting
convened by ordinary resolution remove the auditor at any time
before the expiration of his/her term of office; and

(7)  to provide that the Company may resolve to be wound up
voluntarily by special resolution.

B EER
2023 Annual Report F#§

151



PEE A | Corporate Governance Report

ARBEIEBAIFENBRERE - £
ERRPZEBREEAEEME ZHREF
Ty o RRBWRE Eﬁl%%&%ﬁ&%’a
DERRBOFE - FFEAREER
miFEmEHBERERZA - EE%E%&
IRNBEER > ARREERZHAE : &
RASENERMBERP G ERE  A5E
mmﬁéé*ﬁ&$X¥Eﬁﬂ BEK
BEREBAN  NEENEHEEBES - A5
ﬂ$%@%%ﬂ%%¥ﬁﬂ#ﬂﬁ%%m
NESIIMERER - REFERRABENE
A=

AEEERETEFLMEGRN N EHR
8 2F - 2F - BRMWAREERAR
BHEFHER RS - RAEHETR

REAFAE KREERSWEHENE - U
N2EBIKRE ZRARAERENEARE
B c AEENEGRLMERBENKREE
25 HEBEKREERRREE  WER
EEEEENER - AEERN2023F 81
#1300 0T B M ESEIB(AR)EITE
W00 EH - REENAERBAERE
BEHEY  ERNEEEZERRARSEH
MEBERES  AEE-—EXNRSH
BWENEEREPE -

RATRBERTFFER (MSCI) B2
AR R BAEREK DR - IRIFE F# 20
RILEBRITREBEFTRBERAEMN TR
& BREAEENRENEREN -

RAB—EHRM ETRAMERCIFTE L
MBETAESHE ﬁm% X 5 K IR 45T Al
(MEAE=FAN]) - KARBFRERE &
REEYHERMMMN2023F12 43181t
iFE 2B IR AESTRIFT IR E /2R -

\

152 EMEERERLE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.

The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2023, the Group
conducted more than 200 meetings with approximately 1,300 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng Index. The Group is
currently covered by more than 20 investment banks and securities
firms, which shows our investment and development potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 46, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 61, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June 1998.
Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America as
well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods business
between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in Africa)
and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma. He is also
the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship Foundation, the
Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and Sports Foundation,
the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry Association, the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan and the visiting
professor of Rikkyo University. He was awarded the “Medal with Blue
Ribbon” by Japanese government in 2021.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group's
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 61, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 64, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to0 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Inventec Corporation,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of E-Ton Solar Tech Co., Ltd. He has
also served as director or supervisor of several Taiwanese companies
(including listed companies) since 2000. He has more than 17 years
working experience in the financial industry and has comprehensive
knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance and financial
engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 84, has served the Group as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 27 September 2004, a member of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee since 2004, a member
of the Audit Committee since 2004, and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee since 2005. Mr. Lee has over 30 years of experience in
commercial banking, investment banking and risk management, in
particular the management of investment risks and internal system risks.
Mr. Lee began his banking career in 1961 with Malayan Banking Berhad
and had worked in its Kuala Lumpur Head Office and Singapore Branch
before he was transferred to Hong Kong to oversee the bank’s loan
portfolio in 1964. From 1977 to 1987, Mr. Lee was the senior manager
of the marketing department of Development Bank of Singapore, Hong
Kong Branch and concurrently the general manager of two deposit-
taking subsidiaries of the bank. During his tenure, he specialised in
the development of banking products and assessment of their relative
risks. During 1989 to 1997, Mr. Lee was engaged in corporate advisory
businesses, and since then in private financial consultancy business in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
since 30th July 1995, the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
since 11th February 1998, and a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Director since 1st August 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Masaya TOCHIO, aged 64, has more than 40 years of working
experience in the global food industry. Mr. Tochio joined Ajinomoto
Co., Inc in April 1983 and had worked there until June 2023. He served
various positions in its Overseas Business and Corporate Division as GM
of Overseas Food and Seasoning Department, President of Ajinomoto
Frozen Foods Thailand, Director of Corporate Planning Division,
Representative Director and Corporate Senior Vice President. He was
Director and member of the Standing Audit Committee when the
company performed corporate governance reform in 2021. Mr. Tochio
graduated from the Faculty of Commerce, Waseda University in 1983.

IP Pui-Sum, aged 64, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries).
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

Richard CHEN Yinjang, aged 60, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group. Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had
served as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February 2013. Mr.
Chen made excellent achievements in developing local talents, building
win-win relationship with external partners and qualifying technology
platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in National Taiwan University, had worked for Procter &
Gamble for 25 years in global R&D management, prior to his joining of
Master Kong. Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was
leading in consumer product innovation and R&D capability building
across the U.S., Japan and China.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 52, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang'’s Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 63, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 31 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank WANG, aged 52, is the Executive Vice President of CEO
Office. He joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic
Management dept. of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi
Beverage business, Head of Chairman’s Office, Board Secretary and
Head of Corporate Development dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for
corporate strategy, organization restructure, information technology,
legal, public relations, public affairs, and property management in
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate
Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer Associates’
JV, where he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He has years of
experience in value chain integration, corporate governmence and
sustainability. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental
Systems Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree
in Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communications Management and Technology from New York
University.
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Max HUANG, aged 59, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
30 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.

TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 63, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. TSAI is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

YouMin TANG, aged 52, holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering
from Chongging University and a MBA in Business Administration from
Yunnan University. In July 2023, he was appointed as the President
of PepsiCo Beverage Business. Mr. Tang joined the company in 1995
and served as the Sales Manager for the Sichuan and Yunnan regions
of the Instant Noodle Business. In March 2014, he transitioned to
the role of General Manager for the Southwest region of PepsiCo
Beverage Business. By November 2017, he was promoted to Regional
Vice President. With extensive experience and practical skills in the fast-
moving consumer goods industry, Mr. Tang has consistently achieved
significant annual sales growth in his managed areas. He has introduced
the concept of the “Reservoir of Reserve General Managers” to bolster
the company’s core management team, demonstrating exceptional
capabilities in business acumen and management innovation.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR EF (BE)
Profit (Loss)
Uk % attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
AR For AR ETFor AR¥For ARMTFor
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pakid il Instant noodles 28,792,688 29,633,696 2,008,257 1,374,530
Km Beverages 50,938,640 48,335,730 1,260,111 1,378,164
Efb Others 686,747 747,994 (150,907) (120,382)
=X Total 80,418,075 78,717,420 3,117,461 2,632,312
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RREBEROF R - AEEREZE 2023
12 A31 B IE#F E 0] e H A @ g A0
THEEUREEEH  HRAFERSEAN
FTEREBEARAIERERE] F10BEEF
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135 BEEF 147 BRI ARERE LA
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VAR 5 48 WU 1R IR 0 AT AN SR B0 2023 4F
1ZANBLEFEHNFRERR  SNAF
ERENFEIBEEFSERERITBRH
ZINFEI0OEEF20EREREREN
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2023 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 20, the section headed “Prospects” on page 21 and
in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 135 to 147 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2023 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of
this annual report.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 185.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMB27.66
cents per ordinary share, and a special final dividend of RMB27.66 cents
per ordinary share, totalling RMB3,117 million.

The final dividend and special final dividend will be paid on or before 10
July 2024. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register
of members on 18 June 2024 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 189 to 190.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.



M 20084F 3 A20H £ 17 &Y & R & 5l KX
e ARRIREBBEMERETE
([2008 FHEARAERTEI]) - FHIHEMA
HARBET 104F o

B 2008 FHE R EET EIF BRfE M - A
AR E R 2018F 4 A26 H 1T R E
Rl RE L@mm g ERT£1(12018
FRERERTE]) - FEHHEMB AR 10
£|z o

(a) 2008 FHEMRAERTE
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BIZRA

RHRE
Number of share
options granted

RHBH
Date of grant

2008 F3 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008

2009 F4 A22 B 26,688,000
22 April 2009

2010 F4 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010

2011 F4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011

2012 %4 A26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012

2013 ©F5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013

2014 %4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014

2015 F6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015

2016 7 A4 A 10,148,000
4 July 2016

2017 F4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
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At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of

ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term

of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2023, no share

options were granted by the Company in accordance with the

terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:

Table A

1T

Exercisable period

2013 43 A21 BE2018 3 A20 H(1)
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 4 A23 BHZE2019 F4 A22 HQ)
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)

2015 %4 A1 HZE2020 43 A31 HQ)
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)

2016 4 A12 BHE2021 F4 A11 H@)
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)

2017 %4 B26 HE2022 F4 A25 H(5)
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)

2018 %5 A27 HZE2023 F5 A26 H(6)
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)

2019 %4 B17 BE2024 F4 A16 H(7)
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)

2020 6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(8)

5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)

2021 %7 B4 HE2026 F7 A3 H(9)

4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)

2022 F4 A21 BZE2027 F4 F20 H(10)
21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)

TEEE
Exercise price
(&)

(HKS)

$9.28

$9.38

$18.57

$19.96

$20.54

$20.16

$22.38

$16.22

$7.54

$10.20
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2023 pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme:

E%B Table B
EREHE
Number of share option
SERTEA
iz
RFREZ R03E  THUHE
RirhmE H0BE ER FRCHEH 12A318 Weighted
Closing price 1818 FREH BT %% it average
fTff®  of the shares 28 Granted Exercised  Cancelled/  Balanceas  dclosing price
#e RTYEH Exerise  onthedate  Balance asat during during lapsed during at31December  immediately M
Name Date of grant price of grant 1 January 2023 the period the period the period 2023 before exercise  Note
B BT BT
HKS$ HKS HKS
HiTEs
Executive Director
gi5 2013F58278 20.16 20.05 140,000 - - 140,000 - — EA®)
Tseng Chien 27 May 2013 Table A (6)
2014F4R178 2238 2235 164,000 - - 164,000 - — BAD)
17 April 2014 Table A(7)
201556 A5A 16.22 15.92 232,000 - - 232,000 - — EAQ)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
R 017548218 10.20 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — EAN0)
WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017 Table A (10)
REX 2017E4R218 10.20 10.20 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 — BA10)
\Wei Hong-Chen 21 April 2017 Table A (10)
THAR
Chief Executive Officer
e 2014548178 2238 2235 262,000 — — - 262,000 — BAOD)
Chen Yinjang 17 April 2014 Table A (7)
201556 A58 16.22 15.92 380,000 - - - 380,000 — BA@®)
5 June 2015 Table A (8)
201657 A48 754 754 500,000 - - - 500,000 — BAQ9)
41uly 2016 Table A (9)
017548218 10.20 10.20 500,000 - - - 500,000 — EAN0)
21 April 2017 Table A (10)
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Name

HREE
Former Director
R

Wei Ing-Chou

RfEa#t
Other employees
in aggregate

a5
Total

BI%B

SiEE
Date of grant

2013558278
27 May 2013
2014%4F178
17 April 2014
2015%6 A58
5 June 2015

2013%5827H
27 May 2013
2014547178
17 April 2014
2015%6A58
5 June 2015
2016%7R48
4 July 2016
2017F4F218
21 April 2017

TfeE
Exercise
price
BT
HKS

20.16
2238

16.22

20.16
2238
1622

754

10.20
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Table B
BREHE
Number of share option
BFREZ #2023%
RpUmE R2023% fr FREH# 128318
Closing price 1818 ERRE Bk %% Pk i
of the shares it Granted Exercised Cancelled/  Balance as at
onthedate  Balance as at during during lapsed during 31 December
of grant 1 January 2023 the period the period the period 2023
B
HKS
20.05 1,390,000 — — 1,390,000 -
22.35 1,486,000 — - - 1,486,000
15.92 1,726,000 - - - 1,726,000
20.05 5,324,000 — - 5,324,000 -
22.35 5,931,000 - - 1,210,000 4,721,000
15.92 9,210,000 - - 1,656,000 7,554,000
754 1,142,000 - 92,000 - 1,050,000
10.20 4,780,000 - 100,000 - 4,680,000
35,167,000 — 192,000 10,116,000 24,859,000

SERTER
g
THKHE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately
before exercise
B

HKS

13.09

12.12

G
Note

BAb)
Table A (6)
BA7)
Table A (7)
BAEB)
Table A (8)

BAb)
Table A (6)
BAD)
Table A (7)
BAS)
Table A (8)
BAO)
Table A (9)
BIA(10)
Table A (10)
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B E2023F12A31HILE+Z@A
M AEBEBEIRHRETE
192,0000 i - e H1TEER
8.93 T + 171F B Z BRI MNAEF I UL
MEA12.588 7T o sFHERIERER

B IRKRMTE30 -
2018 B IR AT & (b)
201 8RBT B IFR T A LR
AISE17EMR - BRAAARI20184
BREERT 8 2 2T
[BlZC

RHRE
R B Number of share
Date of grant options granted
20184 H27H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
20184 4 H27 H 5,626,000
27 April 2018
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4

For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2023,
192,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$8.93
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$12.58. For details, please refer to note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2018 Share Option Scheme

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table C
T TEE
Exercisable period Exercise price
(%)
(HKS$)
202194 H30HZE 202844 A26H(1a) $16.18
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
20214 H30HZE2024% 4 H26H(1b) $16.18

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)
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Name

ez
Executive Director
AR%

Wei Hong-Ming

RER
Wei Hong-Chen

ThEE

Chief Executive Officer
e

Chen Yinjang

HEES
Former Director
HEN

Wei Ing-Chou

HfES 4
Other employees
in aggregate

it
Total

[BZ&D

SiliE ]
Date of grant

018548278
27 April 2018
018547278
27 April 2018

201847278
27 April 2018
018547278
27 April 2018

18547278
27 April 2018

018545278
27 April 2018

18547278
27 April 2018
018544278
27 April 2018

%8
Exercise
price
AR
HKS

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

16.18

RFRH

ZBBUTE
Closing
price of

the shares
on the

date of grant
BT

HKS

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

15.02

HZ2023F12A31H 1+ =@ A &8
0 R AE2018FBEAIFETEIF R T
R HBAR R T TIE o
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share

options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:

Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
R0BE R0BE
1818 EREIEH 128318
b % 28t
Balance EREH EREAE Cancelled/ Balance
asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat
1 January during during during 31 December
2023 the period the period the period 2023
385,000 - - - 385,000
98,000 - - - 98,000
385,000 - - - 385,000
98,000 - - - 98,000
144,000 - - - 144,000
470,000 - - - 470,000
1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000
2,975,000 - - - 2,975,000
6,263,000 - - - 6,263,000

RIETREN
ETORmE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately
before
exercise
o

HKS

iF
Note

ElC(1a)
Table C (1a)
EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

E((13)
Table C (1a)
(1)
Table C (1b)

EC(1h)
Table C(1b)

EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

EC(13)
Table C(1a)
EC(1h)
Table C (1b)

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2023, no share

options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option

Scheme.
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Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Yuko Takahashi
Ms. Tseng Chien

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun

Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock

Mr. Hiromu Fukada (resigned on 17 April 2024)
Mr. Masaya Tochio (appointed on 17 April 2024)

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Yinjang

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.

The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 153 to 158.

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE IE IR E
Number of Shares Bk
BARER EERER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
B EER
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(a)-2 REXRBRETHRE (FiEE2)

HE Name

55 Directors
HERH Wei Hong-Ming
7R 7K Wei Hong-Chen

THHER Chief Executive Officer
PR FEE Chen Yinjang
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(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

IR

BaLE

S RERME ik ¢E| Percentage

Capacity and Number of of the issued

nature of interest shares share capital

EnEA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

BEREAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

BEREAA 1,786,000 0.03%

Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the twelve months ended 31
December 2023 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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([Rich Gold])#% 17.835%  FfE Kk L4
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

HE T
B
ZBED%
% of the
21 HERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Beneficial owner
REAT R 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BRUEAXFA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BRUEAXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of a unit trusts
REAT R 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
VNGl £ 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Interest of controlled company
BEGEFEXREA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42
Trustee of discretionary trusts
EaBAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.42

Beneficial owner
Note: (L): Long Position
Note:

1. These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 51.925% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.240% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), and as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold
Capital Inc. (“Rich Gold"”). Ho Te and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100%
by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus is the
trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary trusts in
equal proportions.
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Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which is
in turn owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited ("Profit Surplus 3”).
Profit Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2023.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB12.195
million.
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During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.

Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 13 June 2022, the Company entered into a supply agreement (the
“Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2025. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 13 June 2022. Details of the transactions may be found in the
Company's announcements and circular dated 10 March 2022, 28 April
2022 and 13 June 2022, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,949.652 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 9 December 2022, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company's
announcement dated 9 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Ting Fung
amounted to RMB167.145 million. Such purchases have been disclosed
in note 38 to the financial statements of the Company and were
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules.

Ting Chuan Agreement

On 22 October 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and
its subsidiaries to provide related sales promotion services to the Group
for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. Ting Chuan operates the “Family Mart” convenient stores in
the PRC and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is
a substantial shareholder of the Company and held approximately
33.48% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the Ting Chuan Agreement. Details of the transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcement dated 22 October 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB143.467 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 27 November 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
("Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Weizhen Investment
is owned as to 75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (" Great
System”), a company which is beneficially owned by family members
and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an
Executive Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods,
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 27
November 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB338.182 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 13 June 2022, the Company entered into a supply agreement (the
“Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment Inc.
(“Marine Vision”) in relation to the Group's purchase of carton box
products from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. Marine
Vision is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director
of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of
the Company. Marine Vision Supply Agreement was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2022. Details of the
transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcements
and circular dated 10 March 2022, 28 April 2022 and 13 June 2022,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,140.039 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 25 September 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Nature Investment is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong- Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 September 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB233.165 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Success Forever Supply Agreement

On 31 December 2020, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Success Forever Investments Supply Agreement”) with Success
Forever Investments Group Ltd. (“Success Forever”) in relation to the
Group's purchase of plastic products from Success Forever and its
subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023. Success Forever is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 31
December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the purchases from Success
Forever and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,043.732 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Tong Logistics Services

On 13 June 2022, the Company entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Ting Tong Logistics Services Agreement”) with Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”) in relation to
the Group’s procurement of logistics services from Ting Tong and its
subsidiaries for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2025. Ting Tong is beneficially owned by family members
and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and
an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen,
an Executive Director of the Company. Ting Tong Logistics Services
Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 13 June 2022. Details of the transaction above may be found in the
Company'’s announcements and circular dated 10 March 2022, 28 April
2022 and 13 June 2022, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the procurement from Ting
Tong and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,985.409 million. Such
procurement have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
of the Company and were continuing connected transactions of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(¢) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(©)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) with respect to the aggregate annual amount of each of the
transactions, have exceeded the respective annual cap as set by
the Company.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 20
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on page 21 under
“Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BAETBEEI18HTIRES 4218
Tel 355 (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 185 to 353, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,455 million at 31 December 2023. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2023 was RMB10,303 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the
impairment review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the determination of
the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to

management’s impairment assessment of machinery and equipment

included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL") and equity instruments designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amounts of the Group’s FVPL and Designated FVOCI
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB990 million and
RMB155 million respectively at 31 December 2023.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of these FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the
valuations performed by the investment manager or trust administrator
of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not
supported by observable market data and are based on assumptions
that are not supported by prices from observable current market
transactions. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used
in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the
valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of FVPL and Designated FVOCI classified as
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their
significance to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement
and estimation involved in determination of the fair value of these FVPL
and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of these FVPL and Designated FVOC!I included:

a)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

b)  Obtaining and understanding of the Group's valuation process;

)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

d)  Discussing with the investment managers or trust administrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

e)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2023 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Consolidated Income Statement

#HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Bt AR¥FT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
g Revenue 6 80,418,075 78,717,420
SHEM AR Cost of sales (55,950,986) (55,818,003)
FEAH Gross profit 24,467,089 22,899,417
E bz Other revenue 7 540,694 650,412
E b g A Other net income 8 893,447 874,820
D EHA AR Distribution costs (17,883,440) (16,809,780)
THEHR Administrative expenses (2,615,681) (2,396,714)
B & A Other operating expenses (230,480) (750,648)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (519,122) (446,021)
BB ENEE N A EE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 126,954 127,318
BRBLAT =R Profit before taxation 9 4,779,461 4,148,804
AL Taxation M (1,262,794) (1,072,970)
AEERF Profit for the year 3,516,667 3,075,834
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
ZN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 3,117,461 2,632,312
DERE L Non-controlling interests 399,206 443,522
R g F Profit for the year 3,516,667 3,075,834
BRER Earnings per share 13
HA Basic AR#¥55339 AR¥46.73%H
RMB55.33 cents RMB46.73 cents
e Diluted AR¥55319% ARK46.715

RMB55.31 cents

RMB46.71 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE(ZE 202312 A31 HIESE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
it AR¥TFT ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REEER Profit for the year 3,516,667 3,075,834
Hi2mE(EFE) WE - Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TEELEEERMIEL  Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
AERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 33 (9,596) 798
FBERA BB R REEAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
EHEREIREENEZ TE  designated as at fair value through
NREEZE other comprehensive income (3,611) 7,874
(13,207) 8,672
B R E A R ESIHE Items that are or may be reclassified
BamfrmIEg - subsequently to profit or loss:
ME 5 =5 Exchange differences on consolidation 11,617 (1,640,813)
RemasHh Cash flow hedges 31 39,664 (1,011)
51,281 (1,641,824)
REEHME2HEWE(EE)  Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 38,074 (1,633,152)
AEER2HKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 3,554,741 1,442,682
B2 mEk S Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
¥iN/NET ) 323 Owners of the Company 3,153,917 1,124,397
DB R A Non-controlling interests 400,824 318,285
3,554,741 1,442,682
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
7 2023E12 A31H At 31 December 2023

2023 2022
iikz3 ARETFT ABEFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
TE M EHE Investment properties 14 1,825,170 1,832,200
WE - R R Property, plant and equipment 15 21,454,802 21,259,417
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,554,237 3,625,714
mEEE Intangible assets 17 155,640 162,480
EkS Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
iR N Interest in an associate 20 95,378 93,316
AE N AR Interest in joint ventures 21 529,323 614,316
BRRASEETIRIE Financial assets at fair value through
EnRRENTHEE profit or loss 22 325,113 254,543
HEERABETIRSLE  Equity instruments designated as at
H At 2 TR A 2 R B B Y fair value through other
EmTE comprehensive income 22 154,907 158,518
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 31 169,185 —
RIERIAE E Deferred tax assets 34 339,411 481,923
R EATE HATF 50 Long-term time deposits 26 3,975,000 5,841,900
32,676,076 34,422,237
REEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 23 4,385,268 5,254,592
JE UK BR R Trade receivables 24 1,579,983 1,808,281
B E A Tax recoverable 42,364 20,354
TEM B R E A EUFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 3,037,372 2,897,389
R EEYR M B2 IR Finandial assets at fair value through
BEENSREE profit or loss 22 665,210 —
RHEFTE AR 52 BIERER(H  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 3,976,900 1,710,000
IR TIF R Pledged bank deposits 26 32,015 12,531
RITHEBREIRS Bank balances and cash 26 6,754,466 12,323,922
20,473,578 24,027,069
mEE Total assets 53,149,654 58,449,306
BRRERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B R Capital and reserves
AT Issued capital 27 196,681 235,741
Binw B Share premium 28 787,091 825,364
e Reserves 29 12,910,832 12,310,421
ARARBRREMBRERR Total capital and reserves attributable
ARG to owners of the Company 13,894,604 13,371,526
DEBRRES Non-controlling interests 19 3,327,640 3,443,949
RERERBE Total equity 17,222,244 16,815,475
BRAREIER

2023 Annual Report F#§

187



SABISAR R | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023412 A31H At 31 December 2023

2023 2022
BtaF AR¥ T ARBFoT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEE Non-current liabilities
RHABERE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 5,247,194 8,415,871
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 180,424 145,448
BIRMEMT Employee benefit obligations 33 52,898 69,026
RIERIARE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,253,880 1,298,948
6,734,396 9,929,293
=N Current liabilities
FERTER R Trade payables 35 8,572,717 9,489,908
Hih e B R B YIRS Other payables and deposits received 36 8,869,473 9,783,497
B EEE 2 DAL D Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 8,481,501 9,203,139
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 146,268 155,665
TEemT A Derivative financial instruments 31 — 92,729
BPIERRIE Advance payments from customers 39 2,821,969 2,571,730
AL Taxation 301,086 407,870
29,193,014 31,704,538
waE Total liabilities 35,927,410 41,633,831
BRRERREEHRE Total equity and liabilities 53,149,654 58,449,306
BREBEE Net current liabilities (8,719,436) (7,677,469)
BEERRBAES Total assets less current liabilities 23,956,640 26,744,768

FI18SE3BA VAV HRREBES
EN2024F3 26 B E R ERES
WHNURTATREZSE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 185 to 353 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2024 and signed on its behalf by

$t% % WEI Hong-Ming
& Director

H# H %4 —BB Junichiro Ida
ZFZ Director
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LERRERZHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

#HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

ARARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RARER
B8 JURRER Rz
Bl RiraE Total Non- ERsE
Issued Share G capital and controling Total
capital premium Reserves resenes interests equity

ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR
RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB000 RVB'000

RANE1A1A At 1 January 2022 235,633 786,965 17637378 18,659,976 3,748,524 22,408 500
TERER Profitfor the year - - 2632312 2632312 U350 3,075,834
H2Ehs(FB) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RensHn Cash flow hedges - - (747) (747) (264 (1011
RERMEMLZERE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 836 836 (39) 798

BEROABEFERELL Fairvalue changes i equity insruments designated
2ENAERENERTA as at far value through other comprehensive income

LrEEZEY - - 7874 7874 - 7874
EXEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - (1515878) (1515878 (124935 (1,640813)
Hb2EFEAE Total other comprehensive loss - — (1507915 (1507.915) (1537 (163315
REERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1124397 1124397 318285 1,442,68
EANIRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEFT Contributons and distribution
EREERNTA IR Equity settled share-based transactions - - 52 52 - 5
REBREERTZRG Shares issued under share option scheme 108 38,39 9,353) 29,154 - 29,154
BlEREE 2001 RER 2021 final and specialfinal dividend approved and paid
BRIRERE - - (B53) (953 (622860 (4565383)
EREREE 2002551 5ERE 2022 special interim dividend approved and paid - — (2500000 (2,500,000) = (2,500,000
HENARRZRG4E Total transactions with owners of the Company 108 38,399 (6451350 (6,412,847) (6228600 (7,035,707)
R202%5128318 At 31 December 2022 235,741 825,364 12310421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

ARARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREE
4% LERRER R®
IR BiaE Total Non- ExfE
Issued Share B cpitland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves eserves interests equity
ABETL  AREFL  ARETL  ARETL AREFT  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

RUABE1E1A At 1 January 2023 835,141 825,364 12310421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475

KERRA Profit for the year - - 3,117,461 3,117,461 399,206 3,516,667

H2ahs(FB) Other comprehensive income (loss)

Beisin Cash flow hedges - - 39,400 39,400 264 39,664
RERHETZEBE#33)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Note 33) - - (9,715) (9,715) 119 (9,59)
BEROABEIERELL  Fairvalue changes in equity instruments designated

ANGERENERTE 3 at fair value through other comprehensive income
MEEZES - - (3611) (3611) - (3611)
EiZE Bichange differences on consolidation - - 10,382 10,382 1,235 1,617

B2 EYEEE Total other comprehensive income - - 36456 36456 1618 38,074

REERANGAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3153917 3153917 400,824 3,554,741

EALIRRZRG Transactions with owners of the Company:

RELST Contributions and distrbution
REERET 2R ER Shares issued under share option scheme (Mot 27)

(Wit27) 7 2,06 (501) 1532 - 1532
WEALS vk Fffect on the change of functional currency (39,067) (40,299) 79,366 - - -
BHERTE027ER 2022 final and specialfinal dividend approved
BARERE M 12) and paid fote 12) - N (X £ I VXt VR ) (517,133 (3,149,504)
HANARRZRA4EE Total transactions with owners of the Company (39,060) (38273)  (2.553506)  (2.630,839) (517133 (3147972
RBENF3NEA At 31 December 2023 196,681 187,091 12910832 13,894,604 3,327,640 17,022,204

\
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HEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#HZ=2023F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Htaz AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ReEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REHEKFBEESE Cash generated from operations 37 7,279,303 6,022,166
EEPTE Income tax paid (1,294,144) (1,106,248)
BEHAE Interest paid (490,316) (440,605)
RETEBRBRSFE Net cash from operating activities 5,494,843 4,475,313
REES INVESTING ACTIVITIES
S EPS) Interest received 515,478 488,936
R HAE HA 17 508 N Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (2,160,000) (2,375,000)
& AR BATF 50 Decrease in long-term time deposits 26 1,760,000 925,000
B E & R AT Dividend received from joint ventures 21 189,615 121,957
B U — FaT e & A BIRR Dividend received from an associate 20 17,740 17,739
BUIZ A SEESIR R Dividend received from financial assets
EIE=REENSRIEE  atfair value through profit or loss and
DIEERARBEYEK  equity instruments designed as at
1 Efth 2 T W 2 AR G 28 fair value through other comprehensive
B T AR income 8 127 1,413
HERADEETIRE Proceeds from disposal of financial
i8R IR Y assets at fair value through profit or loss
TREEZMF 22 55 441,953
BARAABEIERR Purchase of financial assets at
EEEEREMNSMEE  fair value through profit or loss 22 (735,974) (6,992)
HEETEeRITHE Settlement of derivative
financial instruments (72,937) —
WA  HWBELRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (3,560,454) (3,123,833)
SAAMAE L T FEAE  Payment for land use right in respect of
leasehold land 16 (83,925) (115,111)
HEWE WBENEZMER  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
CREEE MG and equipment and right-of-use assets 132,666 216,920
HEMrsadEzmd Decrease in other current liabilities — (40,000)
& B A RIFTE Net cash inflow on disposal
WEMA R of subsidiaries 40 213,458 116,890
FEUE F 2 A (38 n) Decrease (Increase) in loan receivables 25(a) 60,000 (50,000)
RETHFARSFE Net cash used in investing activities (3,724,151) (3,380,128)
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EH=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREFT AREFIT
MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERARARREZRE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (2,632,371) (6,452,482)
B LE#MEEELRS ZE  Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests 37(b) (517,034) (623,618)
R I =T &l Issue of shares under share
BT 2D option scheme 27 1,532 29,154
YNEEAE Payments of lease liabilities 37(b) (215,408) (213,967)
IR TTER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(b) 8,648,724 13,434,412
EERITREMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(b) (6,965,691) (14,127,767)
HGHAE E 228 H%  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 37(b) (5,638,678) 3,336,763
MEEBHFARESFEE Net cash used in financing activities (7,318,926) (4,617,505)
RERBLEEYWHFRL Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (5,548,234) (3,522,320)
FEYNZ2BEERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 12,336,453 15,859,238
ExgyH o e Effect on exchange rate changes (1,738) (465)
FRZ2EESRRELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 26 6,786,481 12,336,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2023F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

FEEEZERAERARTEAR])
AREHEAMEIERET AR
ERENREEBHARSHBRAR
ZERET HFEZEMUASE
BB EE 18R P IRE 55612
5607 ZE KA E ARLAME([FE])
LMREITERHEE 16885% ©

ARABAB—FKREZEBRRA - AR
AREMBAR(REAIASHE])
TERFLEERHEENBENR
e HMfBARKEZ T BXHBH
REFE IR L 46

F2023F1A1HAI» ETAARRD
AIRAETEIINGBATIMNINEER -
FAN- ARARZEMNBARINE
ERBEREELELEEZY - A
REFERBARNARZEGING
BARMNEEREERERENER
BN A B R 5% 8N B A B AR 8
RGP FEHERRINEERLE  H
b KRAEEEEB AR A K&
EHBARMNEEERELET
ABARE. 52023F1A18(4&
MAEBDRAER - HEEEBEER
HECRBBEB G ERE21HR
£ B HAERTRE AR - FFIEET
ERA B SRR M 5E 3(n) ©

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of business
are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Prior to 1 January 2023, United States Dollar ("US$") was the
functional currency of the Company and its certain foreign
subsidiaries. During the year, there is a change of the primary
economic environment in which the Company and those
subsidiaries operated. Accordingly, the board of directors (the
“Directors”) determined that the functional currency of the
Company and those subsidiaries had been changed from US$ to
Renminbi (“RMB") effective from 1 January 2023 (the “Effective
Date”) as the Directors consider the change of functional currency
of the Company and those foreign subsidiaries reflect more
faithfully the economic effects of the underlying transactions,
events and conditions of the Company and those foreign
subsidiaries. The effect of the change in functional currency
had been accounted for prospectively on the Effective Date in
accordance with HKAS 21 which is set out in note 3(n) to the
consolidated financial statements.

B EER
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These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2022 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
as the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB8,719,436,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
the Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income and derivative
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

B EER
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(b)

(9]

R MTsE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date, amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.
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(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.
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(d)

(e)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

—Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years
Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When an existing property becomes an investment property,
any difference at the date of change in use between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.
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(9)

(h)

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.
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(h)

0]

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) equity instruments
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (”Designated FVOCI"); or (iii) measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2)

Designated FVOC/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Financial assets at FV/PL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee

contract or not a designated and effective

hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds, unlisted bank financial products, structured
deposits, listed equity securities and derivative financial
instruments as further detailed in notes 22 and 31
to the consolidated financial statements. Information
about the Group's exposure to financial risk of the
financial assets at FVPL is included in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the

liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
derivative financial instruments. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged (see note 3(k) to consolidated
financial statements).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i)  nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of debt instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, unlisted bank financial products, structured
deposits, derivative financial instruments, long-term time
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from an
associate, joint ventures, related parties and loan receivables
are determined to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Group enters into and designates certain foreign
currency forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
risks associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign currency-denominated
borrowings. The Group's hedging objective is to hedge
the foreign currency exposure to the cash flows variability
arising from the principal repayment of the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings whilst the Group’s overall impact
on exchange difference could be maintained at a reasonably
low level. The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risks until the repayment
date of the foreign currency-denominated borrowings.
The Group hedges to the extent that the foreign currency
exposure arising from the US$ (2022 RMB) denominated
borrowings made by the Company (2022: certain group
entities) of which the functional currency is RMB (2022:US$).
Under the Group’s cash flow hedge arrangement, the
terms of the hedging instrument basically match with
the terms of the hedged items, the Group expects the
value of the hedging instruments to move in the opposite
direction as compared to the value of the hedged items, and
thereby ensures hedge effectiveness. Therefore, the Group
applies a hedging ratio of 1:1. The main source of hedge
ineffectiveness in these hedging relationships principally
arises from any late designation of the hedging instrument.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the
intended relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.
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(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other net
income.

When foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
foreign currency borrowings, the Group designates only the
change in the fair value of the forward contracts related to
the spot component as the hedging instruments. Forward
element and foreign currency basis spread are separated
and excluded from the designated hedging instruments
and the Group treats these excluded elements as costs of
hedging. The fair value changes of these excluded elements
that relates to the hedged item is recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. These excluded elements
at the date of designation (to the extent that it relates to
the hedged item) are amortised on a systematic and rational
basis to profit or loss over the period.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the
years when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The
movement in spot rate is recycled from equity to profit or
loss to offset the foreign exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of the hedged foreign currency borrowings. Such
reclassification from equity will offset the effect on profit or
loss of the corresponding hedged item to achieve the overall
hedging result.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
remains in equity at that time remains recognised in equity
and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and
deferred costs for hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.



0

(m)

ReZEN

BERRERERMSE B
SEYRERBANRBERK
BHRE - MERRTE (W
B) - HEREABERER S
TeENRE -  HEEEZIRA
RBEMR -

Wz 2 R
WA
BEMENESWARYE D

HERHEE GRRAEREE
- MiEEHHESWRARNIR
EHLRER -

2
[N

"E BB BEHEERE 15
HIE =B KA

S RIS R 1
AEBERHNEmBIIRBH M

BT B R SR RE A
HE -

a8k 7| FE 40 3 75

EEOMME  NEESFG
HEFPFUNAKNMAENE
RS - WA BB S E
BREEPRONAZERBENE

9

A [ 5l & 7 dn 3 AR 7 (3K
—EFAmRHE) ¢ K

—
[«3]
=

— Z 51 AT & Bl 6 7 dn SR
% B m e R AE
Rl Y EAEARERZP
BREHER -

—
O
=

FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

U]

(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(a)

a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(©) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until such
time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the
performance obligation.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payments from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-
impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company and majority of its
subsidiaries have RMB as their functional currency and the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;
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(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(¢ All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted for,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to the foreign operation that is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the separate component of equity is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Change in functional currency

When there is a change in functional currency, the entity
shall apply the translation procedures applicable to the
new functional currency prospectively from the date of the
change. The effect of a change in functional currency is
accounted for prospectively. The entity translates all items
into the new functional currency using the exchange rate at
the date of the change and the resulting translated amounts
for non-monetary items are treated as their historical
cost. Exchange differences arising from the translation
of a foreign operation previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are not reclassified from equity to
profit or loss until the disposal of the operation.
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(o)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest
in an associate, interest in joint ventures and interest in
subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a CGU).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.
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(a)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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(s)

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

(¢)  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold
leasehold land period

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise the following payments for the right

to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are

not paid at the commencement date:

(a)

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees,

exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,

the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing

the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@  the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.
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®

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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(u)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(v)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to item recognised in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)

Has significant influence over the Group; or

(iif)

Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7

Current or Non-current!”
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants!"
Supplier Finance Arrangements "

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback "

Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause”

Lack of Exchangeability ?/

HK Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture P!

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

Bl The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKASs or HKFRSs in future periods will have any
material impact on the Group’s financial information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the consolidated
financial statements. Management has reviewed the disclosure of
accounting policy information and considered it is consistent with
the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that, on recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: International Tax Reform— Pillar
Two Model Rules

The amendments provide entities with temporary relief from
accounting for deferred taxes arising from the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development's Pillar Two model rules.
The Amendments also introduce targeted disclosure requirements
to help investors understand an entity’s exposure to income taxes
arising from the rules.

The adoption of the amendments results in additional disclosures
which are presented in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed
the Group's investment property portfolio and concluded
that the Group’s certain investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred taxation
on these investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As
a result, the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on
land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value
of these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and/
or termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.



0

(ii)

EREHBRENEZHAEE)

HEZ# 5

REHWFRE  AEEREE
BUBRELENFE 16K ZMRE
KFIAHBEERBANES
HREBN(XBER)HE - A

mE - ARBEZEBEMBEKR
EERRBEZHS FEEY
EEYRCBRNEEZEM -
o AEEBEW—HEE
HENEEEMERENERE
BORTERE - EMAFHIER
AEENSXFERIEEH
PIEEZEM - MEBRED
BEEL  MIZRELEAME
EZENSBEREBRIEE
MABRIRTE e

i3]

0 oo ER

EETREN 2 BRI
EHFREYFE  HERRE
RIEFEEEZHIE

EXEFALHEFARE YWE
EE R 2 B R EE 2B
FEIETEEMRE - AFED
X BELREBEREAREE
ZEE AAFHRITE/E
BT

FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied
by various external parties for the level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets and liabilities included some assumptions not
supported by observable market prices or rates. Change in
assumption could affect the reported fair value of the assets
and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate. The higher the discount
rate for calculating the lease liabilities, the lower the lease
liabilities will be resulted and vice versa.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company's
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group's sales and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
Company's executive directors assess the performance of
reportable segments based on profit (loss) for the year and profit
(loss) before taxation, share of results of an associate and joint
ventures and unallocated (expenses) income, net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated
FVOCI, are located in the PRC. No revenue from a single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

DEDEE Segment results:
2023
A0 8
FEME Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARETFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
2 Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts
with customers 28,720,554 50,930,604 697,005 — 80,348,163
W52 R Timing of
revenue recognition:
X B2 Recognised at a point in time | 28,720,554 50,930,604 697,005 — 80,348,163
REMTFEE ZMA Revenue from other sources:
KEREERME S WA Rental income from
investment properties — — 69,912 — 69,912
ARz g Inter-segment revenue 72,134 8,036 650,354 (730,524) —
A EM Segment revenue 28,792,688 50,938,640 1,417,271 (730,524) 80,418,075
PHEZ(CMREBEER)  Segment results after
finance costs 2,701,577 2,077,137 (141,657) 20,122 4,657,179
[EIEBE DRI AZARIES  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (387) 128,450 (1,109) — 126,954
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (4,672) — (4,672)
BB ATERF (B8) Profit (Loss) before taxation = 2,701,190 2,205,587 (147,438) 20122 4,779,461
HIE Taxation (692,933) (546,270) (23,591) —  (1,262,794)
REEZRA(EE) Profit (Loss) for the year 2,008,257 1,659,317 (171,029) 20122 3,516,667
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

DI () Segment results: (Continued)
2023
PO 8
HEE Inter-
Instant #m Hftt  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total

ARBTT ARETZ AREFTT ARETFTZT ARETZ
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BE Assets

DEEE Segment assets 18,102,147 32,415,379 4,467,320 (2,793,861) 52,190,985
BENTER Interest in an associate — 95,378 — 95,378
AEARER Interest in joint ventures 76 529,247 — — 529,323
APREE Unallocated assets 333,968
WEE Total assets 53,149,654
8% Liabilities

NEBEE Segment liabilities 8,801,039 18,981,068 10,692,799  (2,600,394) 35,874,512
xoEaE Unallocated liabilities 52,898
BaE Total liabilities 35,927,410
Hirg g Other information

TERHHE Depreciation and amortisation 868,412 2,527,121 167,806 (114,702) 3,448,637
B Capital expenditures 699,708 2,967,555 20,442 — 3,687,705
FBUA Interest income 211,343 350,856 34,753 (56,258) 540,694
FEx Interest expenses 39,750 233,759 306,100 (60,487) 519,122
HERB A RFRE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 259,306 154,416 — — 413,722

\
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

PEBEE : (&) Segment results: (Continued)
2022
RV
ki Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARBTT AREFIL
RMB00O ~ RMB0OO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000

W #E Revenue
REFPANEE W Revenue from contracts

with customers 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
EE-EHR7 Recognised at a point in time 29,578,253 48,327,716 738,570 — 78,644,539
REMRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
REHREUEEHEZHEUWA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 72,881 — 72,881
D EE L WE Inter-segment revenue 55,443 8,014 700,353 (763,810) —
SEE Segment revenue 29,633,696 48,335,730 1,511,804 (763,810) 78,717,420

PHEE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after

finance costs 1,839,554 2,275,213 (121,539) 20,762 4,013,990
eI DB MAERAIEE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures (339) 128,810 (1,153) — 127,318
FREZFWA Unallocated income, net — — 7,496 — 7,496
BRBEATEF (B58) Profit (Loss) before taxation 1,839,215 2,404,023 (115,196) 20,762 4,148,804
I8 Taxation (464,685) (582,337) (25,948) —  (1,072,970)
REE 2T (EE) Profit (Loss) for the year 1,374,530 1,821,686 (141,144) 20,762 3,075,834
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HZE2023F12 A31BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

DEEE - (B)

Segment results: (Continued)

2022
IR 84
HiEHE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BE Assets
NBEE Segment assets 20,015,049  34,145275 4,710,542  (1,462,128) 57,408,738
BeENRER Interest in an associate — 93,316 — — 93,316
AR DAER Interest in joint ventures 464 610,216 3,636 — 614,316
AOREE Unallocated assets 332,936
HEE Total assets 58,449,306
=l Liabilities
SEEE Segment liabilities 10,844,982 20,545,661 11,430,662  (1,256,500) 41,564,805
xHE&EE Unallocated liabilities 69,026
BEE Total liabilities 41,633,831
HinEs Other information
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 871,679 2,335,508 179,792 (121,402) 3,265,577
BRAR Capital expenditures 530,314 2,548,530 22,493 — 3,101,337
FlEMA Interest income 285,211 409,987 13,385 (58,171) 650,412
e Interest expenses 31,984 210,063 270,236 (66,262) 446,021
HEWMB A RFUE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 36,304 69,688 — — 105,992

\
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A Interest income 540,694 650,412
2023 2022
(k3 AR¥FIT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
S BE 2 s Gain on sales of scrapped materials 195,251 208,992
EAnBEYERKEREEZE Change in fair value of
BENSREEY financial assets at FVPL, net
NABEZESFER (133) 10,099
EAnBEYRKEEEZE Dividend income from
FRIR 8 & R E E NMIETE financial assets at FVPL and
BASEBEYEREEM  equity instruments designated
HKERRIER as at FVOCI
T A7 BRFWA 127 1,413
HEMB QRS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 40 413,722 105,992
T B Government grants 201,306 418,514
HEME - MR REMAEKR  Loss on disposal of property,
TREEEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (113,295) (60,288)
M X E518) 5 58 Exchange loss, net (2,632) (30,164)
Ht Others 199,101 220,262
893,447 874,820
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MR THIEB R -

H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

This is stated after charging:

2023 2022
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E A Finance costs
AR S FNABEEE ZIEIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REMERZFE wholly repayable within five years 503,088 429,900
HEBBEELEZYBER  Finance costs on lease liabilities 16,034 16,121
519,122 446,021
2023 2022
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiig g Other items
ETHRA(BIFEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e KR Salaries and wages 8,335,726 7,684,056
AR RN Equity-settled share-based
Xtz 5KIE payment expenses — 522
RIRSEA Pension costs:
FEMFETE Defined contribution plans 865,770 806,408
RERAETE Defined benefit plans 2,139 5,599
ZEE % Auditor’s remuneration:
EZER Audit fee 8,551 7,952
FEZER Non-audit fee 927 866
BEFERA Cost of inventories* 55,950,986 55,818,003
FEMsE (Gt AEAM Written off of inventories
KEBR) (included in other operating expenses) 57,976 364,243
e - Depreciation:
Y - R REE Property, plant and equipment 3,111,300 2,936,451
FREEE Right-of-use assets 330,497 322,447
| B ERE Amortisation of intangible assets 6,840 6,679
# EEFERATBIEEE THA # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,963,268,000 (2022: RMB4,802,349,000)
P EEMKRE FRAEEE relating to staff costs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-
ZCHEREBEFREEHEARE of-use assets and amortisation on intangible assets which amounts are also

4,963,268,000 70(2022 %F : A RH#E
4,802,349,0007T) * %% & EINAT
AN EIBr 3 88 2 (E R4 EE+ o

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.
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FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the

eI T Directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2023
e
X REEN
Bhe
DY) HE T2
) Xffz  Retirement
HftEe FE  payments and
EShe Salaries i Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based to pension fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total
ABETFE  AREFT  AREFn  ARETT  AREFT  AREFZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
HITEE Executive directors:
RE% Wei Hong-Ming 708 5,440 1,560 - - 7,708
il el Junichiro Ida 568 26 - - - 79
REX Wei Hong-Chen 708 5,251 1,503 - - 7,462
BREAR Koji Shinohara 354 w7 - - - 581
BEEE Yuko Takahashi 354 1 - - - 581
g Tseng Chien 354 70 128 - - 1,192
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
G Hsu Shin-Chun 425 128 - - - 553
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 425 70 - - - 495
RAE Hiromu Fukada 425 113 - - - 538
TR Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,200 1,189 - 7,643 13,032
4,321 16,592 4,380 - 7,643 32,936
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2022

R’ire

XRREEH

&g

PAR1A SRR

B2 R Zf52  Retirement

HE#e FE  paymentsand

Ezhg Salaries el Share-  contribution
Directors' andother  Discretionary based  topension ait
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

AERTT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HITEE Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 677 5,417 2578 143 - 8,815
il il Junichiro Ida 541 217 - - 758
REX Wei Hong-Chen 677 5227 2,484 143 - 8531
BRER Koji Shinohara 338 217 - - - 555
BREE Yuko Takahashi 338 217 - - 555
B Tseng Chien 338 866 140 - 1,344
BUFHTEE Indlevendent non-executive directors:
fHER Hsu Shin-Chun 406 108 - - - 514
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 406 108 - - - 514
RAE Hiromu Fukada 406 108 - - 514
TR Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,000 2,250 59 - 6,309
4127 16,485 7452 345 — 28,409
HZE2023F K2022F 12 A318 1k No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
FEIHMES N SN ATRE emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2023 and
EEEE - 2022.
REBREAYAEE NSRS No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
ATMAXREEMNMESEES and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
MAREB BN EMESAESEL joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

ERAIELERE -
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

AREESHUGEHATEE2MNES The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
RIOAMBE (2022F : 2(0EER7T Group for the year, included two directors and the chief executive
BAEE)  HiNesHEBEHER L o & officer (2022: two directors and the chief executive officer)
82612022 : 27 ) N2 BHE 5 are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of the
=V ORI emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2022 two) are as
follows:
2023 2022
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FehHMME Salaries and other emoluments 8,993 11,000
RIK& X Retirement payments 1,571 —
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 2,992 6,371
13,556 17,371
26120224 27 ) HZEm# AL The emoluments were paid to the two (2022: two) highest paid
ZBe4ERIT individuals as follows:
EEAH
Number of
individuals
i < 48 Bl Emoluments band 2023

AR¥5,431,672 T2 AR 5,884,311 7T RMB5,431,672 to RMB5,884,311

(6,000,001 8L E 6,500,00087T) (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1
AR¥7,242,230 12 AR 7,694,868 7T RMB7,242,230 to RMB7,694,868

(8,000,001 8L E 8,500,000 7T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1

2
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

BB AH
Number of
individuals
B <& 48 5l Emoluments band 2022
ARM 8,624,601 L= AR® 9,055,830  RMB8,624,601 to RMB9,055,830
(10,000,001 & 7= 10,500,000 /% 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2
2
2023 2022
AR¥TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBIE Current tax
PEIREREH PRC enterprise income tax
KEFE Current year 1,036,223 966,194
AR B 212515 Over provision in prior years (24,694) (37,532)
1,011,529 928,662
ERNEHR Hong Kong profits tax
KEFEE Current year 6,774 5,109
Hing i E AT SR Singapore corporate income tax
REE Current year 251
ERERLIE (M 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)

EANERD S ERFE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net 45,433 (35,891)
BAEBNFEZHEBAR  Effect of withholding tax on the net
Al S BRI SR 2

distributable earnings of

TEIR the Group's PRC subsidiaries 198,807 175,090
244,240 139,199
REEHIBBRE Total tax charge for the year 1,262,794 1,072,970
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MEeERESY M ARARAERZ
YA BT (IR IR

BHE2023F 202212 A31 HIEE
& BAEFIEHRIZBRAF GRS
EREtER - EMRFEBBEGIE
T AERCENE2008ET(HE
PHARE1,811,000 7T ) (2022 4 « 200
EET(HHERAKB1,725000T))
12 8.25% (2022 4F : 8.25% ) HY
FRRER - M2008 B T(HERAR
#1,811,000 7T ) (2022 4F : 20025 7T
(HE A FRHE1,725,0005T)) BA 81
FIE 2 16.5% (2022 F : 16.5%) )
TR

R ERBRIZ17%5H - A%
EfBEARNEEREXHITHBE
®EtE ((T5HEl) ) - FEIRT K
FERRU A K E 10,0008 N3 T (40
ERARKES3,0007T) BE75%HE
TiEE © 214 #9190,000%1 N3k T (48
ERARY1,004,0007T) —RIER
HUA BB 50% R BiFE o

RPBEHERR - EPBEMSERR
18 B OETE B R B25% (2022 4F -
25%) o IRIZEARER - B4R EE
RERBEZHABHOCENTEER
BARARELEMERBERO RS ) ES
BE A% 2020 F 5 2357) - MRS
RN E R  HEEEESE
B U AE 1 E B A 1 60% A
L2022 - 60%) + 52021 F1 A1
HZ2030912 A318 @ Al#ER%Z
15% B BB RGBTSR -
I AEBEETRASHE WBA
RIFRE A 15% (2022 F 1 15%) °

53R FX M 5T | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the
first HK$2 million (equivalent to RMB1,811,000) (2022: HK$2
million (equivalent to RMB1,725,000)) of profits of qualifying
corporations will be taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%), and profits
above HK$2 million (equivalent to RMB1,811,000) (2022: HK$2
million (equivalent to RMB1,725,000)) will be taxed at 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%).

Singapore Corporate Income Tax is charged at 17%. The
subsidiaries of the Group qualify for the Partial Tax Exemption
Scheme (the “Scheme”) in which the Scheme allows for 75% tax
exemption on the first SGD10,000 (equivalent to RMB53,000) of
normal chargeable income and a further 50% tax exemption on
the next SGD190,000 (equivalent to RMB1,004,000) of normal
chargeable income.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax rate for the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% (2022.: 25%). According to the Tax Relief
Notice (Announcement of the Ministry of Finance [2020] No.
23) on the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Taxation Administration
and National Development and Reform Commission, foreign
investment enterprises located in the Western Region of the PRC
(the “Western Region”) with over 60% (2022: 60%) of principal
revenue generated from the encouraged business activities are
continuously entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030. Accordingly, certain
subsidiaries located in the Western Region are entitled to an
income tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%).
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

NEE 7 BT A GHEAEERIB The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERWAT - for the year as follows:
BB X 2 B IR Reconciliation of tax expense
2023 2022
ARYTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR B4 A g Profit before taxation 4,779,461 4.148,804
BRABUEERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
I8 (2022 %F - 25%) in the PRC (2022: 25%) 1,194,865 1,037,201
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (31,738) (31,830)
L Non-deductible expenses 90,042 78,834
EERBUA Tax exempt revenue (336) (33,379)
RIERMIEEE Unrecognised tax losses 92,643 71,304
REREREER Unrecognised temporary differences 9,988 (6,222)
BRI W ARFERFIIARE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (66,077) (35,043)
BRAREENFE S Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
RAAHSEFEZ profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TARBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 198,807 175,090
WEBAm zHkEER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (196,530) (143,015)
AR B 2R BB Over provision in prior years (24,694) (37,532)
EAh Others (4,176) (2,438)
REEMIAREZ Tax expense for the year 1,262,794 1,072,970
N WEBARZHRWERBSFER TR A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on PRC
= /) A B B B A R 2 B U &~ T subsidiaries in the Western Region, additional deduction for certain
BNETHIRR - HMBIWESRS - expenses and other tax relief.

\

258 EMEZERERARE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FoXHERERA

AEECRAERESEBEEAE
HRABPIAMAE — AT EER
MBS EE R TOEMES
ISR ERNETCHREERAER
BERMERN 2R BRERZF
AR & BAR A KA R B0
( TB=XEMREHR] ) - REOS
AHE - FERHEC B EE LBEGR
FEEMEERTEBEEATE -

AR E = SRR R E 2R
BAERIBRNA Y - AEE
BERBHARA EABHEMAR
Bisk -

FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

Pillar Two model rules

The Group has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to
the income taxes arising from tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development,
including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum
top-up taxes described in those rules (“Pillar Two income taxes”).
According to the preliminary assessment, the impact of enacted
or substantively enacted legislation for each jurisdiction is
insignificant in which the Group operates.

Due to the complexities in the application of the Pillar Two
legislation and calculation of Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal
income, the Group has engaged with tax experts to assist them
with applying the legislation.
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

\

(a)

RERHMI5E | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARBBRRAFEZBE

Dividends to owners of the Company attributable to the

year:
2023 2022
ARKETFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk 2 REAR S Proposed final dividend of RMB27.66 cents
FREBRARE (2022: RMB23.36 cents) per ordinary share
27.66 73 (2022 F -
AR 23.36%) 1,558,731 1,316,156
IR 2 5 B R Proposed special final dividend of
REEREBRARKE RMB27.66 cents (2022: RMB23.36 cents)
27.66 9 (2022 % - per ordinary share
AR 23.367) 1,558,730 1,316,156
3,117,461 2,632,312

MR2024F3A26HMEF 2
B EEEAREERNRE
BEFREBIRARK27.66
AIRRAKREERETBERAR
#27.669 o It B R EA
iR B R R EARR B GR A B IStk
REPTRBEMRRE

HZE2023F12 A31 BILEE
AN A A L IR B4 Rl R
AR B - M B 22022912 8
3MTALILEFE - AR aHERIK
BFEREAKRARKE4438S
BRI RERRE - HEF AR
2,500,000,000 7T °
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At Board meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend and
a final dividend of RMB27.66 cents and RMB27.66 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

No special interim dividend was approved and paid during
the year ended 31 December 2023 while special interim
dividend of RMB44.38 cents per ordinary share was
approved and paid, totaling RMB2,500,000,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

RANE R R 3% 58 B R Al (b) Dividends to owners of the Company attributable to the
BMBEEFARAQAREZK previous financial year, approved and paid during the year:
o
2023 2022
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RZF R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
PRI ERERE  financial year, approved and paid
BRERR during the year, of RMB23.36 cents
AR¥ 23365 (2022: RMB33.76 cents)
(2022 % : per ordinary share
AE#33.76 ) 1,316,186 1,901,241
RAFARHENIKEEE  Special final dividend in respect of the
NI ES eSS previous financial year, approved and
NEAMR B BT EAX paid during the year, of RMB23.36 cents
AR¥23.36% (2022: RMB33.76 cents)
(2022 4 : per ordinary share
AEH33.76 77) 1,316,185 1,901,241
2,632,371 3,802,482
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

AT A& E A G F =8 E s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:
() BRERGF (a) Basic earnings per share

2023 2022

RNAFIERAAREELM  Profit attributable to ordinary

M (ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,117,461 2,632,312
BEITEBRZ Nk Weighted average number of
TR (T A) ordinary shares ('000) 5,634,288 5,632,791
BREAEF (ARE D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 55.33 46.73
(b) BREFER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2023 2022

RN A E BN R E(SE T Profit attributable to ordinary
(ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,117,461 2,632,312

B IEFE (#E)  Weighted average number of

(FB) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
BEITE B 2 I Weighted average number of
TR ordinary shares 5,634,288 5,632,791
RNARERES ZFE  Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 1,558 2,694

BR:TESR#EEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

BRI T 9 shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,635,846 5,635,485
BRHELF(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 55.31 46.71
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

NREE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,832,200 1,807,100
AABEZES Change in fair value (7,030) 25,100
REER At the end of the reporting period 1,825,170 1,832,200

REBZHEUEE 81
HAYMERFEESUREER
TH{E R AR E ST
BITTIE R EK 16785% % 1686
55 DA R AP B K03 T AR £ M B
B EH AN KR AR
M-

AEBNEERENBEEMR
EEMETREUREME - F
BB AEI1E3IF(2022F: 1
234F) WEERHEHERE
VARG R ABTE 2 SR 1 -

2

<

KEgBEHEZHSBAFS
A M HmRMEE3(m)

HEARNEERHNAFHER
mRZEEZS  BRAKE
—ReFTuHEERE  Fit
TR SYRENHE
EEMERE - HARKEELZ
BN EEZ A REE
H o

(a

The Group's investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms of
1-3 years (2022: 1-3 years) and with options to renew upon
expiry at new terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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\

(a)

(b)

(%

AT RBKREREREEEE
HMEZARFRBENKZEH
BT °

(a)

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2023 2022

ARETFTT ARBTF T

MW12H31H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 32,739 43,652
F24F In the second year 13,900 28,177
FE3IF In the third year 6,641 3,761
53,280 75,590

DRBEFEMFTER

FEREEEMENARER
B ASBMEEDIERST
EXEEBMEEMETHE
BE-ERERBIEXESER
M EMZETEE B EE
B & EH A RIEEER B
B A o HENNEE A%
REEEEEH(2022F -
Was EFMEEREEH L) »

R EAREGES - BA
MEREESMA AN ERL
BWmisEE 2 E A AL B
ZRMEE ARSI RUDE
MEBEBBERFEMSE - &
RRIRMERNELL RTIESE
BB % i [ M SR R B
EMENRER  BEREG
1B B P A B AR 1 FE ) X B R A
BERFZHAREKER - NER
BEOAEES - HRFHEM
EEBL2EREMS LATZ
ALEBRHER S L - A
MEIABER  MENRS
EEERSREBAAE
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(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison
approach (2022: income capitalisation approach and direct
comparison approach).

In income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all
lettable units of the commercial properties and car parks are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In direct comparison approach, comparable’s
average unit selling prices are referenced to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.



(b)

FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AABEFENFEREE)

AEBzREEEHENRTL
BEAENHEEAABENS
3R RAFEREALEBEHA
BEELR3HERFIZEL -

FRAREMEFHEEBEZTA

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment

properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value

hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The following table gives information on significant

BN AEZRNT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
2023 2023
TABR®EA
HNAEENER
REMEE HERTREERA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEB® A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EgRRE WaERNMER
B R EMN HEHIE
FEE5 Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct

properties and
car parks in
Shanghai and
Tianjin

comparison approach

FEHA:
The key inputs are:
GEREE G| EIE RS

Reversionary yield

ZRIMESBAERL  BAYME
REESsRERNEEMNERLR
SO® AAVEREFESNH
SRAXELED R RLT% R
4.75% @ ERERD HIR5.00%E
6.00% }.3.00% °

Reversionary yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental derived
from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary rental
potential of the commercial properties
and car parks of 4.75% and 4.75%
respectively in Shanghai and 5.00%
to 6.00% and 3.00% in Tianjin
respectively.

FIRANEBENEREESR
R gcREUFHED
DRBETEK  R2TA -

An increase in the reversionary
yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

REMEBE RERTREERA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EXATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

RO BRBA
BAABENBE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

\
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BEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZENENREZ - 115
mEFE - FEARXEEAVES
AmEHe T AR HEEETE
FHADRREBARETISTEA
RENMNAOTRARKE29ITEA
R¥4.907T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into account
the time, location, and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging from
RMB7.15 to RMB11.40 per square
meter per day on lettable area basis
in Shanghai and from RMB2.91 to
RMB4.90 per square meter per day on
lettable areas basis in Tianjin.

FEY
ZRIEME B RERYEEY
¥RF7HMERNEE AR K
RN EBRREGEEFEELNE
AmBEEE DA AARK 27587
RAR®15337

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB27.58 per unit for car
park spaces in Shanghai and RMB15.33
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
o egcREUEHEND
REELT RZTA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.



RaN=y )

(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

REMEHE HERMTREZERA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

%4
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABRABA
BAABENBE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

HRIYEMEE

Comparable’s average
unit selling price

BAEYE

ZRIME  FPARHREBME
EMERGZEAMNEMEE - £F
FREBRAMEARFHEME
BIRBIARDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,290 TR AR
#16,430 T2 AR¥ 18,587 7T ©
Commercial properties

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size and
other characters between the comparable
and the commercial properties, ranging
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,290 per
square meter in Shanghai and from
RMB16,430 to RMB18,587 per square
meter in Tianjin.

FEY

ZEME KN RHREBME
EYRAGZENEMER - L8
ERZEEFESNERTHEM
EEBRAARE56,730 T RA
R # 100,000 7T ©

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size
and other characters between the
comparable and the commercial
properties of RMB156,730 per unit
for car park spaces in Shanghai and
RMB100,000 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

HRTHELEEBEAR L
o gcREUEHEND
REEL RZTA -

An increase in comparable’s
average unit selling price
would result in an increase in
the fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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\

(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2022 2022
TABRARE A
HRAEENBR
BREMEME HEETREZHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EATRAE R M@ A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EBERRE  WEERMOER
B RYEM BEHIE
BEG Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct
properties and comparison approach
car parks in o
Shanghai and ERBA
Tianjin The key inputs are:
TR E & Y@ = ZRIESWAER L BRAYNE MRANEHRNEHREXER
LEESHRAMNAENEER Lt g@<REUFHMEN
OB ERAVEREESNE QAAEBETHR R2TA-
TWRXELED R RLTS% R
4.75% @ ERFEADHI/5.00% %
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into  Anincrease in the reversionary
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account the capitalisation of the
rental derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary rental potential of the
commercial properties and car parks
of 4.75% and 4.75% respectively in
Shanghai and 5.00% to 6.00% and
3.00% in Tianjin respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

REMEE
Investment
properties

HERMTREZERA
Valuation techniques
and key input(s)

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABRABA
BAABENBE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

BAEYE
ZERINMHE B RHREEDE
EMERGZHEANENREZ - 115
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T RRAHEEETE
FHAD A REBARETIOTEA
R#®1M30TRARK30TEA
R¥4.937T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.10 to RMB11.30
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.00 to RMB4.93 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES

ZRIERE  ELERYEEY
ERFzRMERNEE  mhmk
KN FBERRREEFELNE
EmsHe D R/ARE27.50T
MAR®E15.237C

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB27.50 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB15.23 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
o gcREUEHEND
REEL RZTA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
TR &R A
HAAEENBR
REMEE HEETREZEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques EXFRAEA®A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
HRTIEMEE BAYZE

Comparable’s average
unit selling price

\
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ZRIME  FPARHEEBYME
EMERGZHENEMEE - £F
FREERAYEHARFHEME
BIRBIAKRDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,300 T R AR
#16,530 TE AR 18,2457T °
Commercial properties

Comparable’s average unit selling
price, taking into account the
location, size and other characters
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,300
per square meter in Shanghai and
from RMB16,530 to RMB18,245 per
square meter in Tianjin.

EES

ZRIME KR EREBYE
BYEAGZHENEMER - L8
ERZEGEFEESHERFHEL
EEBD R R/ARKE 156,800 KA
F#100,0007T °

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling
price, taking into account the
location, size and other characters
between the comparable and
the commercial properties of
RMB156,800 per unit for car park
spaces in Shanghai and RMB100,000
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.

HRTHELEEBEA L
o egcREUEHEND
REELT RZTA -

An increase in comparable’s
average unit selling price
would result in an increase in
the fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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EHE
XA BERRE  Electrical
L Machinery  appliances RBERE IR
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction ait
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFx
RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(Hita) (Hiih)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
025128316 year ended 31 December 2022
LEE
REY At beginning of the year 119918 7219198 11,685,439 28,074 1,975,027 4823712 21510,028
AE Additions - 42,728 275,660 9,674 1,096,640 1,561,524 2,986,226
ERER Transfer upon completion - 367,008 858,382 71719 405297 (1,638,406) -
HE Disposals - (58637) (117,135 (1,576) (85,508) - (2628%)
HE-HEMBAR  Disposals - disposal of subsiciaries - (43,981) (3,210) (182) (321) - (47,694)
& Depreciation —  (503836)  (1,728,920) 9776 (693919) — (2936451
EXZS Exchange differences (1,561) 6,502 (1,439) 4 5 6,519 10,164
REER At end of the reporting period 118,357 7,029,072 10,968,781 33977 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
023E12831H year ended 31 December 2023
LEE
RERD At beginning of the year 118,357 7,029,072 10,968,781 33977 2,697,221 412,009  21,259417
AE Additions - 61,524 348,111 15,248 1,344,249 1,834,648 3,603,780
EUBER Transfer upon completion - 208,311 846,847 12,644 508097 (1,575:899) -
e Disposals - (31,159) (159,743) (3,276) (51,49) - (245,674)
HE-HEMBAR  Disposals - disposal of subsiciaries
(Hit40) (Note 4) - (48,032) (1327) (114) (243) - (49,716)
ik Depreciation - (507,046)  (1,700,633) (12,526) (891,095) = (3,111,300)
EXZES Exchange differences 1876 (1,606) 479 (1 3 (2,456) (1,705)
REER At end of the reporting period 120,233 6,711,064 10,302,515 45,952 3,606,736 668,302 21,454,802
mEmER 271
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\

XA
Ll
Freehold

land

EEE
BBREE  Electrical
Machinery  appliances HERE HEIR
BF and and Miscellaneous Construction fazt
Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total

ABRTL  ARBFR  ARETZ  ARBTT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETR

RMB000
(Hita)
(Note a)

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hith)
(Note b)

R2023F1818  At1January 2023

A Cost 118357 12535499 32,704,998 162,522 6,500,888 412,009 52,434273
ZEMERMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and

impairment losses —  (5506427) (21,736.217) (128,545)  (3,803,667) — (31,174,856)
REFE Net carrying amount 118,357 7,029,072 10,968,781 33977 2,697,221 42,009 21,259,417

R20235128318  At31 December 2023

A

Cost

ZHTENAESE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses

120233 12,387,559 33,156,912 168,160 7,919,951 068,302 54421117

(5,676,495)  (22,854,397) (122208) (4313215

(32,966,315)

REFE Net carrying amount 120,233 6,711,064 10,302,515 45,952 3,606,736 668,302 21,454,802
Vokza Notes:
(@) EHERRCLAEBLAING KA FEHE (@)  The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

i o

REER  AEEETHRENEERE
HEEFHANEERFEERTZ
T RS E R ES - BREFE
#8758 & N R 32,086,000 7T(2022
F A R #34,509,000T) - EE
RE - NEBEZEEBUARERE
LR R o
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(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB32,086,000 (2022: RMB34,509,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.
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EREEE Right-of-use assets
BRURF
HELHZ
T
Land use HER
right in HAit 5
respect of Machinery
leasehold B and other FCEC]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
REESHE - Reconciliation of carrying
HE2022F amount - year ended
12A318LESFE 31 December 2022
REY] At beginning of the year 3,303,235 376,673 11,833 3,691,741
NE Additions 115,111 179,261 10,204 304,576
BEET Lease modification — (23,404) 5,085 (18,319)
HE Disposals (14,351) — — (14,351)
HE-HENBERT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (15,486) — — (15,486)
e Depreciation (98,877) (215,218) (8,352) (322,447)
REEER At the end of the reporting period 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
AREE ¥R — Reconciliation of carrying
HZE20235F amount - year ended
12A31BLEE 31 December 2023
REY] At beginning of the year 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
NE Additions 83,925 237,745 13,492 335,162
MEET Lease modification — (3.791) 5,625 1,834
HE Disposals (287) — — (287)
HeE—HEWMBARAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(Kizt40) (Note 40) (77,689) — — (77,689)
e Depreciation (98,082) (221,732) (10,683) (330,497)
REEH At the end of
the reporting period 3,197,499 329,534 27,204 3,554,237
20231 H1H At 1 January 2023
DN Cost 4,342,883 664,470 29,283 5,036,636
2 E Accumulated depreciation (1,053,251) (347,158) (10,513)  (1,410,922)
IREFE Net carrying amount 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
mEpEER 273
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\

EHESEE) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
BRUAF
HETHz
T fE AR
Land use HER
right in Hftsk s
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other HE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
720235 12A318 At 31 December 2023
PR Cost 4,288,087 676,446 41,916 5,006,449
REtiTE Accumulated depreciation (1,090,588) (346,912) (14,712)  (1,452,212)
RREFE Net carrying amount 3,197,499 329,534 27,204 3,554,237

NEFBAAELEMBELE TS -
SR HMEE - HENT1E@AZ
305 (2022 11IAZE304F) -

PRI RE

BRI mAEN - KRB HE - &
FFEHBEALE  BREREEE
ERBHAKEER MAKENF
HEREGHREEE -

WMEHEMS - AKEEKBH
%%1%%&75&%#/& ¥ HEE E
m B 8 B R AR AR SR

TEESAR

AEHAENRREREHESTE
MHE G I AA i;fﬁfi/\ﬁf’%ﬁﬁﬁ
EAMMERENR -

ERRRILEER

AEENFOHETZHEARE S
LE&%?JJ: EEE - ié?)ﬁf&é%ﬁ
EAREERBEIEGITE Uik
g iiﬁ’ﬂﬁ\i{

N3
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The Group leases various properties, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 30 years (2022: 1 month to 30 years).

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.
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HEAE Lease liabilities
2023 2022
ARETT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEAE Lease liabilities

mENER D Current portion 146,268 155,665
IERBNE D Non-current portion 180,424 145,448
326,692 301,113

REEREECHERIA TR

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2023 2022
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
RHEE Short-term leases 166,950 153,225
REEEE Low-value assets 4,212 3,985
PiE= IR 2 X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 171,162 157,210
WIEAR T B FIE 2 A] %  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAAAN) not depend on an index or
miE a rate (as lessee) under leases 50,083 46,695
MRERRTER 2 B Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 221,245 203,905
HEEEA IR Mm% Total cash outflow for leases 452,687 433,993

HEAE

720239128318 AE£EEE K
ErRARAB s BEREERRAE
¥C2HESH - mAZMAMAKR
MAHEBER ZHEBEENT A
A R #34,911,0007C(2022 F = A
¥ 3,387,0007T) °

MN2023F 128310 AEF D &
¥ A R 38,407,000 7T.(2022 % -
A 41,900,0007T) 7 FEEIFAE o

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2023, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB34,911,000 (2022: RMB3,387,000).

At 31 December 2023, the Group was committed to
RMB38,407,000 (2022: RMB41,900,000) for short-term leases.

B EER
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KERFAE
B EE Water
Concession resource et
right licenses Total
AREFT AREFr AREFR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RAEEHER Recondiliation of carrying
—HZE20227F amount — Year ended
12A318LLFE 31 December 2022
REA At beginning of the year 140,465 15,505 155,970
B Amortisation (5,098) (1,581) (6,679)
M i, B Exchange realignment 13,189 — 13,189
NMEE R At end of the reporting period 148,556 13,924 162,480
REEYE Reconciliation of carrying
-8Z2023F amount - Year ended
12A31BALEE 31 December 2023
REY] At beginning of the year 148,556 13,924 162,480
biidis Amortisation (5,260) (1,580) (6,840)
REER At end of the reporting period 143,296 12,344 155,640
R2023%1A41H At 1 January 2023
B A Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
BT E Accumulated amortisation (56,540) (3,162) (59,702)
148,556 13,924 162,480
#2023 12831H At 31 December 2023
BCAR Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
RETHEH Accumulated amortisation (61,800) (4,742) (66,542)
143,296 12,344 155,640

\
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Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 15 years (2022: 10 to
15 years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment when an indicator of impairment appears.

2023 2022
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
PR R AR (A Cost and carrying amount
M2022F 12 H31 B K At 31 December 2022 and
2023412 A31H 31 December 2023 97,910 97,910

FHEEANREAR REEBMNHH
REERLBETHREALR K
KmiGERMEEEEEROAR S
BHMREANYKE - EENE TR
EoRAER BAEMTTE A #
MENEENERFRE - BB
BB A E M EH o

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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HEEEDERBEESEESEER The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
EFERSESBEMETRENS - CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2023 2022

AR TF T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

K h Beverages 97,910 97,910
HEMEREEANPE((REES Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
EEBMADER2017FWERMNE CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
ErEg AR AR(TMIMNEGE07] Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS"”) in 2017.
4% 1) 25% % #E By B 4 o 720234 At 31 December 2023, the Group assessed the recoverable

12A318 AEEZXEMMBESA

amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow

LIS RETEN G RIRS projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
EEXBEMHNAKESE-  stERR based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering a
BEEHANTFHVBEENE 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
emETEA c BBSFHNRERED extrapolated using a 2% (2022: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
BLA2% (2022 F 2% ) REIE R growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
RERK - FAEREREZENE and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
BRI RN - WA BIBHEE relevant industry.
TENTFHERERE -
FnReEASNEEFEHEES The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
Hea kbl EBBERAE(RE in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount including the
) FULEERwRE - goodwill. Accordingly, goodwill was not impaired.
ARFTEFREENEEREME Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
AAT ¢ are as follows:

2023 2022
EME Gross profit margin 35% 34%
TR = Average growth rate 7% 7%
R RX Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
e Discount rate 9% 9%
EEEREBSARRENEYHTISE Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
ROTEHEEEEENE - FAEA on past performance and its expectation of market development.
WATIREABA - W R ER MR The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
CESBEUEANEERRE o to the Beverages CGU.
br EiE TR mIR e E A E AU Apart from the considerations described above in determining
CBE&BZIBERIN ARBEREL the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
TRBRETMAMAIEER EE R E management is not aware of any other probable changes that
BB 2EE) - would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

278 EEEZERERDA

4

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



MR2023FE 12 A3MBEZEE AT
BRI A SRR M 46 o

BEEAMBRARRAFERALE

BERKAEES -

EERERDHRRER ZHELRMN

MBER

TRINRASEE-FRBEERIH
BREREEOME R F - BRADE R R
ERAR DA (R ER R ) RE
MEARNER - HMBERME
REABE R RIFEEHFEA 22 -

FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are shown in

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

material non-controlling interest (“"NCI")

inter-company eliminations.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”) and its subsidiaries,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

M 2023 &F A2022F
12A831H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
DEESIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
DB R Z I ZRE L] Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%
M 2023 &F H2022F
12A831H 12 A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥Fr AR¥TFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
RENEE Current assets 13,916,871 15,311,416
FERBEE Non-current assets 19,123,132 19,537,391
mEEE Current liabilities (17,239,602) (17,736,722)
ERBAEE Non-current liabilities (1,746,935) (2,826,824)
HEE Net assets 14,053,466 14,285,261
LER R R AR TEE Carrying amount of NC| 3,245,766 3,366,287
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BEANEADHBERER ZHBE QAN

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

BRER(E) material NCI (Continued)
HZE2023F HE2022%F
12A31H 12 A31H
IEEE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
ARETT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 50,938,640 48,335,730
RF [E i F) Profit for the year 1,659,317 1,821,686
Hip 2wz (EiE) Other comprehensive income (loss) 4,073 (566,298)
FHEREARER Total comprehensive income 1,663,390 1,255,388
DB R AE ARG i A Profit attributable to NCI 399,206 443,522
DHIRRE R (L Total comprehensive income
EEI G attributable to NCI 400,106 318,410
B ER R SRR Dividends paid to NCI (517,021) (616,818)
Fris(A)RE&REF58 : Net cash flows from (used in):
LR Operating activities 4,525,070 2,205,630
REEY Investing activities (3,101,238) (3,151,987)
BEEE Financing activities (4,011,562) (1,411,914)
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2023 2022
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
LTI - KA E Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEML B R A Share of post-acquisition results 146,642 126,840
B W iEZ B WA T Dividend received since acquisition (121,942) (104,202)
95,378 93,316
REEE AL N T Z MY T - Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEE/
i B
Principal AEEREZ
place of ERBEEESILH
operation/ R A Proportion of effective
BENREE place of Registered  ownership interest held ~ FE£%
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2023 2022
HRAEULANARAT HE US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  BEREEHRM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
VA B & R B Th IR HE 2R OR DI BR T 4R The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in

EMBEwERT -

the consolidated financial statements.
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BRIFEABEDT 2MBEER
TRIVRASEIZER AR ZIE
BEABERRMNEGAREAERAS
BE(E %A -

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
share of results of an associate that is not material and accounted
for using the equity method.

R2023F 2022 4
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFEEE Carrying amount of interest 95,378 93,316
BE BHE
2023 F 2022 %F
12A31H 12A31H
LEE ILFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFELN Group's share of:
RE 5 Profit for the year 19,802 16,208
HAt 2 E Y ER Other comprehensive income — —
A EEE Total comprehensive income 19,802 16,208

\
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2023 2022
AREFTT ABEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FELEMR - RRANME Unlisted shares, at cost 341,923 363,679
LN 1E A Share of post-acquisition results 1,235,480 1,109,102
B W iEZ B WA T Dividend received since acquisition (1,048,080) (858,465)
529,323 614,316
REEHASL DRI ZHMAHT|MT - Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
ITEER/
it S rEERAZ
Principal place ERBEREERLA
of operation/ HMBA  Proportion of effective
RELTEE Place of Registered ownership interestheld FE£%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2023 2022
REKORRERAT i US$11,000,000 0% 3182% MIRHEREER
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
LEAEIERHERAR # US$28,120,000 = 38.96% = 3896%  HERHEHM
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERAEUERHARAR(ERESE]) i RMB150,000,000 = 62.33% = 6233% EEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
FREAERSERAT i RMB400,000 = 25% 5% Rt BERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and
agency of advertising
NEBEE QR ik EAY R All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
TS BREF o method in the consolidated financial statements.
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HESE AT

FR - AEEE—FBIFE=HF]
VEEHZ UWRSRER/EAR
#2,777,000 THERERZ R M
PRAT31.82% KR - HESZER
20238 AT HEAE QT
U z5 AR 247,000 TEF AR
RIEMFUA L -

EANHERBRR

AEEZE-HEERFAEDRSE
80% ARG ZHFEEHRAMBEAR
AIMBEEREEE62.33% 2 ERE
BREEzD - A RIBZIFZER
EMBARBAEmREEZBNA
Rl HBRELHRBEEATEDN
A AESHERE S F A ZHH
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Disposal of a joint venture

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal of
31.82% equity interests in Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. at
a total of the cash consideration of RMB2,777,000. Upon the
completion of the disposal in August 2023, a gain on disposal of a
joint venture of RMB247,000 was recognised in profit or loss and
recorded as “other net income”.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BAREEASE AT ZHEEH Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures
TRIRANEFIR#E S X2 ERIE The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
EAEEANTNEATERELRANE Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
B E(GEELS o material and accounted for using the equity method.
#2023 F R 20224
12831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
AR¥ T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T ARAE(E Carrying amount of interests 529,323 614,316
BZE2023%F BHE2022F
12H31H 12H31H
LHFE IEFE
Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
AR¥ T ARBFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE A Group's share of:
REZ i F) Profit for the year 107,152 111,110
Hih 2w Other comprehensive income — —
FHEHR B Total comprehensive income 107,152 111,110
BERE AEBRRAEMANEAN In the opinion of the Directors, no joint ventures are individually
BERNTA material to the Group.
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2023 2022
it ARETT AR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REES — Investment funds (a)(d) 275,113 254,349
— ERAE S — Equity security, listed — 194
— BB — Structured deposits (o)(d) 50,000 —
—JELMRITENE R — Bank financial products, unlisted (o)(d) 665,210 —
990,323 254,543
EE FvoCl Designated FVOCI
— I ETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (b)(d) 154,907 158,518
1,145,230 413,061
2023 2022
ARETT AEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRFVPLEEHNESMEE Financial assets at FVPL
mENE D Current portion 665,210 —
EREE D Non-current portion 325,113 254,543
990,323 254,543
EEFVOCI Designated FVOCI
JERENF Non-current portion 154,907 158,518
1,145,230 413,061

() WEESANRETESZERE T
LR BRI BBAINBREE
EBREEURBRNAREEAR
NERERAEEREES AR
BESMEREN NEER KR
EESHNANEERARRERLE
HIEFEE B ATE -

\
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The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which
were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset.
The fair value of the investment funds was valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.
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Note:

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were valued by
the respective investment managers or trust administrators at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB3,611,000
(2022: RMB7,874,000) were charged (2022: credited) to investment
revaluation reserve (non-recycling).

The structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products
represent investments issued by various licensed banks in the PRC.
The fair value of the unlisted bank financial products and structured
deposits were valued by the respective investment managers at the
end of the reporting period.

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of these investments are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
AR¥FTT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

ESH us$ 362,408 361,183
AR RMB 782,822 51,684
Hib Others — 194
1,145,230 413,061

2023 2022

AR¥TFT AR T

RMB’000 RMB'000

R Raw materials 1,580,441 1,884,416
E 8o Work in progress 90,826 97,772
BURN SR Finished goods 2,714,001 3,272,404
4,385,268 5,254,592
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2023 2022
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWTBR 5K Trade receivables
—$£=7 — From third parties 1,480,289 1,700,924
—AREZEBREIEH - From companies controlled by
4L VNS a substantial shareholder
of the Company 29,432 23,584
—AREEEN — From companies controlled by
KEER B REB = the family members and relatives
S EAR VNG of the Company'’s directors 1,791 2,798
i /NG — From an associate 1,747 2,770
—&%Rna — From joint ventures 66,724 78,205
1,579,983 1,808,281

AEEBZHERIBHA/LEREE -
HEARFPBENAREBERERGE NG
WMEMT39- R THHE ZEEH
FEAE30E0K -

B RAEBRR N BREE) N &
BHREZEHREZIRE DT

The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery and the
corresponding advance payment from customers is disclosed in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. The remaining
balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from 30 to 90
days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

TR follows:
2023 2022
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90XK 0 - 90 days 1,490,555 1,686,700
90 R E Over 90 days 89,428 121,581
1,579,983 1,808,281

ERASEREEREERARNE
FER iR A MR T 42 -

R IR EEAARKTIE -

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

\
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2023 2022
Htaz AR¥FT AREFoT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
TR ER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 115,024 150,186
TEfT s ARk 3K Prepayments for purchase of
machinery and equipment 26,449 21,135
TEfTIGER Prepaid value-added taxes 156,012 199,631
TEfT & BRI Prepaid operating expenses 1,592,895 1,354,605
W & R Loan receivables 25(a) 80,000 140,000
USRI 2 Interest receivables 25(b) 548,178 522,962
Btk Deposits 132,934 127,423
HE—HRBARR Consideration receivables on disposal of
—f&A&EARIEWRNE  asubsidiary and a joint venture 21,40 169,787 —
Hity Others 216,093 381,447
3,037,372 2,897,389
25(a) EWER 25(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAREEZHER
AERTESTEMBEER
HEELERGB ZNIE - b 5E
ERERAERT - AR+
& A A EE KM F 8370%
(20224 : 3.65% £3.70%) °

EERHANFERERNEE
BT ZEARZENE - hF
EREHEERZAREBEER
BRAREERR -

25(b) EWFI S

FEU A B2k B REIE T
ERRITERRIRITHES -

Loan receivables represent the advances made by
subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials
suppliers of the Group for financing their operations. The
loan receivables are unsecured, repayable within 12 months
from the end of the reporting period and bear interest of
3.70% (2022: 3.65% to 3.70%) per annum.

The Directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amounts.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits,
pledged bank deposits and cash at bank.
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2023 2022
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAFEHATF R Long-term time deposits 7,951,900 7,551,900
IR{T#EEBR NI e Bank balances and cash 6,754,466 12,323,922
HEIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 32,015 12,531
RITEARNIBE AT Total cash at bank and on hand 14,738,381 19,888,353
REEHFEHERA2E3F - Wik The long-term time deposits are made for periods of two to three
BRERNEHFANEERA S - F years and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
B X B248%F4.18% 2 [H(2022 rate ranging from 2.48% to 4.18% (2022: 2.85% to 4.18%) per
F :285%E4.18% 2 F) e annum.
WHIETFERE FHEIE - tEARHE The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
AEB—RBITRESBRE(BIER trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
TIRITAGIEZ)NIRTRE 2 HE bills, granted to the Group by banks.
2o
nEAREeREXRENmME » BT A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
FREkIReBRESSEMZEERN equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash
T flows is as follow:
2023 2022
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFRRIRE Cash at bank and on hand 14,738,381 19,888,353
B REFEETERR Less: long-term time deposits (7,951,900) (7,551,900)
ReERBEEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,786,481 12,336,453

\
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Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

g : currencies:
2023 2022
AR¥TFT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 14,396,572 19,455,618
EI us$ 277,625 375,058
BT EUR 367 129
e NTD 23,150 27,610
Hit Others 40,667 29,938
14,738,381 19,888,353

ERAREZNERR R HAR
BB A RIS IR R 42 Bk ©

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2023 2022
BER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

GEE FE1  AEETR G r  AEEFr
No. of shares Usso00 RMB00  No. of shares Us§000 AMB000

£ Authorised:

BR0.005FTZEBBR  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000

BEIRSR Issued and fully paid:

REA At the beginning of the year 5,634,164,360 28171 23574 5630972,360 28,155 235,633
RIEBIREZZ720 Shares issued under share option scheme 192,000 1 7 3,192,000 16 108
UEALS Tk Effect on the change of functional currency - - (39,067) - - -
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,634,356,360 28172 196,681 | 5,634,164,360 28171 235,741

RZAREER - 192,000 {7 B PEAEETT($
LARREE AR E) 192,000 JE3@mA% - 42
REBEAARE 1,532,000 » HFA
R¥7,000 TEF AR BITIRA - M4
# AR 1,525,000 TTAH AR (B
8 - 340 AR 501,000 CHER
REEEREZERMEER Z5R
EREHEERRERN=ZERSHE

S o

E\

During the year, 192,000 options were exercised to subscribe for
192,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of
RMB 1,532,000, of which RMB7,000 was credited to issued capital
and the balance of RMB1,525,000 was credited to the share
premium account. In addition, RMB501,000 has been transferred
from the share-based payment reserve to the share premium
account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing shares in all
respects.
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2023 2022

AR¥FT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REA]) At beginning of the year 825,364 786,965
IRIEBE IR RT 213877 2 A% 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 2,026 38,399
e EMER o2& Effect on the change of functional currency (40,299) —
REEHR At the end of the reporting period 787,091 825,364

REFASHE ARG

(&

EPNSITG
BITRGE - THENRS R
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.



A BTEEREMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

RER
R[5k REER
Transactions HER
with (TaEE) H
hhEEGE  ERERE non- SMEREEE  westment  EfEHR BiRERE
Captal ~ Remeasu-  controling  Exchange revaluation Poperty  HEE  —REE  Shaebaed  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained 28
resenve resenve resenve resene  (Non-ecycling) resenve resenve reserve reserve profis Total
NEETT  AEETL  AREFr  AREFr  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  A\REFr  AREFT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R02%51A18 At 1 January 2022 400 (110312)  (1,800,090) 370,985 27451 9,869 - 5307476 260883 13570716 17,637,378
TEEER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 263317 2632312
A2EREER) Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Befigts Cash flow hedges - - — - - - (747) — — - (747)
RERHETZEE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - 836 - - - - - - - - 836
KERDABEIIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
Efp2ENaEREY instruments designated
BEIARABEZRY  asathioC - - - - 7874 - - - - - 7874
ERZR Exchange difference on
consolidation - - — (15153878 — — — — — —  (1,515878)
Rt2EUWE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - 836 —  (1515878) 1874 - (147) - - — (1,507,915
REE2ERE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 836 = (1515878) 71874 - (747) - - 2,632,312 1,124,397
RENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REESE Contributions and distribution
BREERHZHZIE  Fouity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - - 522 - 522
IRIEERIEBITZRE  Shares issued under share
option scheme - - — — — — — — (9,353) — (9,353)
ERERY Shares option [apsed - - - - - - - - (61,359) 61,359 -
BHEREE 202158 2021 final and specil
RESIRSRE final dividend
approved and paid - - — — — — — — — (3942523 (3942503
BRERRE NN F 2022 special interim dividend
fiiliiect approved and paid - - - - - - - - — (25000000 (2,500,000)
ERAREER Transfer from retained profts - - - - - - - 279,791 - (9791 -
ARDAREZRSEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company - — — — - - - 279,791 (70,190) (6,660,955  (6,451,354)
R02E12831R At 31 December 2022 400 (109.476)  (1,800,090)  (1,144,893) 35325 9,869 (747) 5,587,267 190,693 9542073 12310421
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H=Z=2023F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

0
RRER REER
RoHE ERE
Transactions (F78R)
with Investment nE
ROBEEE ERERE non- SMAEHE revaluaton EREHE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur- controllng  Exchange reseve  Property  HAWRE  -BREE  Sharebased  REEA
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained a5
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recydling) reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ARETR  ABETR  ABETL  ARETL  ARETL  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETR  AREFR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RABE1A1A At 1 January 2023 400 (109,476) ~ (1,800,090)  (1,144,893) 35,325 9,869 (747)  5587,267 190,693 9542073 12310421
TERER Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - — M1 3117461
A2EREFR) Other comprehensive
income (loss)
Behetniizs) Cash flow hedges (Vote 31) - - - - - - 39,400 - - - 39,400
REBHELL Remeasurement of defined
EffBH#33) benefits obligations (ote 33) - 9,715) - - - - - - - - (9,715
KERDABEIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
Et2ENREREN instruments designated as at
BEIADAEEZEY OO - - - - (361 - - - - - (3611
EXZE Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - 10,382 - - - - - - 10382
Et2EUWE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - (9,715) - 10,382 (3611) - 39,400 - - - 36,456
REE2ENE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - (9,715) - 10,382 (3611) - 39,400 = = 317 3153917
HADNRRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEHT Contributions and distribution
IRIEBRIETEETZ  Shares issued under share option
kiz27) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - - (501) - (501)
BRI Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (63,240) 63,240 -
MW EREE Effect on the change of
functional currency ()] (2,587) - (172,225) (1,952) - 4412 - 29,022 22417 79,366
ERERTE02FER 2022 final and specidl
BRREREWZ2)  final dividend
approved and paid (Note 12) - - — — — — — — —  (2632311) (26323N)
ERERDER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 503,922 - (503922 -
BRDAREZRSEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company (41) (2,587) - (172,225) (1,952) - 4412 503,922 (34519)  (2.850,576) (2,553,506
RABE12ENA At 31 December 2023 359 (121,778)  (1,800,090)  (1,306,736) 29,762 9,869 43125 6,091,189 156,174 9808958 12,910,832

Emrmka(BEE)SHEKER®E
2022F R2023F R BB M T
@ o

No income tax effect arose from each component of other
comprehensive income (loss) in 2022 and 2023.

R EE %

BOhBOFEDIREREHEZA
BDAB BRI BB KAt 35 AR A R A

R -

\
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Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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\

MEREGERE

MEERERBNEIZRT (HR
BMEKRRRENR)REEENY
X BEERE BHREEVHR
FRPEE 3(d) K 3(s) MU & RT R B2 38 F
MENERREEZEHBRLE
& o

HrfEE

HhEEEETEERIAZAR
BEAFESFEZIBUSD -
EREERENEFEERNESR
ERBZINER R 2 HH - WK
FEMBHMRME3K B ZRER
BT BORERE

— KA

REFEEEAD - HEH BB
RABH—FETPRERB &R
(ZRPBESAROIRE AR B
BRALZEERBAZS)10% 23K
THBBEEREE - W REEZ
REEARDEMNE AR EMRAR
Z50% 0 - ZM BRI BABE
ESOESE

BRERE

BERREREBEERTAKEERRE
RMARITEZERERNREERZA
REEZHY  ARESTEIE
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296 EEEZERERDA

4

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties
when the existing properties become investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in notes
3(d) and 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument which is designated as a hedge of the foreign currency
risk associated with cash flows of foreign currency-denominated
borrowings in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for cash flow hedges in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2018 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iii)

any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2022: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2022: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders” approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company'’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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2008 FRERBERT &I (Z) (@) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
20085t &I A EXR T AR Details of share options granted by the Company to the
ANMHENBRARIZEERES employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
ZHEREFEELN2023FE & pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
2022F 12 AV HEERNZ X options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
TTRERBARENT - as follows:
®F
BREHE
Number of  RITEMNBREZE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2023 2022 HK$
BT
2008F 3 A20H 11,760,000 — — 928 20133 H21H=
20 March 2008 201843 A20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

20094 4 A 22 H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H23A%
22 April 2009 2019F 4 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
20104 A1 H 15,044,000 — — 18.57 2015F4AH18Z%
1 April 2010 20203 A31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

20114 4H12H8 17,702,000 — — 19.96 2016F4AH12H=
12 April 2011 20214 H118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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(a) 2008 FEEMREEsE(E)

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

®¥
BRERE
Number of  RITEMBRERE
RTFEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2023 2022 HK$
BT
201264 H26H 9,700,000 — — 2054 20174 H26H=E
26 April 2012 202244 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
201345 H27 R 11,492,000 — 6,854,000 20.16 201845 H27 A%
27 May 2013 202345 H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
2014544178 12,718,500 = 6,469,000 7,843,000 2238 2019F4R178=%
17 April 2014 202454 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 H5H 17,054,000 = 9,660,000 11,548,000 16.22 2020F6 H5H=E
5 June 2015 20256 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
20167 H48 10,148,000 = 1,550,000 1,642,000 754 2021%67RH4RZ%
4 July 2016 20267 A3AR
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
2017F 4 A21H 11,420,000 @ 7,180,000 7,280,000 1020 2022%F4A21HE
21 April 2017 202754 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
a5t 143,726,500 | 24,859,000 35,167,000
Total

\
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
Option Schemes are as follows:

2023 2022
T hniEFg
TEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average BREZHE average fENRIEZEE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B Fig BT FHE
REH At beginning of the year 16.71 35,167 16.99 48,213
RERTITE Exercised during the year 8.93 (192) 10.59 (3,192)
RERNEUE/ K Cancelled/lapsed
during the year 19.73 (10,116) 20.04 (9,854)
REER At the end of the
reporting period 15.54 24,859 16.71 35,167

RITEHR - FRITENER
) N T IR (B /5 12.587%
TL(20224F : 14.648 7T ) » 1
HEHRR BEHFEABBIEME
B 8 I IR BR (2022 4F -
4,300,000) °

M2023F 12 A31H » mAKITHE
ERENNETFEAHTELD
B B1.74F(2022F :2.22
F)o NEHERB - AJ1TEBR
T /) IR B2 24,859,000 (2022
F :35167,000) > K % &
B - BIATE A B A A B N4
176 (& B 15.5478 7t(2022
F16.717T) -

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$12.58
(2022: HK$14.64). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was Nil (2022: 4,300,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.74 years
(2022: 2.22 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 24,859,000 (2022:
35,167,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$15.54 (2022: HK$16.71).
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(b)

2018 FREIRBEST &

RNRAIREER2018F48
26 HERITHREFRI RS LB
BT AR REET S (12018 5
2] FHHEMBHRE0
F o Z20185TEI N AEBAEE
K2MEVETEREEHAE
EEHOER(GFART) &

-
AVAR

EEQUREZERTUTA
TR

(i) AR /s E AT B
A 2 AE AR A B Bk AR B
BE TTHRABXSR
AB(BREHITES 3k
WITER LB IFNITE
2R

(i) ARA] R/ E A
RAMEAEERD '
F-##@E REME
] o

Brec N AR BLE - 522018
FrEIRAEMART 2 EiER
G EITR T 2 BRES R 2
f&1n 8B TS BB AR T RE
MU EtEE B(A1201844 A
260) 2B EITRMNAEI10% °
REEH ERTHEBRE
EH BB R 8,104,000
(20224 : 8,104,00088 ) + 5
RARRENLEBHRER T
20185TEIE B 2 B 1TIRMD
0.14% (20224 : 0.14% ) »
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(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000 (2022: 8,104,000), representing
0.14% (2022: 0.14 %) of the shares of the Company in issue
at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme is adopted by
the shareholders of the Company.
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(b) 2018 FBRHEE(Z) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

FBER2EELEZL 20185 EIHH
EREFE TAZANRS
BYRB(BRERDITELERITE
2B AEFRTEIRZ
NREARTSBEERTHEH
REZTRNN1% - 2R 1%
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The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders” approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.
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(b) 2018 FEBEREE(E)

20185 EIRNE R TARF R
HBRARZEEREEZE
fi% 8 715 2 2023 F 122022
FI2ANBFERNZ RITHE

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are

EVBBRRIEN T - as follows:
g5
BREHE
Number of RITEHNBRESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2023 2022 HK$
BT
2018 4 A27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20214 A30H=
27 April 2018 2028%F 4 A 26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
2018 4 27 H 5,626,000 3,785,000 3,785,000 16.18 20214 A30HZE
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A 26 H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
a5 8,104,000 6,263,000 6,263,000
Total

\

4
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share

mr Option Scheme are as follows:
2023 2022
InHEFS NS
1TEE 1TEME
Weighted Weighted
average [EREHE average HEARFEENE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
Br FR BT FHZ
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERNTTE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERZ U Forfeited during the year — — — —
REANEUE/ R Cancelled/lapsed
during the year — — — —
REEAR At the end of the
reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263

EREEHPAN BEFAREB K

No share options are vested during the reporting period

15 B BE A 8 BRI (2022 FF -
) RERLABBRERT
f# -

F2023F 128318 H X
TEBRENMETHHRTA
#HA B1.90F (20224 - 2.90
F)o RNEER - AJ1THEBER
B A% 226,263,000 (2022
F :6,263,000) © NEF 5T
{8 5161878 JL(2022 4 -
16.187) »

(2022: Nil). None of the options are exercised during the
year.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.90 years
(2022: 2.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 6,263,000 (2022:
6,263,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$16.18 (2022: HK$16.18).
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2023 2022
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INESIR BB #) — Foreign currency forward contracts —
RemE L+ Cash flow hedges 169,185 (92,729)

FR - AEBFLEMDINERES
HWIEFAETTE  UEhER
D AINEERBRZINER
S TET AEANKEEY B
B TAREHEMEIRE RS
HRE12\ AIN20224F 1218 A
A)EENTET AR AIEREE
ESIERBAE(2022F : BBEE
g BARE) AEBNREREY
REETBR BN GRE SR M
3kk)c BRARNEETETAARE
BZHERNHERE NGRS MG
HwEMFEA3 -

HHarHuBERERRANTE

SRR P T RS AKE MK

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign currency
forward contracts and designated as hedging instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risks associated with the cash flows of
certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings. Derivatives are
only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative
investments. They are presented as non-current assets or liabilities
(2022: current assets or liabilities) to the extent they are expected
to be settled more than 12 months (2022: within 12 months) after
the end of the reporting period. The Group's accounting policy
for its cash flow hedges is set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the information about the valuation
technique used in determining the fair value of the derivatives are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effects of hedge accounting on the financial position and
performance

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments

MEKRIROZEBET on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:
2023 2022

ARYTFT ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REE Carrying amount 169,185 (92,729)
ME-&FHET Notional amount — sell USD — 1,109,650
HE-BEHARK Notional amount — sell RMB 4,280,035 —
ZHA B HA Maturity dates within 2 years within 1 year
2FR TR

FRIEAERE HRERIE  The change in fair value of the hedging

EEZEHTARAARMEE  instrument used as the basis for recognising

e hedge ineffectiveness for the year (62,964) 159,882
RIBS T 2 ¥R EBIE  Hedge ineffectiveness recognised

in profit or loss

ARG E SR T AFTHRE  Weighted average contracted forward

BEE S hn#ge F 15 8

instruments
— RMB:USD 1
— USD:RMB 1

— AR 1ZFET
—ET 1 ARE

rate for outstanding hedging

— 6.45
0.15 —
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ke Hedging reserves
AEEME A FHHEANTEHPT A The Group's hedging reserves relate to the following hedging
izl instruments:
EREBEHERN
PR A ZEHES HAREEEE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
ARMFT AREFT ARH¥FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20231 A1 H As at 1 January 2023 1,011 — 1,011
W WEEEEEE 2 Less: Effect on the change of
B functional currency (4,472) — (4,472)
mn: REMEEmEKEIEFR Add: Change in fair value of
RZEHITA hedging instrument
DAEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — (62,964) (62,964)
e REMZEUWEETF Add: Costs of hedging deferred
BERFERZ and recognised in other
E DN comprehensive income (113,266) — (113,266)
W BEMEERE  Less: Redlassified from other
ENOEEER comprehensive income
AR RET A E Ath to profit or loss and
FUA included in other
net income 73,602 62,964 136,566
(43,125) — (43,125)
W D ER R s R
=i52) Less: Attributable of NCI — — —
KATRRELZ Carrying amount attributable
ARTEE to owners of the Company
MR2023%F 12 A31H  Asat 31 December 2023 (43,125) — (43,125)
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YimfEE (&) Hedging reserves (Continued)
EREBEHEHN
Fa Rl N ZHHES  EHREEAE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
AR¥FT AR#FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M2022F 1818 As at 1 January 2022 — — —
mn: REMEEmEKEIEFT Add: Change in fair value of
WREHPITA hedging instrument
NAEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — 159,882 159,882
e REMZEWEZETS Add: Costs of hedging deferred
BERFERZ and recognised in other
E DN comprehensive income (26,912) — (26,912)
A AEMEmEUWEE Less: Reclassified from other
EMOEEER comprehensive income
BR R ET AEH A to profit or loss and
FA included in other
net income 27,923 (159,882) (131,959)
1,011 — 1,011
B DB RS EL
;o Less: Attributable of NCI (264) — (264)
ARTRREMRZ Carrying amount to owners
BREE of the Company
202212 A31H  Asat 31 December 2022 747 — 747

\
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2023 2022

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

EIRRIRITER Unsecured bank loans 10,196,573 14,148,702
IR E IR Unsecured notes 3,532,122 3,470,308
13,728,695 17,619,010

BREERHAE RREE R HEM
I B B RN SR DT (L2
B ERIR ER A EEGROTE)
o

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:

2023 2022
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
196K Within one year 8,481,501 9,203,139
E2EF In the second year 5,072,194 3,770,260
FIFEFSF In the third to fifth years inclusive
(BEER2F) 175,000 4,645,611
13,728,695 17,619,010
WoEARSEBTY Portion classified as current liabilities (8,481,501) (9,203,139)
EMBNER Non-current portion 5,247,194 8,415,871

BEEEEH AR2,687,476,000
TL(2022F : A R #5,551,532,000
T)BE—REERRGE TEEAE
FEEBEERBAL DR T A
BAHNERT  ERBERE-
EREEEOE S HE A (2
R ERKAFEEEROZE) RN
—FRNINEH HEBETEEREAR
mENAE -

EEBEZNEFHFMNERA
3.01% (20224 : 2.57%) »

B EBERBHERATR -

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB2,687,476,000 (2022:
RMB5,551,532,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
are already classified as current liabilities because the scheduled
payment due date of these borrowings (ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause) are due within one year.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 3.01% (2022: 2.57 %) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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RITIE G R EEIR A5 T EEKH

RITEFXAZEASREER

ZX

ERZHRE

NATFR2020F 9 A24 B84 %
48 %8 /500,000,000 3 7T 7 & 1 18
ERTETER]D - EXTEEBERE
H AR ARMEE A498,120,0003% 7T
(FBERHARM3,532,122,0007T)
(2022 4F : 497,072,000 T (#H &
KA A FE #3,470,308,0007T )) I
AEBEE  RE-FRH (2022
F.EZF2ERAFT HIEEER
F)o ETLEHEHR20206F9 H24H

AR F M E1.625% 5 8

M E A

NEF3A24ANA24RRE ¥
F XM H2021FE3A24B SR
202549 A24 B BHEA -

ENEERTIEESFRIMER
NAEI LM - BEMSWME - EXLE
BER2023F12A31BEMAREE
/470,170,000 JT(#8 & K & A
R #3,333,928,0007T ) (2022 4 :
449,065,000 % 7T (16 & R AIA BB

3

135,147,0007T)) » ZTLRETI &

ARAREEREL  XRAAEEHE
HEMBEEREGEZAERSHA
Bt 2 IS S AT A 4B ST

TRBBNEBEERZY S —

&

b

RITEEEREASEEEINETHRSE

PR E - MRAREBERZ

o EBAMNRE AR ERKEE
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The bank loans are unsecured and certain of the unsecured
bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements
amongst the Group's entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes"”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$498,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,532,122,000) (2022: US$497,072,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,470,308,000)) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the second year (2022: third
to fifth years, inclusive). The US$ Notes bear interest from 24
September 2020 at the rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrear on 24 March and 24 September in each year,
commencing on 24 March 2021 and will mature on 24 September
2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes as at 31 December
2023, based on the quoted market price, was US$470,170,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB3,333,928,000) (2022:
US$449,065,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,135,147,000)).
The US$ Notes are the unsecured obligations of the Company
and they rank at least equally with other present and future
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants

and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does

not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise

its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group

continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the

Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down

facilities had been breached (2022: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total

borrowings by type is as follows:

2023 2022
AR¥TFTT AE#FoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
& FF= At fixed rates 10,369,259 13,223,309
TFENFR At floating rates 3,359,436 4,395,701
13,728,695 17,619,010
BEBEUTIERKTIE The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
2023 2022
AR¥Fr AR For
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 9,235,496 12,136,440
ETT us$ 4,493,199 5,482,570
13,728,695 17,619,010
B & BEHINE R b & A 2 E i a) Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
WEIE - REE M BEREM T 42 discussion are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
FFA © statements.
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REMRMKTE

AEBERMETE BERBEE
E2No5athE BERAES
77 BB A A e FRE R B o 1B
HASEFEARLEFIZESR
FEBMZETADHELER - K
SER XA LA A HR - A
BEEXNTE FEKAEET
RIRE R ER 2 BH o

RERAEE

ARETAME A EIEBRERTE
BRI 8 - AEEEARBEM
BI B R SE A BB I 2 5
B o 35 B R DA R B AR 4
BEECARNTHFE AR &
S ¥ R B E R S
UREMEREE RN A RS AT
((EFHEBEL D HE - BH 2
BT R EREE RN 20235
12 A31 B AT AT B4 [ AR A K
R
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Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly
contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears the full
cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated based
on the length of service and average monthly salary for the final
six months of employment. The Group's obligation in respect of
the defined benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary,
Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers
Watson"”). The latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2023 using the projected unit
credit method.
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Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

LKEIRE ST - defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2023 2022
AR¥TTT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 69,026 79,920
AF [ RRIS A A Current service cost 530 3,656
F B Interest expense 1,609 1,943
2,139 5,599
HHE : Remeasurements:
P BRAREEZ Actuarial loss (gain) arising from
BEEE (k) changes in financial assumptions 693 (1,126)
KERTRAREE ZHERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 8,903 328
9,596 (798)
RANEERL Benefit payment (27.863) (15,695)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 52,898 69,026

REMLENEZERR

The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:

2023 2022

% %

Prif = Discount rate 2.50 2.70
& BT B - @ Expected rate of salary increases 0.00 - 3.00 0.00 - 3.00
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RERBAEI(E) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
REER REBTERBERSNS The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
Er e e A TR E(E 2 BUH possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
EoNuT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2023 2022
RERR FERM
BEENEL BENEL
Change in Change in
BB defined  REHME(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
g = Discount rate -3.21%/ -2.91%/
+/- 0.5% +3.41% +/- 0.5% +3.08%
TE HA % BN @ Expected rate of +3.07%/ +2.01%/
salary increases +/- 0.5% -2.93% +/- 0.5% -1.92%

LRFREIHERESEABER

%mAﬁTﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁEm@
RRFAE - HthBERR LA B
R AE b R AR T 2 & vtm&m

R EDMTEFA - TEEFE ﬁAﬁ
RAERREE R EEMNEENIE
B 248 7 H) & B AR 75 B AN 738 2% AR
BERAR(ER) - R8T /EAFMBE
BERIJEAE ARG EARF RKAR
FERNBREDIT

AEBMETHINEFHERZ
6.70F(20224F : 6.104) »

RIFEHETE 88 EBEF605
(20224 : IRIEEBE RI)GEEF
60 5% 63 5% ) R IRIKTEF o
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The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 6.70 years (2022: 6.10 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60 (2022: 60 or
63 depends on the employee’s role and function).
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Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2023 2022
AR¥TFTT ABEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
15K Within 1 year 13,919 18,874
HBiE1FER2FA More than 1 year but within 2 years 1,182 5,285
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 7,297 8,959
HBiB5F Over 5 years 49,410 36,969
71,808 70,087

7K R AE B E B A
mT

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

2023 2022

et AR#FT AREFT

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 817,025 931,305
WERARFIEDER Withholding tax paid on distributions

B TR of earnings by subsidiaries (146,796) (253,479)

ARG ARERA Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 244,240 139,199
REER At end of the reporting period 914,469 817,025
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REER CHIAZETEREEE
SNV

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

2023 2022
BE =L BE afs
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBTFTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

IR E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (420,100) — (512,383)
RIS ITE Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
NABERE Fair value adjustment on:
—FREEE — Right-of-use assets and
M - #es property, plant
B and equipment — (27.202) — (33,468)
—BIVEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
— KB EEHE — Investment properties — (34,598) — (36,355)
—S$@mIA - Financial instruments 152 — 152 —
REEE Impairment losses 57,558 — 60,714 —
RERBERZ Un-invoiced accrual
TEIREM 186,466 — 230,332 —
HEME - SRk Unrealised profit on property,
B REIRAE plant and equipment 45,081 — 137,683 —
B ARIRSHE Withholding tax on undistributed
Az B earnings of subsidiaries — (697,262) — (645,251)
MG EE Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Hith Others 20,320 (35,041) 23,208 (31,814)
ELERBEE Deferred tax assets
(BE) (liabilities) 339,411 (1,253,880) 481,923  (1,298,948)

BIEFBECEMSRE  IINERE
BRUNPEMIINEREDEME
SRR B EZR 10% M F R HUKTE
RBAB e ZMTHN2008F 1518
AR RN 2007412 8318 1%
G2 Ao BRI o 8 BB
H13Z SMNBI1% B & T AR B 3R 3 [ R
REEEERKBE  TEARK
B o
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Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.



ANEE M A B A B A E AR R
B5% (2022F 1 5%) - AEEIRE
EEBERARBAEA R R F
Ay RFEmMEHREENELETR
HAE -

HE BT FEMNEATFNED A
TR T E L A AR 183,811,000
TL(2022F © A K #183,811,000
L) EEDEEEBEHMTIE - #E
ERABAALEZEHR T FMNEA
BUESEEQAR v EEES W
AR ERTED B - A i I 8 1 1
FIMEETL B o

REEHR AEBEBARK
111,128,000 70(2022 4 : A & ¥
111,128,000t ) Fi 75 B B HER Ak
EREEE BREAEREZAEMRS
BEATRTFRNAEEDRRB B
W) —FEM B AR BIEER
A RERINBZEEREERETK
RAFMZB B WS - REER -
REREEFIEEE 2 MBS E B
HFEMGLT
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For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2022: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the remaining
undistributed earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is
approximately RMB183,811,000 (2022: RMB183,811,000) which
would become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion
of the Directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time,
are required for financing the continuing operations of these
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation
have been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
(2022: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
years, except for a subsidiary which is qualified to enjoy the
benefit with tax loss carried forward for ten years, from the year
in which the losses arose for offsetting against future taxable
income. The expiry years of tax losses with no deferred tax assets
recognised at the end of the reporting date are as follows:

2023 20227

RBERIPR AR F T ABWEF T
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2023 — 51,823
2024 93,630 151,562
2025 179,755 204,129
2026 189,816 231,851
2027 187,259 250,610
2028 326,256 —
2028 to0 2032 2028%2032 — 146,670
2029 to 2033 202922033 198,839 —
1,175,555 1,036,645

A LEEEFELEY - AREK 2028
2032 FHIRE B I T E1E -

AN

The comparative figures are restated to reflect the tax loss expiring in the
years from 2028 to 2032.
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2023 2022
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
B=5 To third parties 7,258,931 7,964,787
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRBIZESEN — A group of companies controlled by
KEERK B B the family members and relatives of
g — R A the Company’s directors 1,313,112 1,524,110
NS To an associate — 22
&N To joint ventures 674 989
8,572,717 9,489,908
ERE=F BEBAL BEQ The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
AREERAIZEMNERAEIR and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
A RERKAB30E90KEFH - period of 30 to 90 days.
JENEFRNEERREZARR 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BRI DITINT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2023 2022
AR¥FT AREFoT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 7,748,297 8,591,071
90 B k Over 90 days 824,420 898,837
8,572,717 9,489,908

\

318 EMEERERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



FENBRKA TG FI(E

A BTEEREMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 8,439,880 9,331,911

E7T uss$ 20,001 —

BT HK$ 112,836 157,997

8,572,717 9,489,908

2023 2022

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TEU RS Deposits received in advance 2,704,521 2,731,272

B SERES Accruals for transportation,

BRzER promoting and advertising expenses 3,925,551 4,583,245
THEAKHEAMm Accruals for administrative expenses and

KEBRTER other operating expenses 594,176 611,677

B TE REF B Salaries and welfare payables 904,236 874,839

FEAS R MR Payables for purchase of equipment 163,977 115,337

JE T H A 7 IR Other tax payables 165,634 220,067

FES T & Interest payable 48,138 35,366

JE A5 D AR SR AR T Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 243 144

HAh Others 362,997 611,550

8,869,473 9,783,497
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37(a) REXBHBRE

37(a) Cash generated from operations

2023 2022
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR A% A1 7 Profit before taxation 4,779,461 4,148,804
MEBH Interest expenses 519,122 446,021
FEUA Interest income (540,694) (650,412)
e Depreciation 3,441,797 3,258,898
BAREBEYERRE Dividend income from financial assets
BREERENSAEE  at FVPL and a designated FVOCI
MIEFR A EEYER
R H A2 ERES
AR IR M 2
TAZBRFWA (127) (1,413)
B EECEE Amortisation of intangible assets 6,840 6,679
HEYE - WEENRE  Loss on disposal of property, plant
MERAEEEBE and equipment and right-of-use assets 113,295 60,288
HEEE ARz s Gain on disposal of a joint venture (247) —
KEMEME Change in fair value of investment properties
ARBEZEY 7,030 (25,100)
BAREBETYIRRE Change in fair value of
BRERENSHMEE  finandal assets at FVPL, net
NABEZEHFHE 133 (10,099)
HEWB AR 2= Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (413,722) (105,992)
JE(REEE R R R Share of results of an associate
BENAEE and joint ventures (126,954) (127,318)
PR ) 2 & Effect on exchange rate changes (88,691) (314,870)
RY A A E R Recognition of equity-settled
S 2 IR share-based payment — 522
GFE2RA () Decrease (Increase) in inventories 869,320 (583,115)
FEUERF 2 Bk > Decrease in trade receivables 225,786 235,449
TR FRIE R MR R Increase in prepayments and
IR Z BN other receivables (44,128) (290,857)
FERTBR N Z CRA)IEAN (Decrease) Increase in trade payables (915,079) 443,467
HiERRIERE (Decrease) Increase in other payables
Wi 4 2 (24> ) 10 and deposits received (778,354) 312,570
EPTEMFRIE 2 Increase (Decrease) in advance
CRv ) payments from customers 250,239 (771,260)
FEHMETRAMEE Decrease in present value of
WREZ R unfunded employee benefit obligations (25,724) (10,096)
REEKFEBEESE Cash generated from operations 7,279,303 6,022,166

320 EMEERERAF
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

4



FEBSERERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37(b) MEEBELENEBEHIR

TERFLAEERAMETS

S}

EEY BRRELIER

SEY RETHELINAR
REZREIARKRERE

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

37(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEREBGARESRERTP will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
DEAERMEERHELNIRER cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2.
ER
& &
B (HizE36)
RITER Dividend
HEEE REARE (Hit32) payable
(Kt 16) (#fi£32)  Unsecured to non-
Lease  Unsecured banks  controlling
liabilities notes loans interests @t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ANREFT NARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
R2023F181H At 1 January 2023 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
FHREM Net cash flows
(B (), i), i) (Notes (), (i), (i) (231,442) — (3,955,645  (517,034)  (4,704,121)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 16,034 7,096 — — 23,130
RS New leases 235,275 — — — 235,275
MEBI 272 Effect on lease modification 5,712 — — — 5,712
FEMRFI Dividend declared — — — 517,133 517,133
| Exchange realignment — 54,718 3,516 — 58,234
MW2023%12 8318 At 31 December 2023 326,692 3,532,122 10,196,573 243 14,055,630
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37(b) MEEHELENABERE)

37(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

JERDE
R AR A
Eidiintl (Hist36)
RITER Dividend
MEafE BEARE (Hit32) payable
(Hat 16) (#i£32)  Unsecured to non-
Lease Unsecured banks controlling
liabilities notes loans interests &5t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
AERETFT ARETFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000
®2022%1818 At 1 January 2022 355,039 3,162,569 10,499,244 902 14,017,754
FHEEMR Net cash flows
(KL (1), (i) (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii)) (230,088) — 2,643,408 (623,618) 1,789,702
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BRI B Amortised interest expenses 16,121 6,967 — — 23,088
HIEHEE New leases 169,206 — — — 169,206
MEBI z 2 Effect on lease modification (9,165) — — — (9,165)
el Dividend declared — — — 622,860 622,860
EHES Exchange realignment — 300,772 1,006,050 — 1,306,822
R2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
(i) HEBBENFRERRESF (i) The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the
AZNHEEBBEZ RS KA payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.
BES ©
(ii) WITERMERIE - BITE (i) The net cash flows from unsecured bank loans make up the

KB IR TR K E A B E R
FEEE - BREKMIRT

e~ Narg PANN =S =N
EFRFREME o

net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings, repayments
of bank borrowings and net movement of other short-term
borrowings.

(i)  ERNLERRRREHFR (i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling
EREEFAIMNDERE interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests
KBRS © during the year.

\
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In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in

the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions in the ordinary course

ERXRGTRAEEZ BB ERERE of the Group's business.
17 e
2023 2022
Bz AR% T AEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
() BEBALZRS (@)  Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
ARRZ EBR RS Companies controlled by a substantial
& 4 VNG] shareholder of the Company 0] 143,215 119,643
NG| An associate 31,496 48,101
RERT Joint ventures 935,544 886,955
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
ARREFYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE LB the family members and relatives
Z— 4R of the Company's directors () 5,872,849 6,386,373
i YN An associate 2,417 23,753
ARERH Joint ventures 11,191 17,147
BTRAARZFRHER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEFERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
AN shareholder of the Company (i) 50,381 33,730
BT 5 ARKEK Y E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BERE Joint ventures 331 6,503
|50 R IR E M Rental income from investment
EERNE  #ER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARAZ FERRIEHZ Companies controlled by a substantial
C4VNG shareholder of the Company 34,118 35,602
RRRZERY A company controlled by
FEERK B N IR the family members and relatives of
—ERAA the Company's directors 2,667 3,010
BT 5 AR X2 EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ARREEYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE RFEEH the family members and relatives of
Z—H#RE the Company'’s directors 0) 1,985,409 1,876,252

M) BIEETRAUE4AS  ZFHE
BRI A T2 RS MRS ERE

Note () These related party transactions also constitute continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.
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(b) BREEAEZHME

FEEFERERABZME
(BREEMBRERMEI0/
BEMARAESE  THER
XN ZRERAE TR HE

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

BYfZFIB)WT ¢ statements, is as follows:
2023 2022
ARETFTT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEME Directors’ fees 4,321 4,127
e MEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 41,056 40,117
VARG 2 -2 5/ 18 Share-based payments — 471
14T Discretionary bonuses 12,009 19,733
BRIKE T Retirement payments 9,214 —
66,600 64,448

FANABR BV BERELRE 155
MEFPANBE(TEERFRFNE
MER D ELRZEE)MT

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2023 2022

AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

REH] At beginning of the year 2,571,730 3,342,990
R AW A Recognised as revenue (2,571,730) (3,342,990)
WRIRZNEHITERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 2,821,969 2,571,730
REER At end of the reporting period 2,821,969 2,571,730

MN2023F K 2022F 12 A318 &
FRAZEEIN —FAER AWK
Ao

\
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At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the advance payments from
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year.
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During the year, the Group entered into several sales and purchase
agreements with independent third parties for the disposal of the
entire equity interests in several subsidiaries. These disposals were
completed during the year. Upon the completion of the above
disposals, gain on the disposal of subsidiaries of RMB413,722,000
was recognised in profit or loss and recorded as other net income.

The following summarises the aggregate consideration and the

BE,MBENER@DES carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the respective date
of disposal:
4z
Total
ARMF T
RMB’000
FFHENFEE(EE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
ME - e RRE Property, plant and equipment 49,716
EREEE Right-of-use assets 77,689
B FRIE Je B FE U R IE Prepayments and other receivables 28,488
RITER IR Bank balance and cash 1,011
EMEMAREREWRES Other payables and deposit received (8,147)
148,757
HEKB AW (MEs) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) 413,722
562,479
REH#E Total consideration
ReRE Cash consideration 214,469
AU 5 Deposits received in advance 181,000
YR AE Consideration receivables 167,010
562,479
HEMBARZRERAFE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 214,469
EHECHEeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,011)
RERBASEEYZRANTFE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 213,458
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The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and long-term time deposits) as a ratio of the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group takes into
account of the long-term time deposits in calculating the gearing
ratio because the management believes that this calculation
reflects the capital structure of the Group more accurately. The
gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2023 2022

AR¥TFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,728,695 17,619,010
B R MREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents and

M ERHTHER long-term time deposits (14,738,381) (19,888,353)

FHIRE Net cash (1,009,686) (2,269,343)

AR FIRR I AR Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 13,894,604 13,371,526
FREEEALE Gearing ratio -7.27% -16.97%

AEBRBEEHMBRER
BREHBIMERELRER I
REBEEERANECHBE NG
BoABKRERE EEREE
% BIOTHEBEARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEEMNX
B RRERZHMLERS -

20234 + N [E MK BE £12022
FHRA BEBFABEEAN LR
BHEZ AR o

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2023, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2022, aims at keeping the gearing ratio approximately to nil.

\
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The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors
generally adopt conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. During the year, the Group entered into
several foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency-
denominated borrowings. The details of the hedging activities
are set out in note 3(k) and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of
RMB/US$ and RMB/HKD had strengthened/weakened by 0.9%
and 0.9% (2022: RMB/US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 4.5%, 0.8% and 1.8%) respectively
with all other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the
year and retained profits would have been RMB5,487,000 (2022:
RMB4,341,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date excluding the exposure arising from the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings that are hedged by foreign currency
forward contracts as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign
currency represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2022.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 76% (2022:
75%).

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances, pledged bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings
denominated in US$ and RMB had been 75 (2022: 100) and
20 (2022: 0) basis point higher/lower respectively and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits would increase/decrease by RMB2,967,000 (2022:
decrease/increase by RMB40,206,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances, pledged bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings
in existence during the year. The 75 (2022: 100) and 20 (2022:
0) basis point increase or decrease on the bank balances, pledged
bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in
US$ and RMB respectively represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2022.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to unlisted bank
financial products, structured deposits, derivative financial
instruments, long-term time deposits, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables. Substantially majority of the
Group’s unlisted bank financial products, structured deposits,
derivative financial instruments, long-term time deposits and bank
balances and cash were deposited in the creditworthy global
financial institutions and state-controlled financial institutions
in the PRC, which management considers they are without
significant credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position,
which is net of loss allowance, represents the Group’s exposure to
credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral
held or other credit enhancements.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group’s
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December

2023 and 2022 are summarised below.

As at 31 December 2023

BIREE FEEEHE
Gross carrying

amount Credit-impaired
AR¥FT

RMB’000
REIH Not past due 1,450,842 No
SR ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 46,039 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 38,296 No
#B38 90 X Over 90 days 44,806 No
1,579,983

72022 12A31H

As at 31 December 2022

MREREE FEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired

ARETT

RMB'000
REIHA Not past due 1,615,680 No
SEEERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 57,228 No
31-90 & 31 - 90 days 70,932 No
#8390 X Over 90 days 64,441 No
1,808,281
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the Directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month
ECL and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31
December 2023 and 2022, the Directors considered the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant and no loss allowance for
provision for amounts due from these parties is recognised.
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252 JE 66.86% (2022 4F : 57.14%)
MW =K (2022 F : A)EEA
MEEEFRRBE 100% (2022 F -
100%) °
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience and the financial position of
the counterparties, the value of collateral, past collection history,
current creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors
that are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant
after taking into account the financial position, quality of the
counterparties, the value of collateral and past settlement records.
There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 66.86% (2022: 57.14%) of loan and consideration
receivables which was due from the Group's largest debtor, and
100% (2022: 100%) of loan and consideration receivables was
due from the Group's three (2022: two) debtors.
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Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities. Also, the Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that
the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
is summarised below:

1L 260 E

1515 BE2FR  BESFR

BEREHR  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but SENL

1 year or within less than Over &t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBTFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#M2023%12A318 At 31December 2023

JETBRSR Trade payables 8,572,717 — — — 857,717

Hit R 5E Rk Other payables and
B deposits received 7,799,603 — — — 7,799,603
HERRE Lease liabilities 156,571 120,866 63,476 4,458 345,371
BEfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 8,810,381 5,166,210 175,098 — 14,151,689
25,339,272 5,287,076 238,574 4,458 30,869,380
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

1500k 2FENE
TERs BmR2EFA BESFA
BRENEHR  Morethan  More than
Within Tyearbut 2 years but SEUE
1 year or within less than Over A&t
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AREFT  AREFT AR+ AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20225128318 At 31 December 2022

FEITEER Trade payables 9,489,908 — — — 9,489,908

HibENRER Other payables and
[REeEn deposits received 8,688,591 — — — 8,688,591
HEARE Lease liabilities 165,844 80,632 68,139 6,152 320,767
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 9,531,823 4,023,179 4,725,607 — 18,280,609
fTESRBIA Derivative financial instruments 92,729 — — — 92,729
27,968,895 4,103,811 4,793,746 6,152 36,872,604

ERB#eE—RETERALE
REER T EEAREZE KD E
FEEF - HEAEESBER LB ®
GEAERERERIER -BEE
SEWTAEHEEASTERAZRE
FEER - AR ¥2,687,476,000
TL(2022 F © A K #5,551,532,000
T)ZBEEEGIEERIEA A1
FRNIRBEER R A HE -
ZEBENKBERBZEREHE
=T

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB2,687,476,000
(2022: RMB5,551,532,000), with the scheduled payment due date
within 1 year, as at the end of the financial period have been so
classified even though the Directors do not expect that the lenders
would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus these
borrowings would be repaid according to the following schedule
as set out in the loan agreements:

2023 2022
ARB®FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERRE Interest-bearing borrowings
15K Within 1 year 2,723,711 5,611,207
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose
their fair value in these consolidated financial statements
on a recurring basis across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
entire measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.



(a)

A BTEEREMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

LAABHIBHNSHEERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
223 2022
HEIR fin A3 CH iGN gah #A13 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBUO | AMBOD — AMBUOOO  RMBUOO  AMBOOD
BE Assets
RPPEEGZEEE  Fnancial assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds - - WM a5 - - BA39 254349
- LilkAEs - Equity securies, lsted - - - - 194 - - 194
~BRNER - Structured deposits - — 50,000 50,000 - - - -
~FITBAEYER - Bankfinancial products, unlised - — 665210 665210 - - - -
-fHeRIA - Derivative financial instruments — 169,185 — 169,185 - - - -
EEROC Designated FVOC
-FLTRAES - Equity securites, unlited - — 14907 154907 - — 158518 158518
- 169,185 1145230 1,314,415 194 - 412 867 413,061
8 Liabilities
BRREESZEEE  Fnancal labilties at FUPL
~lireBIa - Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 9,729 - 9,729
- - - - - 92,729 - 92,729

H E2023F K20224F 12 A 31
AItFE - RBIEBE AR 18
Thl2 2EBHE - INEBIERR
EEAA 3 ARRI3EL o

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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(a) HUAABEIENLREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(#&) (Continued)
L E2023F %2022 12 A 31 The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
HIFrEEEFsHEAALBES measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
EDEARRINFMES WM hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
T are shown as follows:
2023 2022
B BE a8
Assets Assets Liabilities
BFVPLEE RFVPLER
NEREE EEFVOC | HEREE  EERVOC
Financial Designated Financial Designated
asset at FVPL FVOCl | asset at FVPL Fvocl
¥ EMBT kL ¥Em fef
REES  BRBUEXR BEER RAxEH REES RAEH JERE
Bank
financial Equity Equity Contingent
Investment  Structured products, securities, Investment securities,  consideration
funds deposits unlisted unlisted funds unlisted payable

ABRTL  ARETR ARETT  AREFZ  ARETT  ARRTT  ARETR
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOO)  RMBDOO  RMBOO0  AMBUOO  AMBUOD

RER At beginning of the year 254,349 - - 158,518 626,707 137,317 (9,.959)
BAIRE Purchases/additions 20,764 50,000 665,210 — 6,992 — —
HE Disposals - - - - (441,953) - -
#E Settlements - - - - - - 9,959
BRI B(EE) SME  Total (losses) or gains
recognised:
-Ex ~in profit or loss - - - - 10,117 - -
-HH2E(BE)ME  -inother comprehensive
(loss) income — — — (3,611) — 7,874 —
ERER Exchange difference - — — — 52,486 13,327 —
REER At the end of
the reporting period 275113 50,000 665,210 154,907 254,349 158,518 -

\
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in Level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price, while
the fair values of unlisted investments are estimated
by the respective investment managers using valuation
techniques including mainly price-to-sales (P/S) ratio
model and net asset value approach (2022: price-to-
sales (F/S) ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Financial assets at FVPL: Structured deposits and
unlisted bank financial products

The fair value of structured deposits and unlisted
bank financial products in Level 3 are estimated by
respective bank’s investment managers based on the
income approach.
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurement (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price-to-sales (P/S) ratio model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average price-to-sales (P/S) ratio.

Derivative financial instruments: Foreign currency
forward contracts

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts in
Level 2 is determined by the banks using present value
of future cash flows based on the forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.
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(a)

(Continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable

inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable

MRREZEHWMT inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEERARE
AEERE
haEEENTE
RABE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group's total
Fair value TUERBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (AREMRERETE) income for
w3 HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AFEFT  Valuation TIEREA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description AMBO00  techniques Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB 000
BRPLRENERER
Financial assets at FVPL
REES TEERY  BEREREI% ERRESRTER ADABENS  RM: 5% 153
Investment funds 275113 PiSratiomodel  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 12% the fair value and vice versa;
AuBAT HamHE AuEAE HamEkES - ALAERER +-19% +16,774
B0.51 20741 R
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
05110 0.74 times
FREREE ENRELLEERAR FERLALOABEER AFREDABEER  hek 19 E+- 6% +-43,866
(T¥&E&))
Net asset Fair value of individual assets  The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the  Ranging from
value approach  less liabilities (the “Net higher the estimated fair value +- 7% 10 4/- 56%
Assets”)
FImRRYER k& EfhaE ERaEES  AAAEENS R i4-2.1% 444,809
E4-45%
Unlisted bank 665,210 Income approach  Expected retum rate The higher the expected return rate, the higher the fair Ranging from
financial products Value and vice versa; +-2.1%to +-4.5%
BREER L6 Efla% EONAREE ADABEER RZPA:  BH3% 4% #3663
Structured deposits 50,000 Income approach  Expected retur rate The higher the expected retur rate, the higher the fair Ranging from

value and vice versa; +-3% to +- 4%
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER (a)

(%)

TETTHEERACANELER

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Quantitative information of the significant

RERES R (Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREZE
KEERE
gt tolip 7
RABE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
DB the Group’s total
Fair value TUERBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (RHREMRERRTE) income for
w3 ERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation ~ FUBEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range RIB000
EEROCl
Designated FVOCI
FIHRAES THERE  BEEEREN% EREMERENR  EOABEME RZHA- #5% 4530
Equity securities, unlisted 154,907 PiSratio model Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 12% the fair value and vice versa;
M BATZ HmHE RLA VAR ERESYNE R +-34% #3193
B074f Rz
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies of 0.74 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;

\
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(a) URABEIERNSREERERE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
FTERTEERATEANELLER Quantitative information of the significant
REBRESEEH(E) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEEREE
KEERE
BEABENYE
RUnE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group’s total
Fair value TUBRBANEBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (AREMRERETE) income for
W ERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation ~ FUBEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description ABO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB000
BAPLRBNEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
EES THERY  BEEERE1% EERMEREMR  ADLEENR RITA: +-5% +1-1,654
Investment funds 254349 PfSratiomodel Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
TR THHHE THBAA TTEEER  ARAREER +-58% +/-21,940
ROMEE06E R
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies ranging from companies, the higher the fair value and vice verss;
04310 0.65 times
FEEREL MIEELARENRE FERLAEOABEER EFELABEES B4 URE4020  AHTBIE
(#8E)) +-26,863
Nt asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, Ranging from Ranging from
value approach liabilities (the “Net Assets”) the higher the estimated fair value +- 14% t0 +/- 52% +-79811t0
+- 26,863
R AOC
Designated FVOCI
k RAES mEERY  RHFERE 1% ERRMIRENS EOREEER R 5% +5,04
Equity securities, unlisted 158,518 PiSratio model Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
AHBRA HImEEA ARAT HaT RS - ARAEEER +-38% 44433
06568 RZIR:
Average PIS ratio of comparable  The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0,65 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment funds, structured
deposits, unlisted bank financial products and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrators for the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrators of the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrators of the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers
or trust administrator of the investment funds, structured
deposits and unlisted bank financial products to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds, structured deposits and unlisted bank
financial products.
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(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the Directors, no other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group are carried at amounts materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022.

In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments
as follow:

BARX HEE Capital expenditure commitments
2023 2022
AR#FT AREFT
BRTHB R Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
EEYE HER Expenditures on property,
REF plant and equipment 1,076,179 541,830
WEHSHE Capital contribution on investment funds 242,781 —

1,318,960 541,830
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REABVANBERE  ARAM
iRk MR EBIIRIT

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

\

2023 2022
it ARETT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
VI - IR REE Property, plant and equipment 203 247
EREEE Right-of-use assets 2,841 487
M A E A Interest in subsidiaries 8,080,959 9,534,645
THEeRITA Derivative financial instruments 169,185 —
HFVPLEREEMSMEE Financial assets at FVPL 179,061 174,419
FEEL FVOCI IR R Equity instruments designated
EETAE as at FVOCI 6,241 9,852
8,438,490 9,719,650
REBEE Current assets
FENFIBEREMBEIGIE  Prepayments and other receivables 4,557 6,409
M8 A A2 FEWsRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 3,397,706 3,282,153
RITEEBRNIR S Bank balances and cash 115,289 283,435
3,517,552 3,571,997
HWEE Total assets 11,956,042 13,291,647
BREREZFKAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARF#HE Capital and reserves
BITRR AR Issued capital 196,681 235,741
B m (B Share premium 787,091 825,364
¥ Reserves 45(a) 2,686,719 1,891,772
RERERBE Total equity 3,670,491 2,952,877
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2023 2022
Bt AR¥TFT ARETFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 4,489,394 6,018,671
HERE Lease liabilities 2,571 136
4,491,965 6,018,807
REEE Current liabilities
H Ath JEAT X Other payables 42,580 34,335
BEEEEZREHIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 3,750,860 4,244,075
HEBE Lease liabilities 146 378
PTESBMT A Derivative financial instruments — 41,175
3,793,586 4,319,963
wmaE Total liabilities 8,285,551 10,338,770
BREZMEREEHEE  Total equity and liabilities 11,956,042 13,291,647
KRR RN 2024F3 A26HE The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
FedEMRERE  YHENUNTA for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and signed
THREEZ on its behalf by
%% Wei Hong-Ming F M4 —EB Junichiro Ida
EZEDirector E&EDirector
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(a) HEE2EH (@) Movements of the reserves
Re
RARE MERE  BRERR ERE
i i (FUEE) HnGt BE  REE 4%
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- Hedging payment Retained
reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve Profits Total
A\BEFT  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  ARETLT  ARETR  ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
RN2E1R18 At 1 January 2022 400 614,905 1,666 - 260,883 5,925,610 6,803,464
RERGT Profit for the year — - — - — 2,055,455 2,055,455
TEEEM2ENE(ER) Other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - (516,398) N 184 - - (515,793)
BREERBTAZEE Fquity settled share-based transactions - - - - 52 - 52
REEREERT R Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (9,353) - (9,353)
BRERN Shares option lapsed - - - - (61,359) 61359 -
BAORRIRE 2001 £ 2021 final and specil final dividend
REERIRERE approved and paid - - - - - Bo53)  (3942503)
BRRIRE 2002 £55) 2022 special interim dividend approved
L) and pid - - - - — 50000 (2500000
RANENA3MA At 31 December 2022 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,772
RABE181A At 1 January 2023 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,172
TEE T Profit for the year - - - - - 3,295,267 3,295,267
TEEEMRENE(ER) Other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 15,008 (3,611) 41,789 - - 53,186
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (501) - (501)
BRERN Shares option lapsed - - - - (63,240 63,40 -
Ny EREF 2 Effect on the change of functional
currency ) (113,103) 685 1,152 29222 161,451 79,366
BERIEE 2002 554 2022 final and special final dividend
REFHRERE approved and paid - - - - - (263231)  (26323M)
RBE1NA3MA At 31 December 2023 359 412 (839) 43125 156,174 2,487,488 2,686,719

M2023F12A31H  AQF
ANz @EE2ERE RN
EBRHOEEZESBEAARE
3,274,579,0007T(2022 4F -
A B 2,425,265,0007T) °

At 31 December 2023, the Company’s distributable reserves
including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB3,274,579,000 (2022: RMBZ2,425,265,000).

\
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excess length.

The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of Directors,
48 are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
Do ESH portion of total assets of the Group. The Directors consider that
giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of

A
£ EEhE ERERCETRE LAl E3:3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
REERRGARAT HE US$72,000,000 100% BERHEHEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd? PRC US$72,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
MNERRRARLA HE US$90,618,400 100% BERHEHEE
Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd * PRC US$90,618,400 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERERRRARAR HE US$17,000,000 100% BERHEHFE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$17,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERRRRARLA HE US$17,800,000 100% BERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC US$17,800,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RZEGRGARAR ki US$44,300,000 100% BERHEHFE
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC US$44,300,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REEREARARAR hE US$14,200,000 100% BERHEHFE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$14,200,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERERRGARAR HE US$6,862,700 100% BERHEHEE
Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$6,862,700 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RHE (RH) TRRRARAR hE US$32,500,000 100% BERHEHFE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC US$32,500,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
TFERRRARLA ki US$29,000,000 100% BERHEHFE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC 15$29,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
AAEERRARAR HE US$8,333,300 100% BERHEHEE
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd.* PRC U5$8,333,300 Manufacture and sale of instant

noodles
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AR/
£ EXHE EMEABRTRE JEft R AELL TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
RHE (BB) FEARERAR HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHENFAE
Master Kong [Chongging] PRC US$5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
IHEERRARLA PE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHETER
Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$50,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
R)FHEREARAR G US$21,000,000 - 100% RERHEHER
Changsha Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. # PRC US$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEFRCRERARLA G RMB15,000,000 - 100%  REEERE
Shanghai Kang Vi Corporate Management Limited *  PRC RMB15,000,000 Provision of management service
BMEERAERAA G US$31,000,000 - 100% REREEHFE
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC US$31,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RAEARERE (7EH) BRAF G US$283,715,400 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC US$283,715,400 Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
REEERMARATF HE US$37,000,000 - 100% BEERHERK
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$37,000,000 Manufacture and sale of bakery
products
FHBENERERE (PE) ARA hE US$98,900,000 - 100% BEER
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment (Chma) PRC 15$98,900,000 Investment holding
Co, Ltd?
REBRRBVERAR RERLES US$55,263 90.50% - REER
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI 1S$55,263 Investment holding
RABRGARERAT RERHS US$10,527.37 30.40% 4751%  REER
KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman lslands US$10,527.37 Investment holding
RHOXEERD (L) ARLF G RMB1,000,000 - T191% REEELARH
KSF Beverage Management (Shanghai) Limited® PRC RMB1,000,000 Provision of management and
consulting services
LS G US$60,840,000 - 7191% SERHEESM
Tianjin Tingjin Food Co Ltd. * PRC US$60,840,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMERRDEN HE US$20,000,000 - 71.91% RERHEEAR
Guangzhou ngpn Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERZRRAD G US$73,500,000 - 7191% SERHEESR
Wuhan T|ngJ|n Food Co Ltd. PRC US$73,500,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFE2RmAN G US$24,000,000 - 7191% RERHEEAR
Chongging Tingjin Food Co, td. # PRC US$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages

\

-

4

350 mEEEERERDA

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



A BTEEREMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 2023412 A31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2023

ERAL/
2 EEWY HMEACRIRE JE(E AL FEER

Place of

incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity

HE i
Directly Indirectly
EEEERmAD el US$15,000,000 7791%  HEAm
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC US$15,000,000 Sale of beverages
BREZAMA i US$13,700,000 7791% BEREEHRR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC US$13,700,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRERRRRARA e US$16,176,500 7791% BEREERR
Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. f PRC US$16,176,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
2REEEERA] i U$10,000,000 7791% BEREEHR
Hefei Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC US$10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EREEAMA] P U5$18,973,239 7791% BEREEHR
Kunming ngJm Food Co,, Ltd PRC US$18,973,239 Manufacture and sale of beverages
PNEER DA i US$44,000,000 7791% BEREEHR
Zhengzhou ng in Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$44,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEERmAD i US$24,489,800 7791% BEREEHRR
Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$24,489,800 Manufacture and sale of beverages
LARELEEREARARA P RMB15,000,000 7791% REEERZHERE
Shanghai Kang Yun Corporate Management PRC RMB15,000,000 Provision of management and
Limited® consulting services

EOE (35) BnERAT G US$41,000,000 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$41,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EOE (BR) BRERAT G US$48,500,000 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Xi‘an) Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC 1US$48,500,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EONE (K2) BmERAT G U5$36,326,500 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd.* PRC US$36,326,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ANEEERA] P US$41,326,500 7791% BEREEHRR
Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$41,326,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BB mBERAE i US$62,193,900 7791% HEREESR
Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$62,193,900 Manufacture and sale of beverages
FHE (BERE) RRARAT HE US$18,367,300 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Wulumuqi) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC US$18,367,300 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ESHEZR DA G US$43,622,400 7791% BEREESR
Langfang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$43,622,400 Manufacture and sale of beverages
HFMNEEEMA] i US$73,724,500 7791% BEREEHRR
SUZHOU TINGJIN FOOD CO., LD PRC US$73,724,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
HMNERERA] i US$38,100,000 7791% BEREEHRR
Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$38,100,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
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*

*

*
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EEauizA]
£ E ERERBRITRE JEfE R gL ) B3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
EREERRARLA HE US$27,000,000 T191% BERHERD
Jinan Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC US$27,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BERERRARLA P US$18,367,300 7191% RERHEERM
Baotou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd PRC US$18,367,300 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBERMARLA PE US$10,000,000 7191% HERHEESR
Changsha Tinglin Food Co., Ltd. PRC 1S$10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
LERRRRARLA PE US$7,300,000 191% #ERM
Shanghai Kong Ling Food Co,, Ltd. * PRC US$7,300,000 Sale of beverages
RABFGRE (PE) ARAF) HE US$547,689,139 7191% AR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd.  PRC US$547,689,139 Investment holding
TERRLE (BR) BRAT Bk US$129,736,518 7191%  BERR
CHINA BOTTLERS (HONG KONG) LIMITED Hong Kong US$129,736,518 Investment holding
RHBERRERRAT hE US$358,216,517 7191%  BARR
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. * PRC 1S$358,216,517 Investment holding
BERHE (BM) BRAA hE US$197,800,000 T191% BERHEERD
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC 1S$197,800,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BABETEHHARLA hE US$66,650,000 T191% BERHEERD
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC US$66,650,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
IRAENEHFHAERLA hE US$141,194,490 5064% HERHEERD
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$ 141,194,490 Manufacture and sale of beverages
REREIRHFHARLA hE US$20,000,000 401% BERHEERD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC 1S$20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
REEFTRARERAR P RMB100,000,000 T191%  REREEAR
Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC RMB100,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RABERHARAE hE US$6,600,000 T191% HERHEERD
* CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC US$6,600,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BHESHRERRAR G US$1,350,000 77.91% REREERSR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC US$1,350,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERASARHAARAT hE US$17,845,000 1354% BERHEERW
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFU BEVERAGE PRC US$17,845,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
A BETEFRARLA hE US$12,250,000 T191% HERHEERD
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited # PRC US$12,250,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
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EEauizA]
£ EXY AMERBRATRE L el IEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
N BETERHARLA G US$10,400,000 - 5843% BHERHEAM
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC US$10,400,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBENERHERAT G US$21,000,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBZTEBHARLA G RMB19,764,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC RMB19,764,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEAH (B2) ARLA G US$9,000,000 — 5454 RERHEMS
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited? PRC 1S$9,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RZBEARFHARLA t US$5,000,000 - 7191% SERHEERR
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC US$5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
LRGN i US$21,000,000 - T191% BEREERR
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited  PRC US$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRER SRR ERAR G US5$35,000,000 - T191%  REREEHR
Harbin Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd PRC US$35,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHREARAA RERNES US$147,232,000 - 100% RARR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI US$147,232,000 Investment holding
PEERERERAR EERAHES Uss$t 100% -  REBR
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI USs1 Investment holding
LEERAFLFRRERLA G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENFEERE
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC US$135,000,000 Provision of properties management
Co, Ltd.* service
* ZEWB AR M ARINEE/AE * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
E o companies.
# B EE R AR # English translation for identification purposes only.

HMASERPEREAZHERQF
BRI EEMREEINERE -

The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as
wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Yuko Takahashi

Ms. Tseng Chien
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AR FEIRTT Agricultural Bank of China

RFTIRTT ANZ Bank

PEERTT Bank of China

B IRTT Bank of Ningbo

R AR IR TT China Construction Bank

B R R ER AT China Merchants Bank

R RARTT China Minsheng Bank

ERIRTT DBS Bank

EEEERT Deutsche Bank

AR RIE & RTT Development Bank of Japan Inc.

R TrgdRTT Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

BHEBERTT Metrobank

A AR IEIRTT Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

HA=ZZBBRTT MUFG Bank

A ERITBR A A Rabobank

HEIRTT SPD Bank

AAR=HERBITRHBIRAA] Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

RERTT United Overseas Bank

A FIRITRIRE X F BT HES The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

ERIEERVE AT Sidley Austin

e Z LR - PRC principal legal advisers:

TR ERAN =% T Haiwen & Partners

BRI RN B AT AllBright Law Offices

FEHE%E - as to Cayman Islands law:

BLERMEBM(EE) Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP
BREREEEEHR

RERIR(EE)GAMEBHAAERA A Mazars CPA Limited

BANE TR Certified Public Accountants
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